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Mr. Wei Qiang Chairman
Mk d £

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited

Annual Report 2020

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors

(the “Directors”) of LongiTech Smart Energy Holding
Limited (the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”), | hereby present the annual
report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2020 (the “Reporting Period”) to all shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EE®|E

FINANCIAL RESULTS

In 2020, the once-in-a-hundred-year COVID-19 pandemic (the “Pandemic”)
dealt a heavy blow to the global economy. In view of the domestic and
international vulnerability to the Pandemic and the general shrinking of
external economy, the government of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”
or “China”) adopted forceful and vigorous anti-pandemic measures to
effectively curb the spread of the Pandemic. Combined with its own
advantage of having a seamless full industry chain, China achieved a steady
economic recovery with a national economic growth of 2.3% compared with
last year, making it the only major economy in the world to realize positive
economic growth.

In respect of the solar power industry, the global solar power market
maintained a growth momentum amid the Pandemic. In 2020, global newly
installed capacity of solar power increased by 13% year-on-year to
approximately 130 gigawatts (GW), primarily attributable to the resumed
growth of China’s solar power market. In 2020, China ranked top in the world
for 8 consecutive years in terms of new solar installations which was 48.2
GW. China also ranked top in the world for 6 consecutive years in terms of
total solar installations which reached 253 GW. In China’s newly installed
capacity of solar power, distributed installations shared 15.5 GW, which
comprised 10.12 GW from home photovoltaic installations, representing
approximately 21% of the overall newly installed capacity in 2020 and
approximately 65.3% of the newly installed distributed solar power capacity in
2020. This marked home photovoltaic power generation is becoming
dominant in distributed solar power generation.

Through adopting robust development strategy, strengthening internal
management and actively implementing cost control measures, the Group
managed to significantly reduce its administrative expenses compared with
the same period of last year while its total business volume was increasing
during the Reporting Period. In addition, the Group focused on its principal
businesses and started to gradually resume the development of home
photovoltaic business in the second half of the year. Hebei Province has
become one of the several core areas in China’s home photovoltaic market
for its advantages such as having ample light resources, favorable rooftop
condition and higher level of customer acceptance. At present, the Group
develops its home photovoltaic business mainly in counties and cities in
Hebei Province. During the Reporting Period, the Group sold and installed
home photovoltaic systems with capacity of approximately 62.4 megawatts
(MW). In the course of business operation, we always consider from the
perspective of farmers’ interests and practically address farmers’ concerns, in
order to raise farmers’ income and help optimize the structure of energy
supply in rural areas.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERHE

During the Reporting Period, the Group realized a revenue of
RMB396,413,000, representing an increase of 168.8% from the same period
of 2019, which was primarily attributable to the growth of the home
photovoltaic business in the second half of the year and the addition of
investment in the public infrastructure construction for the Baoding Duhong
project by the Group during the Reporting Period. The Group recorded a
profit attributable to owners of the Company of RMB1,064,000. The
successful turnaround from loss to profit was primarily attributable to the
significant reduction in impairment provision for the Group’s financial and
contract assets for the Reporting Period.

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY IN 2021

As evident by the carbon reduction goals or plans put in place by different
countries, carbon neutrality has become a global consensus. In September
2020, the Chinese government announced at the 75th session of the General
Assembly of the United Nations that more stringent policies and measures will
be adopted in an effort to reach the peak of carbon dioxide emissions before
2030 and realize carbon neutrality before 2060. Further, at the Climate
Ambition Summit held in December 2020, the Chinese government
announced that by 2030, China will lower its carbon dioxide emissions per
unit of gross domestic product (GDP) by at least 65% compared with 2005,
increase the share of non-fossil fuels in primary energy consumption to
around 25%, and bring the total installed capacity of wind and solar power to
over 1,200 GW. On 15 March 2021, the Chinese government issued the
Outline for 14th Five-Year Plan (2021-2025) and Long-Range Objectives
Through the Year 2035, which proposes to increase the share of non-fossil
energy in total energy consumption to 20% in 2025 from 15.9% in 2020, and
requires a reduction in energy consumption and carbon dioxide emissions per
unit of GDP by 13.5% and 18%, respectively, during the 14th Five-Year Plan
period. The transition towards zero carbon energy sources, which is primarily
based on solar and wind power sources, will mainly require a leapfrog growth
in solar power plant installation.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ER®E

With the implementation of favorable industrial policy and the coming of an
era of solar grid parity, the solar power industry will hail a new phase of
development. According to the China Photovoltaic Industry Association,
China is projected to achieve an annual average national newly installed
capacity of solar power of 70 GW to 90 GW in the 14th Five-Year Plan period.
This demonstrates that the industry will maintain a momentum of rapid
growth. While mono distributed photovoltaic cells are small in size, they can
be installed in bulk, which will bring immeasurable and massive effect. On this
basis, they are anticipated to share 30% to a half of China’s newly installed
capacity of solar power.

In 2021, we will firmly grasp the development opportunities arising from
China’s commitment to peaking carbon dioxide emissions and achieving
carbon neutrality. On the foundation of our existing businesses and having
regard to the market situation, we will cautiously push forward the
development of home photovoltaic business and explore opportunities to
diversify the business into solar power-related industries, so as to optimize
the Group’s business structure. Meanwhile, we will expand our home
photovoltaic business to help reduce emissions of air pollutants, green the
rural ecological environment and raise farmers’ income. Furthermore, we will
continue to increase the capability of the Group’s smart energy cloud platform
in terms of long-distance monitoring, intelligent operation and maintenance as
well as big-data collection, in order to promote a sustainable business
development based on technology and create sustainable returns for
Shareholders.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | hereby extend my sincere gratitude to all
Shareholders, investors, customers, suppliers and business associates for
their continued support. | would also like to thank all employees for their
tireless efforts and contribution in 2020.

Wei Qiang
Chairman

31 March 2021
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OVERVIEW

The challenges faced by the global and Chinese economies due to the
outbreak of the Pandemic have continued through 2020, causing impacts
and effects to all industries at varying degrees. Fortunately, thanks to the
gradual control over the Pandemic in China since the second quarter and the
favorable yearly policy on solar power sector, China’s solar power industry
managed to bottom out from the trough and delivered an overall brilliant
performance in 2020. According to the Statistical Commmunique on the 2020
National Economic and Social Development published by the National Bureau
of Statistic of the PRC and an analysis by China Photovoltaic Industry
Association, in 2020, China had a total solar power generation capacity of
258.43 gigawatts (GW), representing an increase of 24.1%. The newly
installed capacity was 48.2 GW, representing a year-on-year increase of
60%. The annual solar power generation capacity amounted to 260.5 billion
kilowatt hours (kWh), representing a year-on-year increase of 16.2%. Its
contribution to China’s annual total power generation capacity grew by 0.4
percentage point to 3.5%.

The Group is principally engaged in smart energy business with focus on
solar power plants (including home photovoltaic systems) and public
infrastructure construction business in relation to the Baoding Donghu public-
private partnership (PPP) project. As the impact of the Pandemic on both
businesses was limited, the Group’s principal businesses maintained steady
development during the Reporting Period. During the Reporting Period, the
Group recorded a revenue of RMB396,413,000 (same period of 2019:
RMB147,460,000) and a profit attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB1,064,000 (same period of 2019: loss attributable to owners of the
Company of RMB264,522,000). Compared with the same period of last year,
the Group realized an increase in revenue of approximately 168.8% and a
turnaround to profit from loss. Such increase in revenue and turnaround from
loss to profit were primarily attributable to the following factors: (1) The Group
sustained steady development in its principal businesses during the Reporting
Period. The increase in revenue from both of the smart energy business and
public infrastructure construction business was relatively significant during the
Reporting Period. However, due to the fact that the public infrastructure
construction business had a relatively low gross profit margin, the Group
recorded a marginal growth in overall profit; and (2) the Group made an
impairment loss provision for financial and contract assets of RMB3,316,000
for the Reporting Period, which was significantly reduced when compared
with that of RMB316,169,000 for the same period of 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED N

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s smart energy business, positioned as comprehensive energy
services for the user side, mainly serves to meet the demands from
customers in industrial, commercial and residential sectors as well as public
institutions. The Group provides its customers with a full range of smart
energy comprehensive utilization services based on various energy resources
including electricity, heat and gas by leveraging on its smart energy cloud
platform (the “Cloud Platform”) with proprietary intellectual property rights, to
help customers improve their energy utilization efficiency and reduce energy
consumption cost, whereby building a diversified, clean and low-carbon
energy supply system.

The Group works to realize the above business objectives by integrating its
energy systems with internet technology. On one hand, the Group acquires
premium energy assets and projects by expanding its offline business in
comprehensive energy supply such as electricity, heat and gas, and
generates stable operation and investment returns from operating and
managing such assets. On the other hand, the Group uploads the real-time
data of electricity, heat and gas consumption of its industrial and commercial
enterprises and residential users to the Cloud Platform, integrates and
analyzes such big data, and taps into the energy consumption potential of
customers, so as to provide them with other full industrial chain services,
including multi-energy complementation of electricity, heat and gas, smart
operation and maintenance, energy trade, energy efficiency analysis, and
consultancy management to energy finance and energy big data.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s smart energy business mainly
represented its solar power business, covering the operation and
management of existing solar power plants and sales of home photovoltaic
systems. In particular, the Group had a total of 11 existing solar power plants
with an aggregate installed capacity of approximately 64 megawatts (MW),
which remained the same as the same period of last year. During the
Reporting Period, the Group had a total power generation capacity of
approximately 80,690 MWh (same period of 2019: 80,724 MWh). In terms of
home photovoltaic systems, the Group began to expand its home
photovoltaic business on a gradual basis since the second half of the year by
selling and installing home photovoltaic systems mainly in Hebei province.
During the Reporting Period, the Group sold and installed home photovoltaic
systems with capacity of approximately 62.4 MW. In addition, during the
Reporting Period, the Group provided distributed gas heating services to over
50 schools in Shanxi, Shandong and Hebei provinces with a heating area of
over 200,000 square meters. Also, the Group served more than 12,000
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED N

students in some colleges in Guangxi province by supplying domestic hot
water with air-source heat pumps. To ensure a reliable, stable and higher
efficient energy supply, the Group conducted long-distance monitoring and
intelligent operation and maintenance of the above solar power plants (including
home photovoltaic systems) and supply of distributed heating and hot water.
In addition, the Group owns and operate a 110 kilo-volt (kV) transformer
station in Hefeng Industrial Park in Xinjiang, and has concession rights to
operate the incremental electricity distribution network with voltage of up to
220KV in the park for a term of 30 years. Upon the settlement of enterprises
in the park, the Group will be able to provide them with exclusive power
supply and the related value-added services in the park.

During the Reporting Period, the smart energy business contributed
approximately RMB248,264,000 (same period of 2019: RMB116,806,000) to
the Group’s revenue, representing an increase of approximately 112.54%
from the same period of last year. Loss for the period amounted to
RMBS3,592,000 (same period of 2019: loss of RMB193,267,000), representing
a decrease in loss of approximately 98.14% from the same period of last
year. The increase in revenue and the decrease in loss were mainly
attributable to the increase in contribution of the home photovoltaic system
business to the Group’s revenue and profit during the Reporting Period, and
the significant reduction in provision for trade receivables for the Reporting
Period.

The public infrastructure construction business refers to the construction and
the related preliminary investment and post-construction, operation and
management of public infrastructure under the Baoding Donghu Project in
Baoding City of Hebei Province. During the Reporting Period, the public
infrastructure construction business contributed approximately
RMB148,149,000 (same period of 2019: RMB30,654,000) to the Group’s
revenue. Loss for the period amounted to approximately RMB3,582,000 (same
period of 2019: loss of approximately RMB48,915,000). The increase in
revenue was primarily attributable to the increased investment made by the
Group in the construction of public infrastructure under the Baoding Donghu
Project during the Reporting Period. The decrease in loss was primarily
attributable to the significant decrease in provision in respect of the Group’s
public infrastructure construction business which was RMB882,000 during
the Reporting Period as compared to that of RMB47,815,000 in the same
period of last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED N

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

2021 is the inaugural year of China’s 14th Five-Year (2021 to 2025) Plan. It is
also the first year of achieving grid parity in the solar power industry. Under
the target guidance of peaking carbon dioxide emissions and achieving
carbon neutrality and in the environment where cost of solar power generation
continues to decrease, the solar power industry will wean off the reliance on
national subsidies and enter into a pattern of endogenous development,
hailing a new development era.

To achieve the target of carbon dioxide emission peak and carbon neutrality,
the National Energy Administration has proposed an addition to the total wind
and solar power capacity of 120 GW in 2021, which implies that China’s
annual new installation plan for the new energy sector will surpass 100 million
kV for the first time and is 30% to 50% higher than the market expected
target of 80 to 90 GW. It is expected by the industry that solar power will take
up 80 GW of the new target. Should the target materializes, the newly
installed capacity is going to increase by nearly 152% compared to 2020.
Meanwhile, the relevant departments such as the National Development and
Reform Commission, the Ministry of Transport, the Ministry of Housing and
the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology etc., take action by
introducing guiding opinions to encourage collaboration and integration
among transport, construction and communication sectors. Solar power is
expected to gradually applied more diversely in transport, construction,
communication and other areas and enter into a phase of regulated and
standardized development.

In respect of home photovoltaic business, according to the latest consultation
policy of the National Energy Administration in February 2021, home
photovoltaic projects will still have subsidies in 2021 (the size of subsidy and
subsidy rate per unit are to be determined), and will not be counted in the
annual guaranteed grid-connected capacity and may be directly treated as
grid-connected consumption. In addition, in line with the rural vitalization
strategy of China and the Campaign on Brightening Rural Villages, bringing
solar power to the countryside will provide a trillion-worth segmented solar
power market. It can also optimize the structure of rural energy supply,
promote upgrading of rural energy consumption and increase income of
farmers.

In 2021, we will continue to adopt a robust development strategy under
which, we will focus on our principal businesses and further improve our
management process and implement strengthened cost control measures.
Besides, we will be committed to innovation in business, financial and
management models to explore a pattern suitable for developing the Group’s
home photovoltaic business, so as to deliver solar power to thousands of
homes, green the rural ecological environment, thereby achieving good social,
environmental and economic benefits, and making contribution to the
Campaign on Brightening Rural Villages.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and Gross Profit

The Group’s revenue and gross profit for the Reporting Period amounted to
RMB396,413,000 (same period of 2019: RMB147,460,000) and
RMB87,308,000 (same period of 2019: RMB78,674,000), respectively. The
gross profit margin was 22.0% (same period of 2019: 53.4%).

The increase in revenue compared with the same period of last year was
primarily attributable to the increase in revenue from sales of home
photovoltaic systems and the additional investment in the public infrastructure
construction business of the Group during the Reporting Period. The drop in
gross profit margin compared with the same period of last year was primarily
attributable to the change in structure of revenue, to which the contribution of
the public infrastructure construction business with a lower gross profit
margin increased.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group incurred selling and distribution expenses of RMB11,150,000
during the Reporting Period (same period of 2019: RMB1,740,000),
representing an increase of 540.80% as compared to last year, which was
primarily attributable to the increase in expansion scale of the smart energy
business, especially the home photovoltaic system business.

Administrative Expenses

The Group incurred administrative expenses of RMB40,688,000 during the
Reporting Period (same period of 2019: RMB72,212,000), representing a
decrease of 43.65% as compared to last year, primarily because of the
reversal of share option fee and the strengthening of cost control measures
by the Group to exercise strict control over costs and expenses during the
Reporting Period.

Impairment Losses on Financial and Contract
Assets

During the Reporting Period, the Group made a provision for impairment
losses on financial and contract assets of RMB3,316,000 (same period of
2019: provision for impairment losses of RMB316,169,000). The significant
decrease in the provision was mainly due to the significant decrease in the
provision on contract assets, trade and other receivables, and the partial
reversal of losses allowance for financial assets measured at amortised cost
during the Reporting Period.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2020
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Finance Expenses — Net

Net finance expenses amounted to RMB15,507,000 during the Reporting
Period (same period of 2019: RMB22,528,000), representing a decrease of
31.17% as compared to last year. Such decrease was primarily attributable
to the decrease in borrowings.

Income Tax (Expense)/Credit

Income tax expense amounted to RMB2,240,000 during the Reporting Period
(same period of 2019: income tax credit of RMB64,454,000), representing an
increase in expense of 103.48% as compared to last year. Such increase in
expense was primarily attributable to the decrease in deferred income tax
credit as a result of the decrease in impairment loss on assets.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or
Loss

The Group held three financial assets for investment purpose during the
Reporting Period, which were stated at fair value:

(1) The Group held shares in an unlisted investment fund company, Giga
Opportunities Fund Ltd., an independent third party, at the total
investment cost of HK$90,000,000 (equivalent to RMB78,859,000). On
23 December 2020, the Group requested the fund to redeem all the
shares thereof at the redemption amount of approximately
HK$82,088,011. The Group has received the proceeds from the
redemption before 31 December 2020. During the Reporting Period,
the fund generated a fair value gain of approximately HK$1,755,000
(equivalent to RMB1,562,000) (same period of 2019: gain of
approximately HK$1,747,000, equivalent to RMB1,537,000). After
completion of the redemption, the Group ceased to hold any interest in
the fund. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 23 December 2020.

(2)  The Group held shares in an unlisted investment fund, Yue Xiu Stable
Income Segregated Portfolio, an independent third-party investment
fund, at the investment cost of HK$88,800,000 (equivalent to
RMB77,806,000). On 17 December 2020, the Group requested the
fund to redeem 4,390.8282984 Class A shares thereof at the total
redemption amount of approximately HK$34,430,000. The Group has
received the proceeds from the redemption before 31 December 2020.
After completion of the redemption, the Group holds interest in the
remaining 6,935.6307632 Class A shares. For details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 17 December 2020.
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The fund had a fair value of HK$54,773,000 (equivalent to
RMB46,099,000) as at 31 December 2020 (as at 31 December 2019:
HK$89,452,000, equivalent to RMB80,130,000). During the Reporting
Period, the fund generated a fair value loss of approximately
HK$250,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB222,000) (same period
of 2019: loss of approximately HK$1,190,000, equivalent to
approximately RMB1,047,000). As at 31 December 2020, the carrying
value of the fund accounted for approximately 3.0% of the Group’s
total assets (as at 31 December 2019: 4.3%) and approximately 98.0%
of portfolio of financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (as at
31 December 2019: 51.0%).

(8) In 2018, the Group subscribed for unlisted exchangeable corporate
bonds in the principal amount of HK$10,000,000 (equivalent to
RMBS8,762,000) at a coupon rate of 13.5% per annum issued by
Supreme Trillion Development Limited, an independent third party, on
11 September 2018. In August 2019, the Group requested to redeem
the exchangeable corporate bonds. As at 31 December 2020, the
remaining principal amount of the exchangeable corporate bonds was
HK$715,000 (equivalent to RMB602,000) with a fair value of
HK$1,142,000 (equivalent to RMB962,000) (as at 31 December 2019:
HK$5,485,000, equivalent to RMB4,913,000).

During the Reporting Period, the exchangeable corporate bonds
generated a fair value gain of approximately HK$36,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB30,000) (same period of 2019: gain of
approximately HK$30,000, equivalent to approximately RMB26,000).
As at 31 December 2020, the carrying value of the exchangeable
corporate bonds accounted for approximately 0.1% of the Group’s
total assets (as at 31 December 2019: 0.3%) and approximately 2.0%
of the portfolio of financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (as
at 31 December 2019: 3.1%).

The Group’s investments primarily consist of long-term projects in the areas
of smart energy and public infrastructure construction, which generally take
extended periods of time to generate positive cash flows. In the event of any
unexpected event that has a negative impact on the business and prospects
of the smart energy industry, the Group’s overall business performance may
be affected. In light of the above, as part of the Group’s development plan
and risk control, the Board considered that the inclusion of investment in
financial assets would help diversify its asset and investment portfolio and
reduce the impact of any market risk on the overall business of the Group.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited  Annual Report 2020
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The strategy of the Group with respect to the investment in financial assets is
not to invest in speculative securities but mainly in investments with lower
risks, with the initial investments focusing on investment funds managed by
qualified and licensed investment managers or low-risk bonds. Such funds or
bonds invest in low-risk underlying assets with relative low price volatility, high
liquidity, short to medium term and/or stable income stream.

Liquidity, Financial and Capital Resources

Cash position

As at 31 December 2020, bank balances and cash amounted to
approximately RMB155,585,000 (31 December 2019: RMB98,616,000), of
which approximately RMB139,000 (31 December 2019: RMB66,388,000)
was restricted bank balances (mainly used for the expenses incurred under
the Baoding Donghu Project). Such increase in bank balances and cash was
primarily attributable to the full or partial recovery of investment in financial
assets.

Total current assets and current ratio

As at 31 December 2020, total current assets and current ratio (total current
assets/total current liabilities) were approximately RMB743,960,000 (31
December 2019: RMB925,343,000) and 6.27 (31 December 2019: 2.53),
respectively. The decrease in total current assets was primarily attributable to
the repayment of bank loans during the year and the increase in current ratio
was the result of the decrease in liabilities due to the repayment of bank
loans.

External borrowings and pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had external borrowings of
RMB235,400,000 (31 December 2019: RMB534,400,000), of which
RMB235,400,000 was secured by the machinery of solar power plants with a
carrying amount of RMB285,107,000 and the future receivable collection right
of certain subsidiaries (31 December 2019: RMB259,400,000 was secured
by the machinery of solar power plants with a carrying amount of
RMB302,146,000 and the future receivable collection right of certain
subsidiaries); and the borrowings secured by the guarantees provided by
related parties of the Group: nil (31 December 2019: RMB275,000,000).

AEBEHEREEREZRBRTRER
BREEES HIERENRERRKE 1)
HREETRAERFERELEMERZ
REETHERBRZES AEREES X
EFRENERIBHAERE RBMEES -
R H RS AR E A ROR 2 K R K
MEE -

NREBES HMERELRER
REMRR
RZEZTF+_A=+—8 BI&HK
WE&# A ARKE155585000T (= —LE+
—A=+—H: AR®098,616,0007T) » Hr :
ZRBOTEHK(EEARRERBIER X H)
HEARE13900T(ZE—NF+=A=
+—H: AR#66,388,0007T) - SRIT4HEHKLIR
SENEZHRARAKE 2 PRI D S B
BEMNKE -

MEEERAERAEBLER
m_7_7¢+ B=+—H8 R®PEEL
ErBt R (B EERE RPAELEH)
%) %IJ%@#,/\EMMS%OOOOE(—? NEFE+
—A=Z+—8: AR%0925343,0007T) %6.27
T-NF+_A=Z+—H:253) - iBHE
F,ugﬁﬁ’]/ﬁid TEAARFEERBRITERN
BORBLERENERARTEEERAR
B P

HMEENEEEH
T_EF+_A=+—8 AE£EHIH
= 1E A A R 8235400000t ( =& — L&
+=-A=+—8: AR#H534,400,0007C)
H i AR #235400000C A& THREEEE
A A R 285,107,000 7T K Y X B b 1% % &
ETWEB AR 2 KK EWRREZ KRR
BAEER(ZE-—NAF+ZA=Z+—8: A
R #250,400,000;t A #E FHREAEABE A AR
#302,146,0007C Ay Y (X B B U W k&5 T
B8 A Al 2 oK 2R FE W RN IE 2 U B R IR R 1
ER) UASEBAE A RHEREER G
FE(ZCZE-NFEFT+ZA=1T—H: AR®
275,000,0007C) °

u

DYI}

—~

7_
|\ ok

= \r

FEEFNEZRRERERAE  FIR 2020

15



16

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WD

Gearing Ratio A=

The table below sets forth the calculation of gearing ratio of the Group asat T X &I A EB R RB BN EEFLE XN
the dates indicated: HE

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—g-%% —T-nE
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-~8
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBFTT
Bank loans RITE N 235,400 534,400
Lease liabilities HEBE 11,939 15,144
Less: Cash and cash equivalents WoBEERBESEEY (155,446) (32,228)
Restricted cash ZIRH R4 (139) (66,388)
Net debt BEHF5 91,754 450,928
Total equity T B R 1,201,916 1,225,093
Total capital (Net debt plus total equity) BER (BB FEINERERE) 1,293,670 1,676,020
Gearing ratio (Net debt/total capital) BELER(BERFETBELX) 71% 26.9%

As at 31 December 2020, the gearing ratio of the Group was 7.1%,
representing a decrease of 19.8 percentage points as compared to 26.9% as
at 31 December 2019. The decrease was primarily attributable to the
repayment of loans during the Reporting Period.

Long-term and short-term debts accounted for 89.6% and 10.4%,
respectively (as at 31 December 2019: 44.0% and 56.0%), of which the
borrowings of RMB235,400,000 in respect of solar power plants were
gradually repaid by the proceeds from electricity sales. Therefore, the Group
was not exposed to any significant insolvency risk.
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Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from external borrowings. During
the Reporting Period, the interest rates of external borrowings ranged from
5.23% to 5.46% per annum (same period of 2019: 5.39% to 7.00% per
annum). In particular, the interests on the borrowings for the Baoding Donghu
Project were borne by the government, with no exposure to any interest rate
risk thereon. The interest rate applicable to the borrowings for solar power
plants was 10% to 15% over the same period base lending rate of the
People’s Bank of China. The source of risk lies in the fluctuations in China’s
interest rate policies. Nevertheless, the Group expects that the interest rate
risk will have no material impact on the Group’s consolidated profit or loss.

Exchange Risk

As the Group’s principal activities are carried out in the PRC, the Group’s
transactions are mainly denominated in Renminbi, which is not freely
convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign exchange transactions involving
Renminbi must take place through the People’s Bank of China or other
institutions authorized to buy and sell foreign exchange. The exchange rates
adopted for foreign exchange transactions are the rates of exchange quoted
by the People’s Bank of China that are determined largely by supply and
demand.

The Group currently does not have a policy on foreign currency risk as it had
minimal transactions denominated in foreign currencies during the Reporting
Period, and the impact of foreign currency risk on the Group’s operation is
minimal.

Investment Commitments

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had investment commitments of
RMB101,600,000 (31 December 2019: RMB101,600,000), which were
mainly the Group’s obligations of capital contribution to its associate Longyao
(Beijing) Clean Energy Technology Company Limited* (2L R)E 2Rkl
HAEMRATR) (“Longyao Beijing”) that shall be fulfiled before 31 December
2021.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities (31 December 2019: Nil).
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION, INVESTMENT AND
DISPOSAL

Material Acquisition and Investment

Since Shengli Oilfield Lifeng Industrial Group Co., Ltd.* (BF|h A F|LE EE
B AR A7) (“Shengli Oilfield Lifeng”) and Shandong Hailifeng Clean Energy
Joint Stock Co., Ltd.* (U E/ESFILE Z2EERI (5 B PR A 7)) (‘Hailifeng”) failed
to pay the repurchase consideration of RMB60,000,001 to Beijing Longguang
Energy Technology Co., Ltd* (JbmFEXEEREHEARAF]) ( “Beijing
Longguang”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) in accordance with
the repurchase agreement (the “Repurchase Agreement”), in order to settle
the outstanding consideration (the “Debt”) under the Repurchase Agreement,
on 10 August 2020, Shengli Qilfield Lifeng, Hailifeng and Shandong
Shengfeng Heating Co., Ltd* (ILRARZEHEREEAT) (‘Shengfeng
Heating”) entered into a settlement agreement (the “Settlement Agreement”)
with Beijing Longguang, pursuant to which Shengli Oilfield Lifeng and
Hailifeng agreed to settle the Debt by way of Hailifeng transferring 90% of the
interest in Shengfeng Heating held by it to Beijing Longguang at the
consideration of RMB60,000,000.

Upon completion of the transfer under the Settlement Agreement, Shengfeng
Heating will be owned as to 90% by the Group and as to 10% by Hailifeng.
Notwithstanding that Shengfeng Heating will be owned as to 90% by the
Group, the Company currently considered that the transfer is for settling the
Debt and therefore, from accounting perspective, Shengfeng Heating shall
not be accounted as a subsidiary of the Group and its results shall not be
consolidated in the financial statements of the Group.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 10
August 2020.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material acquisition and
investment during the Reporting Period.

Material Disposal

The Group had no material disposal during the Reporting Period.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

The Group had 269 employees as at 31 December 2020 (31 December
2019: 85 employees). The increase in the number of employees was primarily
due to the expansion of the Group’s home photovoltaic business. Employees
were remunerated according to the nature of their positions, individual
qualification, performance, work experience and market trends, and subject
to periodic reviews based on their performance. Meanwhile, to attract and
retain high-caliber employees to ensure smooth operation and cater for the
Group’s constant expansion, the Group offers competitive remuneration and
benefit packages to employees at different levels, including discretionary
bonuses, various training programmes, sponsorship for further study and
share option schemes for the benefit of the directors and eligible employees
of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the smart energy and public infrastructure
construction businesses. The smart energy business, which mainly comprises
the operation of solar power plants and sales of home photovoltaic systems,
is an environmentally friendly business. With the focus on the smart energy
business, the Group strive to develop clean energy sources and is committed
to protecting the environment and mitigating the impact of its operations on
the environment. The Group’s public infrastructure construction business
represents the Baoding Donghu PPP project. The project is to develop a new
functional urban area in Baoding city highlighted with ecological culture. The
project comprises a lake district with an area of 600 mu, park and green
space with an area of 250,000 square meters, Guan Hanqging theater and
museum with an area of approximately 70,000 square meters and urban
protective green belt with an area of 310,000 square meters. The project
connects to public and infrastructural facilities such as the municipal road of 4.68
square kilometers, educational facilities for primary and secondary schooals,
and public stations. It will improve the urban function of Baoding city, enrich
the cultural asset of the city, and enrich the cultural life of the citizens while
bringing benefits to the environment.
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In the course of developing its smart energy and public infrastructure
construction businesses, the Group should mainly comply with the
requirements and restrictions under the following environmental laws and
regulations, namely, the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Appraising of Environment Impacts and the Regulations on the
Administration of Environmental Protection of Construction Projects. The
Group has paid consistent attention to complying with the laws and
regulations on environmental protection. During the Reporting Period, the
Group complied with the relevant laws and regulations on environmental
protection that have a material impact on the Group.

We also recognize the importance of maintaining mutually beneficial
relationships with stakeholders, including our shareholders and investors,
government organs, employees, customers, suppliers and local communities.
Their support is vital to the Group’s sustainable development. We pay close
attention to the needs of all our stakeholders, offer solutions to addressing
their needs and continuously interact with them in ways that are conducive to
the sustainable growth of the Company, the industry and the community. For
details of the Group’s environmental, social and governance report for 2020,
please refer to the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of the
Company which is expected be issued before the end of May 2021.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group operates its businesses mainly in Mainland China. The
development and operation of the Group’s smart energy and public
infrastructure construction businesses in the PRC are mainly regulated by the
local laws and regulations on renewable energy, electricity supply and
construction projects, as well as various policies and industry guidelines
issued by such local governments. There was no incident of non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that had or would have a significant
impact on the Company during the Reporting Period.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2020
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Reporting Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are smart energy business, public
infrastructure construction and the related preliminary investment and post-
construction operation management business, with gradual expansion and
diversification to other clean energy business. The principal activities and
other particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note
19 to the audited consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in the
“Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss” on pages 89 to 90 of this annual
report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and assets, liabilities and equity of the
Group for the last five financial years and the financial key performance
indicators of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out on page 204 of
this annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The business review for the Reporting Period and an indication of likely future
development in the business of the Company are set out in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
of this annual report. Our risk management system and a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that the Company may be facing are provided
in the “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

EEMARZESTERERAKEARARS
HENREREAMBEERE -

FEXRK

AEENIZXBREBRRER 2R
REBRABAMPRENRPERELET R
XK YRS HRMEEEMBFRERER -
ARBETEMBRANEIEXEBREMFFS
BRAFREBREAMBEWMKRME19-

£y

ARBERAHEHENEERN A FRE
BEEF0EMREBHER] -

MBHRE

AEBRBEREMBRFRENGZEEREANUR
BE RABELREaOBERASERARS
HENEIEMBESEHNANFRE204E - 1t
BELTERAFREERGEVBTRERL

—#5 -

EBXOERRE

ARBRABERENEBLBEL B R EE
HENEBEROFAAIRAFRIEZFER
SIREERERWESNIME A - MR
BEBRRLGIALARRR A EHEERNEEAR
RTHPARERABERAFHENERENR

WE] e

KK E
SESUTRARBE-_E-_FF+-A=

T BRLEFERNRARE(ZE-N%F:
&) -

BEFMNEZERERERAT  FIR 2020

21



22

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEGRE

DIVIDENDS POLICY

The Company adopted a dividend policy (the “Policy”) which can be
downloaded from the Company’s website www.longitech.hk.

1.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited

Purpose

The Policy is made under the premises that the Company fully
considers and guards the interests of all Shareholders, and starts from
actual business operation, and on the basis of the Company’s various
expenditures, maintaining financial stability and autonomy, and realizing
the Company’s sustained, stable and healthy development.

Policy

2.1

2.2

2.3

Under the Policy, the Board will consider factors such as the
Company’s annual performance, cash flow performance, future
financing needs, major capital expenditures, business operating
model, industrial development trends, the Company’s
development stage and strategic planning etc,. in order to
decided on cash dividend or stock dividend.

Subject to applicable laws and regulations and the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of
Association”), the Company may pay out cash dividends when
the Company’s distributable profit is positive and the Company’s
cash flow can cover the Company’s daily operation and
sustainable development requirement. When the Company pays
out cash dividend, the proportion of cash dividend should be or
not less than 20%-50% of the given year’s distributable profit
attributable to the Shareholder. This should serve as a general
but not mandatory standard for the Board when considering
paying out dividend.

In complying with the requirements of the applicable laws, rules
and regulations and the Articles of Association and in order to
ensure the Company in maintaining a reasonable share capital
and shareholding structure, in the case the Company’s
attributable profit is positive, the Company may issue scrip
dividend, so as to reward the Shareholders for investment, to
share the profit of the Company and to maintain the valuation of
the Company’s stock within a reasonable range.
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3. Review

The Board will review the Policy on a regular basis to ensure that the
Policy is in line with market practice and supports the Company’s
continuous development strategy.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to ascertain the entitlements to attend and vote at the forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on Friday, 28 May 2021 (the “Meeting”),
the transfer books and register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 25 May 2021 to Friday, 28 May 2021, both days inclusive,
during which period no share transfers can be registered. In order to qualify
for attending the Meeting, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office of the Company, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Monday, 24 May 2021.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 14 to the audited consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

Details of interest-bearing borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2020
are set out in note 30 to the audited consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no equity-linked agreements were
entered into by the Group, or existed during the Reporting Period.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s issued share capital during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 29(a) to the audited consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

ISSUE OF SHARES

A review and discussion of the issue of Shares for the Reporting Period are
provided in the “Management Discussion and Analysis”.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS AND ENVIRONMENTAL
POLICIES

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the operations of the Group.

In the course of developing the smart energy and solar energy businesses,
the Group shall comply with the requirements and restrictions under the
environmental laws and regulations, in particular of: the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China (1 A R A BB ERE)R),
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Water Pollution (FRZE A RHEFEEKITEMAE), the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution (72
#= A RHEFBE AR 5L 4)%), the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste (F2 £ A
R LN B E B2 RE Y5 2 IRE R A 0%), the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Appraising of Environment Impacts (FF 2 A R R IE 2 2 5(E)%)
and the Regulations on the Administration of Environmental Protection of
Construction Projects (%18 HIRIZ(REE IR KM]). The Group affirms the
importance of complying with the laws and regulations on environmental
protection. During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with the
laws and regulations on environmental protection that are of importance to
the Group.

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

The Group did not have any significant post-period events after 31 December
2020 and up to the date of this report.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands where the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro
rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Reporting
Period are set out in note 29(b) to the audited consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively in this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity Shareholders was RMB1,094,823,000 (31 December
2019: RMB1,177,593,000).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group donated distributed gas heating
equipment to four kindergartens in Gaobeidian City of Hebei Province with a
value of approximately RMB190,000 (2019: Nil).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Connected Transaction

The Group didn’t carried out any connected transaction (other than
connected transactions that were fully exempted under Chapter 14A of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) during the Reporting Period.

Continuing Connected Transactions

The Group carried out the following continuing connected transactions (other
than continuing connected transactions that are fully exempted under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) during the Reporting Period:

(1

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited

First Master Agreement and Second Master
Agreement in relation to the supply of electricity

First Master Agreement

On 10 July 2017, Gao Bei Dian City Guangshuo New Energy Group
Co. Ltd. (M[ETMHEFEREBBERAF) (‘Guangshuo”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
master agreement (“First Master Agreement”) with Longjitaihe
Property Co., Ltd. (‘Longjitaihe Property”, [ EZZFEZEAR A7) in
respect of the continuing connected transactions between members of
the Group and Longjitaihe Property and its subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the terms of the First Master Agreement, members of the
Group will lease roof top and related storage and operation spaces
from Longjitaihe Property and its subsidiaries for the installation of the
solar power plant facilities of the Group, and upon the solar power
plants get connected to the grid, supply electricity to Longjitaihe
Property and its subsidiaries.

No rent is payable by Guangshuo in respect of the leasing of roof tops
and other operational spaces from Longjitaihe Property. This
arrangement is in-line with common market practice and in-line with the
agreement commonly adopted by Guangshuo with independent third
party customers under similar circumstances.
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In respect of the supply of electricity by Guangshuo to Longjitaihe
Property, the fees will be based on the unit price per kWh as published
by the Provincial Price Bureau of which the power station projects are
located at (which is subject to adjustment from time to time), with a
discount of no more than 20% being offered in comprehensive
consideration of the free rental of roof top and the electricity usage of
the landlord, etc. The transactions under such electricity purchase
agreement are conducted in the usual and ordinary course of business
of the Group on normal commercial terms, and under equivalent
conditions, the terms and consideration are similar to those offered to
independent third party customers.

The First Master Agreement has a term of 20 years for the leases and a
term of 25 years for the supply of electricity. The annual caps under the
First Master Agreement in respect of the supply of electricity to
Longjitaihe Property during the term of the agreement will not exceed
RMB10,000,000.

Longjitaihe Property is a company controlled and owned by Mr. Wei
Shaojun, a non-executive Director and the controlling Shareholder of
the Company. The transactions contemplated under the First Master
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 10 July 2017, Guangshuo entered into another master agreement (the
“Second Master Agreement”) with Longjitaihe Group Co., Ltd.
(“Longjitaihe Group Limited”, BERMEEER A7) (formerly
known as “Longjitaihe Industrial Co., Ltd.”, R EHZMEXER A7)
and Lightway Green Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (“Lightway Green
Energy”), in respect of the continuing connected transactions between
members of the Group and Longjitaihe Group Limited, Lightway Green
Energy and their subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the terms of the Second Master Agreement, members of
the Group will lease roof top and related storage and operation spaces
from Longjitaihe Group Limited and Lightway Green Energy and their
subsidiaries for the installation of the solar power plant facilities of the
Group, and upon the solar power plants get connected to the grid,
supply electricity to Longjitaihe Group Limited and Lightway Green
Energy and their subsidiaries.
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No rent is payable by Guangshuo in respect of the leasing of roof tops
and other operational spaces from Longjitaihe Group Limited and
Lightway Green Energy under the Second Master Agreement. This
arrangement is in-line with common market practice and in-line with the
agreement commonly adopted by Guangshuo with independent third
party customers under similar circumstances.

In respect of the supply of electricity by Guangshuo, the fees will be
based on the unit price per kWh as published by the Provincial Price
Bureau of which the power station projects are located at (which is
subject to adjustment from time to time), with a discount of no more
than 20% being offered in comprehensive consideration of the free
rental of roof top and the electricity usage of the landlord, etc. The
transactions under such electricity purchase agreement are conducted
in the usual and ordinary course of business of the Group on normal
commercial terms, and under equivalent conditions, the terms and
consideration are similar to those offered to independent third party
customers.

The Second Master Agreement has a term of 20 years for the leases
and a term of 25 years for the supply of electricity. The annual caps
under the Second Master Agreement in respect of the supply of
electricity to Longjitaihe Group Limited and Lightway Green Energy
during the term of the agreement will not exceed RMB8,000,000.

Longjitaihe Group Limited and Lightway Green Energy are companies
respectively controlled and owned by Mr. Wei Shaojun and Mr. Wei
Qiang, both are the Directors of the Company. The transactions
contemplated under the Second Master Agreement constituted
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
27 April 2017, 9 June 2017, 10 July 2017 and the circular dated 22
May 2017.

The transaction amounts under the First Master Agreement and the
Second Master Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2020 were
approximately RMB1,280,000 and RMB7,418,000, respectively.
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In October 2018, Guangshuo completed the acquisition from Baoding
Lightway Green Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (“Baoding Lightway”, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Lightway Green Energy) a 10.2 MW
distributed solar power plant located at the Lightway Industrial Park,
Hebei Province, the PRC. Upon completion, Guangshuo supplied
electricity to Baoding Lightway, and Baoding Lightway has undertaken
that its annual minimum electricity consumption is not less than 10
million degrees per year (except the normal physical decline of 0.7%
per year), otherwise Baoding Lightway should pay the difference to
Guang Shuo. During the Reporting Period, Baoding Lightway has
fulfilled the above-mentioned minimum electricity consumption
compensation commitment. The transaction amount of electricity sold
by Guangshuo to Baoding Lightway is included in the Second Master
Agreement.

Implications under the Listing Rules

As the annual caps in respect of the continuing connected transactions
under the First Master Agreement and the Second Master Agreement
on an aggregate bases are expected to be more than 0.1% but less
than 5%, the First Master Agreement and the Second Master
Agreement are subject to the reporting, announcement and annual
review requirements and exempted from the independent Shareholders’
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Loan Renewal Agreement and 2020 Renewal
Agreement

On 18 June 2019, the Company entered into a loan renewal agreement
(the “Loan Renewal Agreement”) with Longjitaihe Group Limited,
pursuant to which the Company has agreed to provide through the
Company or any of its subsidiaries to Longjitaihe Group Limited or any
one of its subsidiaries, and/or third parties designed by Longjitaihe
Group Limited, collectively or individually, a revolving loan in a maximum
principal amount of up to RMB45,000,000 for the availability period
commenced from 13 June 2019 and ended on 12 June 2020. As the
Loan Renewal Agreement has expired on 12 June 2020, the Company
entered into the 2020 renewal agreement (the “2020 Renewal
Agreement”) with Longitaihe Industry on 12 June 2020 to renew the
Loan Renewal Agreement for another one year from 13 June 2020 to
12 June 2021, with the maximum principal amount of the revolving loan
adjusted from RMB45,000,000 to RMB18,000,000.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
13 June 2019 and 12 June 2020.
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The maximum transaction amount under the Loan Renewal Agreement
for the period from 1 January 2020 to 12 June 2020 was approximately
RMB43,563,000.

The maximum transaction amount under the 2020 Renewal Agreement
for the period from 13 June 2020 to 31 December 2020 was
approximately RMB17,787,000.

As at the date of the Loan Renewal Agreement, Longjitaihe Group
Limited was held as to 99% by Mr. Wei Shaojun, the non-executive
Director and the controlling Shareholder of the Company. Accordingly,
the Loan Renewal Agreement, the 2020 Renewal Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

As the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the transactions under
the Loan Renewal Agreement and the 2020 Renewal Agreement
exceeded 0.1% but were less than 5%, the transactions were only
subject to reporting, annual review and announcement requirements
but were exempt from the circular and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions set out above and have confirmed that the
continuing connected transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; (i) on normal commercial
terms or better; and (jii) according to the agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued their unqualified letter containing
the auditor’s findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions above-mentioned in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
submitted by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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Save for the continuing connected transactions disclosed above, the
Board is of the view that those material related party transactions
disclosed in note 35 to the audited consolidated financial statements as
contained in this annual report do not constitute “connected
transactions” or “continuing connected transactions”, as the case may
be, that are subject to the reporting, announcement or independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the above
connected transactions.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 49%
(2019: 68%) of the total sales for the Reporting Period and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to 37% (2019: 21%) of the total sales
for the Reporting Period. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 56% (2019: 47%) of the total purchases for the
Reporting Period and purchases from the Group’s largest supplier included
therein amounted to 17% (2019: 19%) of the total purchases for the
Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the number of issued shares) had any
interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands that employees are valuable assets. The Group
provides competitive remuneration package to attract and motivate the
employees. The Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of
employees and makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market
standard.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good relationship
with its suppliers and customers to fuffil its immediate and long-term goals.
To maintain its brand competitiveness and dominant status, the Group aims
at delivering constantly high standards of quality in the products and service
to its customers. During the Reporting Period, there was no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its suppliers and/or customers.

BREXNFBEBRNFEBERSIN EF
CRE AFRIMAKEEZLES VKR
KM ESBMEENZSEREHR TR S
WAEKAEEST EMRAF14AZE SR
B RENBYREMERENEE
RPIXFEBER S (BBERME)
AAREH EMBEER HEST LA
FUUAZERHEERTE °

TEEFREER

AREERNAREFAEHEERMGARSE M
M GEE R X 49% (B — fL5F : 68%) © H (A
BAREFMEREEGAREHEABHEES
B37% (=B — N F:21%) AEFH A A K
HEEEMERBRGEAREHHDARBERY
56%(ZZF—NF :47%) EFRAAEEZK
HERMERBEOARSHMARKERED
17% (ZF—HF : 19%) °

RABEHRR EFTAEFNEMEZTHE
ASEMBRR (REEMRAMNEECHEITERN
BESNALE)MERAEEAKRTPL MK
FER PR T4

HES EFRHAEFANEE

AEEROREREEEAE  AUtRHAR
FHANFHEBEARSIRABESRS - A&H
EEHRNSEENFHEE INBERER
R ARBAN A MIBKFE -

AEBETHAOEHBERNZSPERRTBE
HEXRHEINBEREEEENEZME - A5 E
RERFBERBNRFIRIEWMG  FHER
EFRHEREN—NBEER MR - RA
WEME AREREERE R LTI EHE
EEMEEME RN FE -

BEFMNEZERERERAT  FIR 2020

31



32

REPORT OF DIRECTORS

EEERE )
DIRECTORS BEE

The Directors during the Reporting Period and currently are as follows: NAREHBELREINESOT
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Wei Qiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) RB G E(EEFRTHAEE)

Mr. Yuen Chi Ping (resigned on 16 September 2020)

Dr. Liu Zhengang (resigned on 29 January 2021)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Wei Shaojun

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Han Qinchun
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John
Mr. Han Xiaoping

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association, at the
forthcoming Meeting to be held, Mr. Wei Qiang and Mr. Han Xiaoping will
retire from office as Directors, and being eligible, have offered themselves for
re-election as Directors. At the forthcoming Meeting, ordinary resolutions will
be proposed to re-elect Mr. Wei Qiang and Mr. Han Xiaoping.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND OTHER
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and other senior management are
disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received a written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his independence in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers that all
independent non-executive Directors are being considered to be independent
by reference to the factors stated in the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the service contracts of the Directors, the Company has not
entered into any contract with any individual, firm or body corporate to
manage or administer the whole or any substantial part of any business of the
Company during the Reporting Period.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 37 to the
audited consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) of the
Company is set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument policy and structure
for all remuneration of the Directors and senior management of the Group,
having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market practices. The remunerations of the Directors are
determined with reference to the economic situation, the market condition,
the responsibilities and duties assumed by each Director as well as their
individual performance.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, and five highest paid individuals
during the Reporting Period are set out in notes 7 and 37 to the audited
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCHEMES

Details of the retirement and employee benefits schemes of the Company are
set out in note 7 to the audited consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.
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CHANGE TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change to information in
respect of a Director after the interim report for the six-month ending 30 June
2020 is set out below:

1. Since 18 September 2020, Dr. Han Qinchun has resigned as an
independent non-executive director of Century Ginwa Retail Holdings
Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 0162).

2. Since 25 September 2020, Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John has resigned as
an independent non-executive director of Perfect Optronics Limited (listed
on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8311); and since 14 October
2020, Mr. Wong has resigned as an independent non-executive
director of Xinjiang Xinxin Mining Industry Co., Ltd. (listed on the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 3833).

3. As at 31 December 2020, Dr. Liu Zhengang ceased to be the vice
president of the Company and no longer received any salary; and since
29 January 2021, Dr. Liu has resigned as an executive Director of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, for the Reporting Period, there was no change to
information which is required to be disclosed and has been disclosed by
Directors pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 35 to the audited consolidated financial statements
and in the section headed “Connected Transaction and Continuing
Connected Transactions” in this annual report, neither the Directors nor any
of the entities connected with the Directors had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to the business of the Group subsisting at any time during the
Reporting Period or at the end of the year to which the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the
Reporting Period was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their spouses or children under
the age of 18 were granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt
securities of the Company or any other body corporate or had exercised any
such right.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors or
any of their respective associates had engaged in or had any interest in any
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

Pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the following current Directors
held share interests and/or directorships in companies engaged in businesses
which compete or likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group:

Mr. Wei Shaojun holds share interests and directorships in Longjitaihe Group
Limited (together with its subsidiary, the “Longjitaihe Group”), and Mr. Wei
Qiang works as a senior management in Longjitaihe Group, Longjitaihe Group
engages in businesses of public infrastructure construction business. As
smart energy business constitutes the Group’s principal business activities,
the Group currently has no plan to further expand public infrastructure
construction business after the Baoding Donghu Project is complete. On this
basis, it does not exist any material competition between the businesses of
the Group and those of the Longjitaihe Group.

Each of the Directors is aware of his fiduciary duties as a Director of the
Company which require, among other things, that he acts for the benefit and
in the best interests of the Company and avoids any conflicts between his
duties as a Director and his personal interest.

As the Board is independent of the boards of the aforesaid companies and
maintains three independent non-executive Directors, the Group operates its
businesses independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of the
aforesaid companies.
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The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
on 22 November 2011.

1.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain the
eligible persons, to provide additional incentive to them and to promote
the success of the business of the Group.

Participants

The Board is authorised, at their absolute discretion and subject to the
terms of the Share Option Scheme, to grant options to subscribe the
Shares to, inter alia, any employees (full-time and part-time), directors,
consultants, advisors, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners or service providers of the Group.

Total number of Shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed
10% of the number of the issued Shares of the Company as at the
Listing Date. On 12 June 2018, the Company had refreshed the
scheme mandate limit of the Share Option Scheme to 10% of the
aggregate number of the Shares of the Company in issue as at that
date, i.e. a total of 137,842,200 Shares, representing 9.28% of the
number of the Shares of the Company in issue as at the date of this
report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted to any grantee (including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the Share Option Scheme, in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in
issue.

Period within which the Shares must be taken
up under an option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may
determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant
subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.
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6. Minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

The Board may in its absolute discretion set a minimum period for
which an option must be held and performance targets that must be
achieved before an option can be exercised.

7. Time of acceptance and the amount payable
on acceptance of the option

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount
payable by the grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance of
the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00.

8. Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price solely
determined by the Board and notified to a participant and shall not be
lower than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the
option; (i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option; and (i) the
nominal value of a Share on the date of grant of the option.

9. Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme became unconditional on the Listing Date
and shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing
on 22 November 2011, subject to the early termination provisions
contained in the Share Option Scheme. As at 31 December 2020, the
remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is approximately 11 months.

The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme does not exceed 10% of the shares
in issue as at 12 June 2018, the date on which the Company had refreshed
the scheme mandate limit of the Share Option Scheme. The Company may
at any time refresh such limit, subject to the Shareholders’ approval and issue
of a circular in compliance with the Listing Rules, provided that the total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under all the share option schemes
of the Company does not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue at the time.
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As at 31 December 2020, details of the movement of the share optionsunder R-ZE-_ZTF+ - A=+ —H  BERET2
the Share Option Scheme are as follows: BETEEBERELSHFBELT :
Number of Share Options
BREHE
Closing
price Adjusted
preceding exercise
date of  Exercise price Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed
grant price  (HKS per Asat duringthe duringthe duringthe  during the As at
Name and category of (HKSper (HKSper  Share)  1January Reporting Reporting Reporting  Reporting 31 December
participants Date of grant Exercise period share)  Share)  (Note 1) 2020  Period  Period  Period Period 2020
Bt L
RN ke 7
WnE fEE (BR R AEE  ARE  ARE AgE -“BoRE
B (BR (§ﬂ&‘ Bn) —2-RE HEAA BEA HER BER +=A
SEEREARER BHAH TEAE Br)  Bx) (W&E1) -A-H Bl i i %% =1-8
Directors
EF
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping (Note 2) - 26 January 2018 2 January 201 9 to 25 January 2028 (Note 3 1.711 21382 17796 11,008,998 - - - (11,008,998) -
REFRE (o) “E-\f-A=+xB Z=%- :ES
=3 )\F-A- AR
Dr. Liu Zhengang 19 January 2017 19 January 2018 to 21 November 2021 1.603 22 1.8364 798,667 - - - (399,334) 399,333
(Note 3)
BEREL “R-LF-ATAR CE-\E-AfAAE
ZE--F+-A=+-A (M)
14 September 2018 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2026 (Note 3) 2 2 N/A 8,200,000 - - — (1,600,000 1,600,000
“Z-\FnATEA -2 )LEEH HEZZ- ¥ TER
ZAZ AW
Dr. Han Qinchun 26 January 2018 % January 2018 to 25 January 2028 1M 2132 1.779% 359,400 - - - - 359,400
BREAL “F-N\F-B-tRE ZT-NF-AC +/\E§
“Z-\f-R=+xH
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John 26 January 2018 26 January 2018 to 25 January 2028 1.711 2132 1.779% 359,400 - - - - 359,400
BRBRL ZZ-N\F-A=+R”B ZE-\f-A=tABZE
“Z-\f-A=+%A
Mr. Han Xiaoping 26 January 2018 26 January 2018 to 25 January 2028 1.711 2132 1.779%6 359,400 - - - - 359,400
BRTRE E-N\F-A=+”B ZE-NE-A-f+rRZE
“E-\F-A-t&H
Sjubtotal 16,085,865 (13,008,332 3,077,533
/ \ﬁ
Other eligible persons 19 January 2017 19 January 2017 to 21 November 2021 1.603 22 18364 11,141,400 - - —  (11,141,400) -
(Note 3
AR ERAT “Z—tF-AthA Z—+E-f1h
S Bl S ﬂ + B (Mz3)
26 January 2018 26 January 20 910 25 January 2028 (Note 3) ~ 1.711 2132 17796 15,412,595 - - - (6605398 8,807,197
—F-\F-A=1+xAH —‘§_jl A-t~HZ
/\i AZ+hA(KH3)
26 January 2018 26 July 2018 to 25 January 2028 1.711 2132 17796 2,336,100 - - - (2,336,100) -
ZE-\E-A=+R”B ZE-N\EtR-fAHE
“E-\F-A-tRH
11 May 2018 1 February 2019 to 10 May 2028 242 24 N/A 780,000 - - - - 780,000
—2-\§¥RAt-H ,15— #-R-R% TER
“Z-\¥RA+A
14 September 2018 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2026 (Note 3) 2 2 N/A 32,245,000 - - — (18,085,000) 14,160,000
“2-)\fhAtEA  —B-A%MA-RE ) FER
—E-AF=A=t+—-A(K#F3)
Subtotal 61,915,095 - - — (38,167,898) 283,747,197
it
Toti\ 78,000,960 - - — (51,176,230) 26,824,730
&
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Notes:

Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, adjustments are required for the
exercise price and the number of Shares available for subscription under the
outstanding share options as a result of the Company’s rights issue, with effect from
22 March 2018. The exercise prices of the share options granted on 19 January 2017
and 26 January 2018 were adjusted to HK$1.8364 per Share and HK$1.7796 per
Share, respectively. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 21 March 2018.

Among these 11,008,998 share options, 5,504,499 share options are beneficially
owned by Mr. Yuen Chi Ping, and the remaining 5,504,499 share options are held by
Dragon Legend Global Limited, which is beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Yuen Chi
Ping.

These share options granted will be subject to vesting in three tranches within three
years. The vesting of share options is based on the fulfilment of certain performance
targets of the Group, including but not limited to the financial performance of the
Group as well as the grantee’s individual performance.

During the Reporting Period, the reversal of expense arising from share-based
payment transactions previously recognised as part of employee benefit
expense was RMB12,879,000 (2019: expense arising from share-based
payment transactions recognised of RMB3,068,000).

B -

RIEERET AR ARARRETHAR -
TEERABEEARTEERERE 2RO
BAFELAZ BT/ \F=A=+t=ZHE4E
WM DRR=_FT—CtF—ATABR=ZT—N\F
— AT BB LENEREZTEEEAE
BE’R1.8364B T R EFR1.7796B T - BHAFIB
A2EAARBHE-_ZS—NEF=A=-+—HH

N

# % 11,008,998 1% & fiX 1 = - 5,504,499 % & f% 42
HRETFELEESZEHR @ 55 H5,504,499 % 1
[i% # A Dragon Legend Global Limited#% & + #% A &)
HREGFAEES2EHRE -

ZERKZBERESKRSFHARI =ZHEE - B
BRENGEBHDAERABASENETRRARE
o EERETRRAKENMBERRARARA
M EA KRR -

RARELM  BEAMEAERERERFAIHD
—HBDETHERNABRG IO ELER
fE B @ A R %12,879,0007t (= & — L4 ¢
EERNUABRNEITORIEERIARKE
3,068,0007T) °
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors or
chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including any interests which they are taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO) or were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or were
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

() Interest in the Shares and underlying Shares of
Company

EERTEARABREAR
= R AR L B R £ - A3
B R %5 HA R
%R

RZEZZEF+_RA=+—HBH EFBFHAEQ
Al EETBABR AR E 3 E [ HEEE
(EERBREPESNER 75 KB E &H
((BERMEREG ) FEXVER) & - 8RR
M REFTEERIEESF KRBT GO EXVEH
FTR8NMAMNGARA LB IO ER R
KR (BRREZES R GROHERBKRXRE
ERRAIEHEMEMER)  RIEFEF R
B {60 55 362 15 #7 TE 78 B "L 10 A% 16 F7 il B R i
MR s MO R - SRR L AR B MY 8% + AT #K
METETAEETETESF X ZNRES A
(BREFADREAMNE ADA RN
BmEORRIT

() REAXFARGKAEBEKRGDH
e

Number of Shares/ Approximate

underlying Percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares held shareholding
RS

BEEnA B REEHtE HEROHE BRESAB DL
Mr. Wei Shaojun Founder of a discretionary trust® 422,872,512(L) 28.48%
WMOELRE —IEHBIFEFER KA

Interest of controlled corporations® 547,662,121(L) 36.89%

Fir 2 il A B i 2 @

Total 970,534,633(L) 65.37%

#Et
Mr. Wei Qiang Beneficiary of a discretionary trust® 422,872,512(L) 28.48%
Phor k4 —ERNEETENREAC
Dr. Liu Zhengang Beneficial owner® 1,999,333(L) 0.13%
214 M & £ ERnERAY
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Number of Shares/

Approximate

underlying Percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares held shareholding
B 12,
EEnR 270 £33 HERGEE REBOE D
Mr. Han Xiaoping Beneficial owner® 359,400(L) 0.02%
PRRET R ERERAC
Dr. Han Qinchun Beneficial owner® 359,400(L) 0.02%
BREEL EnEBAC
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John Beneficial owner?” 359,400(L) 0.02%
HEBELE ERERAY
Notes: B 5E -
1. King River Developments Limited is deemed to be interested in 422,872,512 1. King River Developments Limited # 17 7% 5 &
Shares through its control over Longevity Investment Holding Limited and H 7 Longevity Investment Holding Limited #J 1%
Zedra Trustees (Singapore) Limited (formerly known as “BNP Paribas Hl 422872512 RIRD P HEA R - R
Singapore Trust Corporation Limited”) is deemed to be interested in Zedra Trustees (Singapore) Limited (711 # [ BNP
422,872,512 Shares through its control over King River Developments Limited, Paribas Singapore Trust Corporation Limited |)
and Mr. Wei Shaojun is deemed to be interested in 422,872,512 Shares as a R A F B H $King River Developments
founder of the discretionary trust. The details of which are set out as follows: Limited &9 428 | # 12 422,872,512 §% i% 19 F #
Bz MRLELEEERBBRERKL
A) BAR R 422,872,512 Ik 17 o B B
@ BHEHBWOT :
Direct Number of
Name of controlled corporation Name of controlling shareholder % control interest Shares
BEHEEER ERRREE ERBEAL HiEfEn Kt #E
King River Developments Limited Zedra Trustees (Singapore) Limited 100.00 N 422,872,512(L)
=
Longevity Investment Holding Limited King River Developments Limited 100.00 Y 422,872,512(L)
=
2. Such 547,662,121 Shares, of which 534,462,121 Shares are beneficially 2, % % 547,662,121 IR AR 1 + H 7 534,462,121

owned by Lightway Power Holdings Limited, which was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. Lightway Power Holdings Limited was wholly-owned by
Global Capital Alliance Limited, which was incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and is directly and wholly-owned by Mr. Wei Shaojun. In addition,
13,200,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Harvest Oak Holdings Limited,
which was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and directly and wholly-
owned by Mr. Wei Shaojun. Mr. Wei Shaojun is deemed to be interested in
547,662,121 Shares through his controlled corporations.

&% A% 15 8 1E b & & B 5 fift 5K 32 2 Lightway
Power Holdings Limited & 2§ # & ° Lightway
Power Holdings Limited i £ & B i X & &
AMAITHRLEELEEERERS
Z Global Capital Alliance Limited & & # 5 °
1t SN+ 18,200,000 A% A% 1% B9 £ 3% /& BE X B
MK AR ELEEREEERR
Z Harvest Oak Holdings Limited & 25 # & °
ROBEEWBAEBEMEFEERR
547,662,121 B B 15 #E B #E 2= ©
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3l Mr. Wei Qiang is deemed to be interested in 422,872,512 Shares as a
beneficiary of a trust.

4, Dr. Liu Zhengang is interested in1,999,333 share options of the Company.
58 Mr. Han Xiaoping is interested in 359,400 share options of the Company.
6. Dr. Han Qinchun is interested in 359,400 share options of the Company.

7. Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John is interested in 359,400 share options of the
Company.

8. The letter “L” denotes the long position in Shares.

(ii) Interest in the Shares of Associated
Corporations

3. R E(EFAREI=A) KR AR
422,872,512 & i 0 R #E B #E 7= o

4. 21| ¥ /) 18 £ 741,999,333 f& A48 A 7] BE % 4
BHER -

51 82 B T St 4 72350,400 0% 78 A 7] B A% 4
A -

6. 82 &= % 1§ 1 50 350,400 % A& A 7] 35 A% 4
BAER -

7. = B B % 4 359,400 % 78 A 7] B A% 4
A -

8. FRILIKZTARBZFE -

(i) REBEERAODHER

Approximate

Capacity/Nature Number of percentage of
Name of Director Name of associated corporation of interest Shares held shareholding
EEpR =B A B B RHEME FEROBE REMNBEDL
Mr. Wei Shaojun Longevity Investment Holding Limited Beneficial owner (e 100%
ROERAE BEmEAA
Mr. Wei Shaojun Harvest Oak Holdings Limited Beneficial owner g(m] 100%
BROERAE EnEAA
Mr. Wei Shaojun Lightway Power Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 1L 100%
ROERAE EnEE A

Note: The letter “L" denotes the long position in Shares.

Save as disclosed above and save for the share options as set out under the
section headed “Share Option Scheme”, as at 31 December 2020, none of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
position in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
would be required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, so far as is known to the Directors, the following
persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company as disclosed
above) had interests or short positions in Shares or underlying Shares which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, which were recorded
in the register to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

() Long Position in the Shares and underlying

/|

fit A\ £
A R 47

wh R

3

X
=)

v
N
o

w2l HY
5 M8
KA RS

B

i 73 )

R-ZZT-_ZEE+_R=+—B HREFHA-
THALTCGEEXHBEENARREFRER
TRAB)RBRNDIABERO T EAREES
N BB R B EXVED S 2 &35 B B 16 ST /R A A
RARBXABENEERRE  RIREE
FRABERPIFEBHRTHERARRNAFTEN
Bt RS SOXR -

() RRORMEERGNER

Shares
Number of
Shares/ Approximate
underlying percentage of
Name of Substantial Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held shareholding
ERe
TERRER 55 EEtE HERDEE REBNE DL
Longevity Investment Holding Limited Beneficial owner" 422,872,512(L) 28.48%
BmEa Al
Zedra Trustees (Singapore) Limited Trustee™ 422,872,512(L) 28.48%
FHEAD
King River Developments Limited Interest of controlled corporation 422,872,512(L) 28.48%
REHEEER
Lightway Power Holdings Limited Beneficial owner® 534,462,121(L) 36.00%
BEmEa AP
Global Capital Alliance Limited Interest of controlled corporation® 534,462,121(L) 36.00%

XEHAEEREY

Notes:

1. King River Developments Limited is deemed to be interested in 422,872,512
Shares through its control over Longevity Investment Holding Limited and
Zedra Trustees (Singapore) Limited is deemed to be interested in 422,872,512
Shares through its control over King River Developments Limited, and Mr. Wei
Shaojun is deemed to be interested in 422,872,512 Shares as a founder of the
discretionary trust.

—

King River Developments Limited 1 % % i i@
EH 74 Longevity Investment Holding Limited #J 1%
iR 422,872 512 R R A 2 - K
Zedra Trustees (Singapore) Limited ¥ 1% 74 &
3B H 7 King River Developments Limited &Y 122
il #E PR 422,872, 512K B fn R HE B #E 21 - T
ROBEEERBBERKILIA)EER
422,872,512 IR 19 R A #E 2 ©
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2. Such 534,462,121 Shares are beneficially owned by Lightway Power Holdings
Limited, which was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands. Lightway Power
Holdings Limited was wholly-owned by Global Capital Alliance Limited, which
was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is directly and wholly-owned
by Mr. Wei Shaojun.

3. The letter “L” denotes the long position in Shares.

Save as disclosed above, and as at 31 December 2020, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief executive of
the Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which would be required,
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the Reporting Period, the Company was not involved in any litigation
or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim of material
importance is known to the Directors to be pending or threatened against the
Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company’s Articles of Association provide that each Director or other
officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or her office or otherwise in
relation thereto. In addition, the Company has arranged appropriate directors’
and officers’ liability insurance in respect of relevant legal actions against the
Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”), comprising
the three independent non-executive Directors, has reviewed the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020
together with the management and the external auditor of the Company. The
Audit Committee is of the opinion that such statements have complied with
the applicable accounting standards, and the disclosures required by the
Stock Exchange and other relevant legal requirements, and that adequate
disclosures have been made.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of
this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge
of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital,
being the prescribed minimum percentage of public float approved by the
Stock Exchange and permitted under the Listing Rules, are held by the public
at all times during the Reporting Period and as of the date of this annual
report.

AUDITOR

The Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019 were audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers (‘PwC”). On 15
January 2021, PwC resigned as the auditor of the Company. The Company
has appointed BDO Limited (“BDQ”) as the auditor of the Company with
effect from 156 January 2021 to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation
of PwC and to hold office until the conclusion of the forthcoming Meeting of
the Company. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 15 January 2021.

The consolidated financial statements for the Reporting Period prepared in
accordance with IFRS were audited by BDO who shall retire and, being
eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming Meeting of the
Company.

By order of the Board

Wei Qiang
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hebei Province, the PRC, 31 March 2021
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESNREREEE

DIRECTORS

Executive Director

Mr. Wei Qiang, aged 38, joined the Company as an executive Director, the
chief executive officer of the Company and a member of the Remuneration
Committee on 11 November 2015. On 29 June 2017, Mr. Wei Qiang was
appointed as the chairman of the Board and chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Board. Mr. Wei Qiang has around 13 years of work and
management experiences in the clean energy industry. Mr. Wei Qiang is the
founder and controlling shareholder of Lightway Green Energy, which mainly
engage in businesses of production and sales of photovoltaic components.
Mr. Wei Qiang has also been serving as a director of a rural bank initiated by
Chengdu Rural Commercial Bank since 2013. Since August 2018, Mr. Wei
Qiang has served as a senior management of Longjitaihe Group. From 2003
to 2006, Mr. Wei Qiang studied at the University of Auckland in New Zealand
majoring in Finance and from 2007 to 2009, studied business administration
and information strategies at Tsinghua University. Mr. Wei Qiang is the son of
Mr. Wei Shaojun, the ultimate controlling Shareholder of the Company and
the non-executive Director.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited  Annual Report 2020

=2

BITES

BMExE 38 R=_ZT—RAF+—A+—
BMARRBEERTEETRITBARLH
MEZEEgKE R-ZT—tFAZ+NA -
RATERZIRESEEIRNEFTERA
ZERIR -RALERBRERTERR
ANEEER T HERAODIBFHNTIERR -
RATERLRFERRNEHARERK
R ERFERERIZRERNAUNEE
MEE - RALEEB T =FRELHK
MENBAXRRTEEN -—XENRTNE
FR-_F-N\FN\AE FEELE-HEE
EEARNEENSREBEAE - R_ZT=
FE_TTAFHE RALELERERNTA
HEZHARESRBEEX IR _FTTLF
E-TTNHHE RETFERBENIHE
BREELCEBEX - RALERAAAKR
REBEERRIFBTESRIELENTE T -



Non-executive Director

Mr. Wei Shaojun, aged 57 joined the Company as the chairman, an
executive Director, chief executive officer and the chairman of the Nomination
Committee in January 2015. Mr. Wei resigned as chief executive officer on 11
November 2015. On 29 June 2017, Mr. Wei resigned as the chairman of the
Board and chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Board and was re-
designated as a non-executive Director. Mr. Wei is the founder, the controlling
shareholder and the chairman of Longjitaihe Group which is engaged in
integrated diversified industries including real estate development, commercial
operations and new energy and Mr. Wei has more than 24 years of
experiences in real property development business operation, business
management, etc. Mr. Wei is a National Model Worker, and Peking University
Post EMBA. Mr. Wei is currently serving as a director and the chairman of the
board of Jiangsu Tongda Technology Co., Ltd. (Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
stock code: 002576). Mr. Wei is the father of Mr. Wei Qiang, the executive
Director and chief executive officer of the Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Han Qinchun, aged 62, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee in February 2015. Dr. Han had resigned as the
member of the Nomination Committee, and was appointed as the chairman
of the remuneration committee on 28 June 2016. Dr. Han is currently the
president of Hong Kong Internation Financial Assets Market Limited. Dr. Han
obtained a Doctorate degree in philosophy in urban economics and
management from The University of Hong Kong in 1998. He also obtained a
bachelor’s degree from Xi’an University of Architecture and Technology in
1982. He has rich experience in the PRC property sector, financial
investment, equity capital market and listed companies’ management. He
had worked in securities and investment in Bank of China International
Holdings Limited, Agricultural Bank of China Securities Limited (now known
as Agricultural Bank of China International Holdings Limited) and Everbright
Securities Company (Hong Kong) Limited. He served as the vice-chairman
and co-president and executive director of Hong Long Holdings Limited (now
known as Suncity Group Holdings Limited), a listed company on the main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1383) for three years, and served
as an independent non-executive director of a Stock Exchange listed
company Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (stock code: 0162) from
September 2019 to September 2020. Dr. Han has also been an independent
non-executive director of Lingbao Gold Company Ltd., a listed company on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3330) since March 2012.
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Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John, aged 54, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee, a
member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee on
16 October 2015. Mr. John Wong Yik Chung is a qualified accountant and
has over 31 years of experience in auditing and corporate finance work, with
extensive exposure to the business enterprises in the PRC. He is the founder
of Vantage Group and TMF China, which provide professional outsourcing
solutions to companies investing in the PRC and targeting at international
customers. Mr. Wong graduated from the University of Melbourne. He is a
fellow member of each of the Australian Society of Certified Public
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
also obtained a PRC Certificate of Independent Directorship in 2002. Over the
past three years, he served as an independent non-executive director for the
following Stock Exchange listed companies, namely KEE Holdings Company
Limited (now known as China Apex Group Limited) (stock code: 2011),
Ascent International Holdings Limited (now known as China International
Development Corporation Limited) (stock code: 264), Perfect Optronics
Limited (stock code: 8311) and Xinjiang Xinxin Mining Industry Co., Ltd. (stock
code: 3833). He currently serves as an independent non-executive director
for the following companies which are listed on the Stock Exchange, namely
EcoGreen International Group Limited (stock code: 2341) and Beijing Capital
Land Ltd. (stock code: 2868).

Mr. Han Xiaoping, aged 63, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee on 28 June 2016. He worked as journalist in CAAC JOURNAL of
the Civil Aviation Administration of China (CAAC) from 1986 to 1988. He
established China Energy Net in 2000 and served as managing director since
then, and he also serves as the chief writer of Energy Review, Chief
Researcher of China Energy Net Research Center. He currently serves as
deputy director of China Energy Research Society Distributed Energy
Professional Committee, expert of China Southern Power Grid Expert
Committee and expert of China Gas Strategic Development Committee. Mr.
Han has been an independent non-executive director of Beijing Jingneng
Clean Energy Co., Limited, a listed company on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 579) since October 2014; an independent non-
executive director of Tianjin Tianbao Energy Co., Ltd., a listed company on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1671) since April 2018;
and an independent non-executive director GCL Energy Technology Co., Ltd,
a listed company on the Main Board of Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code:2015) since June 2019.
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At the date of this report, the senior management of the Group comprises the
executive Directors above, namely Mr. Wei Qiang, Ms. Zhao Hua and Mr.
Wang Yong. The biographies of Ms. Zhao Hua and Mr. Wang Yong are set
out below:

Ms. Zhao Hua, aged 35, joined the Company as the executive vice president
in January 2020. She is mainly assisting the chief executive officer of the
Company to take full charge of the daily operation and management of the
Group. Ms. Zhao was an executive Director of the Company from 26
February 2015 to 11 November 2015. From July 2014 to July 2016, she
served as the executive vice president of Hedao International Commercial and
Trading Co., Ltd., where she was responsible for the business segment of
commercial operation. In 2013, she served as the executive vice president
and secretary of the board of directors of Lightway Green Energy, responsible
for financial and human resources management. Ms Zhao graduated from
Central University of Finance and Economics in 2010, with a major in
administrative management and obtained a master’s degree in management.
She graduated from Beijing International Studies University in 2007, with a
major in international politics and obtained a Bachelor of Laws degree. Ms.
Zhao is the wife of Mr. Wei Qiang, an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of the Company.

Mr. Wang Yong, aged 43, joined the Company as the development vice
president in November 2015. He is primarily responsible for the development
and management of the distributed integrated energy business of the Group.
Mr. Wang has over 13 years of management experience in clean energy
industry. Mr. Wang joined Lightway Green Energy in January 2013 as the
general manager for China. From 2010 to 2012, Mr. Wang served as the
deputy general manager of product marketing at Xie Xin Solar System
Company Limited in Nanjing (22 ¢k 24 A R A 7). From 2007 to 2010, he
served as the project director of a new energy company at ET Solar Energy
Corporation (A%t EEE) in Nanjing. From 2005 to 2007, he served as
deputy general manager of Jiangsu Hui Xin Credit Consulting Co., Ltd. (T#k
EEERENAERAR) in Nanjng. Mr. Wang graduated from Southeast
University in 2000 in Computer and Applications; on July 2019, Mr. Wang
obtained a Master of Business Administration in School of Economics and
Management, Tsinghua University.

Details of the interests of the Directors in the Company are disclosed in the
section headed “INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS”
under the “Report of the Directors”.
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report in this
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2020.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company has complied with the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules during the Reporting Period, except for code provision A.2.1 relating to
the role of chairman and chief executive officer. Details of such deviation and
explanation are set out on the section headed “Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer” below.

The Company will continue to review and enhance its corporate governance
practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code. Set out below is detailed
discussion of the corporate governance practices adopted and observed by
the Company for the Reporting Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board of Directors

The Board currently consists of five Directors with a combination of one
executive Director, one non-executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors. During the Reporting Period and currently, the
composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Qiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping (resigned on 16 September 2020)
Dr. Liu Zhengang (resigned on 29 January 2021)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Wei Shaojun

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Han Qinchun

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John

Mr. Han Xiaoping
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The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management” of this annual report. Save as disclosed herein, the
Directors do not have any other relationships with any Directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling Shareholders of the Company.

All Directors have carried out duties in good faith and in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and have acted in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify the
Group’s Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Functions of the Board

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board,
which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the Company
and the Directors are collectively responsible for promoting the long term
success of the Group by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs and
overseeing the achievement of strategic plans to enhance Shareholders’
value. The Directors are aware of their duties to act in good faith and
expected to make decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The principal functions of the Board are to:

(i) convene general meetings and report the Board’s work at general
meetings;

(ii) implement the resolutions passed by the Shareholders in general
meetings;

(i)  consider and approve strategies, financial objectives, annual budget,
investment proposals of the Group;

(iv)  approve and authorise material transactions, including acquisition,
investment, disposal of assets (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests);

(v)  formulate the proposals for profit distributions;
(vi)  assume the responsibilities of corporate governance of the Group;

(vi)  establish and review the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems through the Audit Committee; and

(vii) exercise other powers, functions and duties conferred by the
Shareholders in general meetings.
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The senior management is delegated with the authority and responsibilities by
the Board for the day-to-day management and operations of the Group.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the management. The Board meets regularly to
review the financial and operating performance of the Company, and
considers and approves the overall strategies and policies of the Company.

All Directors have separate access to the management and are provided with
full and timely information about the conduct of the business and operation of
the Group. A monthly report containing significant events and latest
development of the Group was provided to all Directors. Upon request by the
Board, independent professional advice will be available to the Directors to
facilitate the decision-making process.

During the Reporting Period, the Board has regularly reviewed the
contributions from the Directors and confirmed that they have spent sufficient
time performing their responsibilities.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Mr. Wei Qiang, an executive Director, is the chief executive officer and the
chairman of the Board. According code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The Board is of the opinion that,
with the Company now being at a stage of rapid development, the current
structure could improve the Company’s effectiveness and efficiency in
reaching its business goals. The Board also believes that this arrangement will
not be detrimental to the balance of power and authority between the
chairman and the chief executive officer, while a higher ratio of non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) will enable the
Board to make unbiased judgments more effectively.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. After making specific enquiry, all of the Directors who held their
office during the Reporting Period have confirmed that they had complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
Reporting Period.

The Company has also adopted its own code of conduct regarding
employees’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the
standard set out in the Model Code for the compliance by its relevant
employees who are likely to be in possession of inside information of the
Company in respect of their dealings in the Company’s securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and code of conduct applicable to employees and
Directors, reviewing and monitoring training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management and the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
as well as reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Reporting Period, the Board considered the following corporate
governance matters:

— review of the compliance with the CG Code; and

—  review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group through the Audit Committee.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive Directors. The
Board considers that all independent non-executive Directors have
appropriate and sufficient industry, professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise to carry out their duties so as to
protect the interests of Shareholders. Under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
listed issuers are required to appoint independent non-executive directors
representing at least one-third of the Board. The Company has three
independent non-executive Directors currently representing more than one-
third of the Board and therefore, the Company has complied with Rule 3.10A
of the Listing Rules.

Prior to their respective appointment, each of the independent non-executive
Directors has submitted a written statement to the Stock Exchange
confirming their independence and has undertaken to inform the Stock
Exchange as soon as practicable if there is any subsequent change of
circumstances which may affect their independence. The Company has also
received a written confirmation from each of the independent non-executive
Directors in respect of their independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Board considers that all independent non-executive
Directors are being considered to be independent by reference to the factors
stated in the Listing Rules.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. Wei Qiang, the chairman of the Board, held
a meeting with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence
of other Directors.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have brought a
wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of
the Company.

As regards the CG code provision requiring directors to disclose the number
and nature of the offices held in public companies and organisations and
other significant commitments as well as their identity and the time involved to
the issuer, Directors have agreed to disclose their commitments to the
Company in a timely manner.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF THE
DIRECTORS

Each of the Directors has been appointed for a specific term of three years,
subject to the provisions on Directors’ retirement as set out in the Articles of
Association and none of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation). All Directors appointed by the Board
shall hold office only until the next general meeting of the Company (in the
case of filling a casual vacancy) or until the next annual general meeting of the
Company (in the case of an addition to the Board), and every Director,
including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Pursuant to the article 108(a) of the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years.

Mr. Wei Qiang and Mr. Han Xiaoping will retire from office as Directors at the
forthcoming Meeting, and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-
election.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors are set out in the Articles of Association.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee (the “Nomination Committee”) is responsible for
reviewing the Board composition and making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-election of Directors and succession planning for
Directors. The Company adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which can be downloaded from the Company’s website. A summary
of the Nomination Policy is set out below:

1. Purpose
To ensure that Board members have the skills, experiences and diverse
perspectives needed by the Company’s business.
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2. Selection Principle
The factors listed below would be used as reference by the Nomination
Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate:

7

The Company’s development strategy needs;

Reputation for integrity;

Achievements and experiences in the Company’s major
business;

Time devotion and the representation of relevant beneficial
parties;

Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender, age
(has to be aged 18 or older), cultural and educational
background, professional experiences, skills, knowledge and
management experiences;

Directorship in other public companies and corporate governance
structures of those companies, etc; and

Independence (for independent non-executive Director).

These factors are for references only and excluded to be exhaustive
and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the discretion to
nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.

3. Nomination Procedure

3.1

3.2

The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call a meeting
of the Nomination Committee and invite nominations of
candidates from Board members if any, for consideration by the
Nomination Committee prior to its meeting. The Nomination
Committee may also put forward candidates who are not
nominated by Board members.

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall
propose candidates for the Board’s consideration and approval.
For proposing candidates to stand for election at a general
meeting of the Company, the Nomination Committee shall make
nominations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation.
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4.

3.3

3.4

3.5

The nominated candidate(s) shall not assume that he/she has
been proposed by the Board to stand for election at the general
meeting of the Company until a circular to the Shareholders is
issued.

In order to provide information of the candidate(s) nominated by
the Board stand for election at general meeting of the Company,
the Company will issue a circular to the Shareholders stating the
candidate’s name, resume (including qualifications and relevant
experiences), proposed remuneration, and other information
required in accordance with applicable law, rules and regulation.

For independent non-executive Director, in addition to the
information listed in clause 3.4 above, the followings should also
be specified in the Shareholders’ circular:

(1)  Process used to identify the individual, reason why the
Board considers that individual should be elected, and
reason why the Board considers that individual is
independent;

(2)  If the nominated independent non-executive Director will
serve as a Director for the seventh (or more) public listed
companies, the reason why the Board believes this
individual can still devote enough time to fulfil his/her
director’s responsibilities;

(8 Views and perspectives, skills and experiences that
individual can bring to the Board;

(4)  How will this individual promote diversity of the Board; and

(6)  Other contents that applicable laws, regulations, listing
rules and regulatory bodies required.

Responsibility

The ultimate responsibility for selecting and appointing Directors is
shared by all Directors of the Company.

3.3

3.4

3.5
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5. Monitoring and Reviewing
5.1 The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing
composition of the Board and succession plan of the Board, and
conduct a review annually.

5.2 The Nomination Committee should regularly monitor and review
formal procedures for the Nomination Policy to ensure that the
Nomination Policy is tailored to the needs of the Company and
reflects current regulatory requirement and good governance
practices.

THE BOARD COMMITTEES

(1) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 22 November 2011. The
Audit Committee currently comprises three members, namely Mr.
Wong Yik Chung, John (Chairman), Dr. Han Qinchun and Mr. Han
Xiaoping, all of the members are independent non-executive Directors.
The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year with the
Company’s external auditors regarding the review of the Company’s
financial report and accounts.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and removal of
auditor, review the financial statements, reports and accounts, and
review and monitor the financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control systems. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the Reporting Period.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee adopted by the

Board are in line with the provisions of the CG Code and are available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee has held five
meetings and mainly fulfilled the following responsibilities:

reviewed the audited annual results for the year ended 31
December 2019, discussed the annual results with external
auditors (in the absence of the management of the Company),
and formed the opinion that the relevant financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards and regulation, and that adequate
disclosures have been made;

reviewed the unaudited interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2020, and formed the opinion that the relevant financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards and regulation, and that
adequate disclosures have been made;

reviewed and assessed the independence of external auditors,
reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the re-
appointment of the Company’s auditor; and

reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and the internal
control systems of the Group.

Auditor’s Remuneration
During the Reporting Period, the remuneration paid or payable to the

Com
of its

pany’s independent auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, in respect
audit and non-audit services were as follows:
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2020 2019

—E-EF —E—NF

Type of Services RMB’000 RMB’000
REESE AR®T AREFIT
Audit services Z R 7% 2,000 2,200
Non-audit services IEZ R - -
Total 4@t 2,000 2,200

The statement of the Company’s independent auditor regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the

Grou

p for the Reporting Period is set out in the section headed

“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.
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(20 Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 22 November 2011.
The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely Dr.
Han Qinchun (Chairman), Mr. Wei Qiang and Mr. Wong Yik Chung,
John, the majority of which are independent non-executive Directors
and one of the members is an executive Director.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the Directors
and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once every year to
discuss remuneration related matters. No Director is allowed to be
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee adopted
by the Board are in line with the provisions of the CG Code and are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee has held
one meetings, passed one written resolutions and mainly fuffilled the
following responsibilities:

—  reviewed the remuneration policies of the Group for 2020 and
reviewed the remuneration package for executive Directors and
the senior management personnel; and

—  assessed the vesting of the share options granted by the
Company in previous years.

For the Reporting Period, the remuneration of the five highest paid
individuals (excluding one Director) of the Group, other than those
Directors as disclosed in note 37 to the audited consolidated financial
statements in this annual report, was within the following bands:

(2)
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2020 2019

—E-%fF —T-A%E

Number of Number of

Remuneration Band Individuals Individuals
i &8 AE AEL
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000/ 7T 4 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /% 7T £ 1,500,000 7T 1 1
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(3) Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 22 November 2011.
The Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Wei
Qiang (Chairman), Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John and Mr. Han Xiaoping,
the majority of which are independent non-executive Directors and one
of the members is an executive Director.

The primary duty of the Nomination Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies
on the Board and senior management and to ensure that the
candidates to be nominated as Directors are experienced, high calibre
individuals.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once every year for
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board, assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors and
other related matters. In reviewing and recommending the appointment
of new Directors, the Nomination Committee would seek to identify the
competencies required to enable the Board to fulfill its responsibilities.
The resume or documents of the nominee or candidate will be given to
the Nomination Committee for consideration.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee adopted
by the Board are in line with the provisions of the CG Code and are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee has held one
meeting, and mainly fulfilled the following responsibilities:

— reviewed the structure, composition of the Board and the Board
diversity policy;

— made recommendations regarding the re-election of retiring
Directors at the 2020 annual general meeting; and

— assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. With a view to achieving a
sustainable and balanced development, the Company sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against appropriate criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The Board diversity policy (the “Diversity Policy”)
adopted aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. A
summary of the Diversity Policy is set out below:

1. Selection Criteria
Selection will be based on a range of diversity, including but not limited
to gender, age (has to be aged 18 or older), cultural and educational
background, professional experiences, skills, knowledge and
management experiences. When appointing Board members, the
principle is to comply with Company’s development, and the benefit of
diversity of Board members should also fully taken into account.

2. Measurable Obijectives
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experiences, skills, knowledge
and management experiences. The ultimate decision will be based on
merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

3. Monitoring and Reporting
The Nomination Committee will report composition of the Board on
diversification prospect (including gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experiences, skills, knowledge and
management experiences) in the “Corporate Governance Report” and
monitor implementation of the Diversity Policy.
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Review of the Diversity Policy

The Nomination Committee will review the Diversity Policy in a timely
manner to ensure that the Diversity Policy is effective. The Nomination
Committee will discuss any amendments that need to be made and
then propose amendments to the Board for approval.

Disclosure of the Diversity Policy
The Diversity Policy is posted on the website of the Company for public
review.

The summary of the Diversity Policy and measurable objectives and
compliance schedules established to implement the Diversity Policy will
be disclosed annually in the Corporate Governance Report.

For the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy, the following
measurable objectives have been adopted:

(@ in terms of age, the average age of Directors is 54.8, including
one Director aged 30-40, and four Directors aged above 50;

(b) in terms of professional background, the executive Directors
have more than ten years of experience in the clean energy
sector. The non-executive Director has more than 20 years of
experience in corporate management. The occupational
backgrounds and professional skills of the independent non-
executive Directors cover professional accountants, investment
and financing and clean energy and have more than 20 years of
experience in their industry;

() in terms of a regional perspective, the background of the
Directors covers Hong Kong and Mainland China with different
cultural backgrounds; and

(d) at least 1/3 of the Board members are independent non-
executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee believes that the current composition of the
Board is balanced and diversified with the high-calibre members from
different cultural backgrounds and possessing professional expertise of
various industries, which indicates that the Diversity Policy has been
well implemented.
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BOARD MEETING AND ATTENDANCE
RECORD

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board meetings regularly, at
least four times a year, and more frequently as the needs of the business
demand. The Directors can attend meetings in person or by means of such
telephone, electronic or other communication facilities so as to permit all
persons participating in the meeting to communicate with each other
simultaneously and instantaneously, and participation in such meeting shall
constitute presence in person at such meetings in accordance with Article
1833 of the Articles of Association.

The Board and Committees’ meeting schedule and the agenda of each
meeting are made available to Directors in advance. Notices of regular Board
meetings were served to all Directors at least 14 days before the meetings.
For all other Board and Committees’ meetings, reasonable notices were
given. Papers for Board meetings or Committees’ meetings together with all
relevant information are sent to all Directors or Committee members at least
three days before each meeting to enable them to make informed decisions
with adequate data.

All Directors will also be provided with sufficient resources to perform their
duties, and upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense. All minutes of Board meetings will be recorded in
sufficient detail, including matters considered and decisions reached by the
Board.
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Meetings held and Attendance

The Board held seven Board meetings during the Reporting Period. The
composition of the Board and the Committees, the attendance records of the
Directors at the Board meetings, committees meetings and general meetings
during the Reporting Period are set out below:

Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee general
Name of Directors meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
BEEg ERZEE FMZEEE REZES IR RB &F
EEpE =f =f = = &
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Wei Qiang BRI E
(Chairman and Chief (FEFTHAEE)
Executive Officer) 6/7 N/AN i@ F 1/1 1/1 11
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping REFEE
(suspended on 19 June (R=ZFZZFFNAAT
2020 and resigned on 16 NAEE WR=ZF=
September 2020) TEAHATNHFE) 1/1 N/ATid@ N/AT 3 F N/AF 38 N/AT i@ A
Dr. Liu Zhengang ZIRMIE L 77 N/AZ 38 A N/ATE A N/AT i A 11
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Wei Shaojun ROERE 2/7 N/AZ i F N/ATiE A N/AT i@ A 11
Independent BUEHTES
Non-executive Directors
Dr. Han Qinchun BREEL 77 5/5 1/1 N/AT i A 11
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John BEBRE 77 5/5 11 11 11
Mr. Han Xiaoping BETELE 77 45  NAT@EMA 1/1 1/1
INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS ABEEBEEEXZRRE

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

EEHEZERRBRSAER LT ARNESMN
EENEREECREMBERER S22
ZEEEHVRGS - EZ2EABRER LR

Upon their appointments, Directors are advised on the legal and other duties
and obligations they have as directors of a listed company. Each newly
appointed Director receives a comprehensive induction package designed to
enhance his/her knowledge and understanding of the Group’s culture and  E ¥ A EE L R LBR A% TR o o) -
operations. Discussion sessions with key management personnel are also AR G E @@L HFEZETEEHTIESE AS
held. T o
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, we have arranged trainings which
were presented by professional firms to the Directors. Through the course of
their directorship, the company secretary of the Company also from time to
time updated and provided written training material relating to the roles,
functions and duties of a director and all the aforesaid Directors studied such
materials. All Directors are also encouraged to attend relevant training courses
at the Company’s expense.

We have maintained record of the continuous professional development
participated by the Directors. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
current Directors received the following training with an emphasis on the role,
functions and responsibilities of directors of listed companies through
attending training sessions and reading materials:

RBE-_ZT -_ZTHE+_FA=+—HItEE "
RPAELCHEE R MESREEN RE
EETESTHHR  AQFANRFTWETFS D
RENMUTRHEEBEZSAG BERBED
EEENER ML 2BESHEE T %
LEER - ARAINFE 2 BEE 2 INAEBE
R BREBAARAIHAE-

BMRBETESF2EFBEEXERNLE
RBE_ZT_ZF+_A=+—-RLFE"
BEESZREEFEEISRBEME  BX
NTEHERETAREENAE Bk
BEMEI

Reading
materials/
regulatory Attending
updates/ training
Name of Director monthly reports sessions
REME
EEEHREN
EEpgg BE®E HEEIE
Mr. Wei Qiang mkE v v
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping REFERE
(suspended on 19 June 2020 and resigned on 16 (R=ZF=ZZFFNNA+N1AE
September 2020) B ITR-FE=-FFAH+~H
BFIE) v v
Dr. Liu Zhengang 214 Ml 18+ v v
Mr. Wei Shaojun BRLOERE v v
Dr. Han Qinchun BREB T v v
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John HEBEL Y 4
Mr. Han Xiaoping BRETEA v v
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group’s financial
statements for each financial period, which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules, the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and applicable
accounting standard. The Company deploys appropriate and sufficient
resources to prepare audited accounts. In preparing the financial statements
for the Reporting Period, the Board has selected suitable accounting policies
and applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates that are
prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis. The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and
necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities. In addition, the Company provides all
members of the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s performance,
position and prospects.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Risk Management Structure

The Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control system, and regularly
assessing and continuously supervising its effectiveness to safeguard the
overall interests of the Group and its Shareholders, and to foster the
sustainable development of the Group. However, the risk management and
internal control system formulated by the Group aims to manage, instead of
eliminate, all risks exposed to the Group. Such system cannot completely
eliminate inherent limitations such as unpredictable risks and events beyond
control (e.g. natural disasters, fraud and judgment errors), and can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Group established an Enterprise Risk Management (the “ERM”)
framework to implement effective risk management. Our risk management
structure is simple and clear, with a defined scope of duties.
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Board of Directors

As a body in charge of the Group’s risk management and internal control
system, the Board is responsible for the setting up of clear ERM framework
and risk management policies, aiming to assess and evaluate the business
strategies of the Group and its degree of risk tolerance. With the support of
the Audit Committee, whose authority has been delegated by the Board, the
Board constantly monitors the risk management and internal control system
of the Group, as well as conducts review as to its effectiveness at least once
year.

Audit Committee

As the highest body, second only to the Board, being responsible for the risk
management and internal control system, the Audit Committee provides
advice and support in respect of all risk matters, including on-going
monitoring of the implementation of risk management procedures, reviewing
the Group’s list of major risk exposures, reviewing and approving the internal
control review plans and results.

Management

The management of the Group is responsible for identifying and continuously
monitoring strategic, operational, financial, reporting and compliance risks
associated with the daily operations of the Group. The management reports
to the Board and the Audit Committee on relevant risks and their changes.
The management also designs, formulates and implements various internal
control measures to mitigate the risks, and rectify internal control deficiencies
they identified in a timely manner.

Internal Audit Department and External Team

The Company has an internal audit department, which carried out the analysis
and independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems and directly reported the
review results to the Audit Committee. The auditor of the Company is also
able to communicate to the Audit Committee directly any internal control
issues they noticed during their audit process.

Risk Management Procedures

The Group has established the ERM framework so as to effectively manage
all kinds of risks exposed to the Group. The ERM framework defined the
procedures for identifying, assessing, responding to and monitoring risks and
their changes. Through regular discussions with each operating function, the
Group strengthened the understanding of risk management so that all
employees will understand and report the risks timely which enhanced the
Group’s ability to identify and manage risks.
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In the course of risk identification, the management liaises with each operating
function, collects significant risk factors that affect the Group from the bottom
to the top, in various aspects including strategies, operational and financial
matters, reporting and compliances. After establishing risk assessment
scope, the management will assess the potential impact and possibilities of
the risks and prioritise the risks, and make appropriate internal control
measures are then developed to mitigate the risks identified and monitor the
changes of risks in an on-going manner.

Risk Management System

The Group’s risk management system is guided by the three lines of defence:

The first line of defence — Maintain an effective internal
control system (operational level)

The Group has set up a Risk Management Executive Team, comprising
functional centres, various business departments and all staff. In the course
of their daily operations, the functional centres, business segments and
individuals execute the risk management strategies of the Group, gather risks
in a timely manner based on the changes in the business and give the Risk
Management Leading Team feedback on the risks. The Risk Management
Leading Team revises and optimizes the risk management system to confine
risk management of the Group to the first line of defence.

The major strategies of risk management of the Group include: establish clear
internal control policies and procedures, clearly define the responsibilities,
authorities and accountabilities of each key position; establish code of
conduct, convey to all employee the Group’s requirements on integrity and
ethic; establish whistle blowing mechanism, encourage employees to report
incidents of misconduct or fraud; establish appropriate level of information
technology assess rights, avoid leakage of price sensitive information; and
establish inside information disclosure policy, including reporting channels
and responsible person of disclosure, unified response to external enquiries
and obtain advice from professional financial advisors or the Stock Exchange,
if necessary.

In 2020, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of internal control policies
and procedures, including those related to financial reporting and Listing
Rules compliance and the management also conveyed confirmation of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems to the
Board and the Audit Committee. The Board has considered the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions when
reviewing risk management and internal control procedures.
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The second line of defence — On-going risk monitoring (risk
management level)

The Group has set up a Risk Management Leading Team, comprising the
president, the vice-president and the directors of different centres. The Risk
Management Leading Team based on risk management framework and risk
management policies established by the Board designs, implements and
supervises the risk management system to identify, communicate and assess
the significant risks for the Group, and liaise with each operating function and
collect significant risk information that affects the Group from the bottom to
the top and continually monitors changes in risks.

The Group has established a risk register to record the risks identified, the
management will regularly assess the potential impact and possibilities of
each major risk and formulate relevant internal control measures.

The third line of defence — Annual review (Board level)

The Board and the Audit Committee under the Board, which make up the
third line of defence, are responsible for assessing and determining the nature
and level of risks the Group is wiling to take in achieving its strategic
objectives, ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems, and supervising
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems on an
ongoing basis.

For 2020, the internal audit department of the Company has completed the
analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems for the Reporting
Period and has reported the review results to the Audit Committee.

The management has established remediation and improvement plan for
internal control weaknesses identified. Nothing has come to the Audit
Committee’s or Board’s attention to believe that risk management and
internal control systems of the Group are inadequate or ineffective.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Risks and uncertainties involved in the business operations of the Group may
affect the Group’s financial conditions or growth prospects. In dealing with
these risk factors and uncertainties, the Group focuses on the control of risks
and uncertainties with the aim of understanding and addressing the concerns
of stakeholders. Such factors are by no means exhaustive or comprehensive,
and there may be other risks in addition to those shown below which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but could turn out to
be material in the future.

The key risks and uncertainties affecting the Group for 2020 are summarized
below.

Industry and Policy Risk

The Group’s smart energy, particularly the home photovoltaic systems
business, and public infrastructure construction business are all located in the
PRC. Performance of the Company’s principal businesses will also be
significantly affected by the government’s policy in respect of clean energy,
the extent of subsidy and adjustments, as well as the planning and storage
progress of local land by the Baoding Government. If the Group fails to grasp
and judge macroeconomic and national policy changes, and adjust its
operational strategies in time, the business development of the Group and
realisation of its operation targets may be affected.

Countermeasures:

o the management continued to focus on the overall economic and
industrial policy changes and conducted analysis, research and
prediction of macro-economic conditions, government policies and
industrial policies and timely adjust business development strategies
according to the industry and policy changes.
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Capital Risk

Smart energy and public infrastructure construction businesses require large
capital investment. Financing ability and financing cost of the Group depend
on global economic condition, interest rates and banks’ credit policy as well
as its own financial performance. The Group cannot guarantee that credit line,
cost and terms can be obtained according to the Group’s preference or
project needs, which may affect the expected retuns of business and
projects. In addition, the Group cannot guarantee that it can recover its
receivables and the external investment of the Group in time and in full. The
Group’s profit and cash flow may therefore be significantly and adversely
affected.

Countermeasures:

° strengthened cooperation with banks and external financing institutions,
adopted diversified financing methods to minimise the Group’s financial
costs;

o strengthened the overall management of funds, specified the standards
for each cost and expense item and strengthened budget management
during the daily operational management process; and

o established the collection mechanism of receivables to follow up the
recovery progress of external investment funds in a timely manner, and,
when necessary, took measures such as litigation and preservation to
recover the funds.

Integrated Management and Control Risks

It is important for the Group to have the support of a well-developed
organizational and governance structure in the course of its business
development. In addition, the management needs to review and improve the
organisational and governance structure at all times. If the organisational
structure, functions orientation and capacity of integrated management and
control could not support the development need of the Group, its capacity of
realising the operational and strategic targets would be affected.
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Countermeasures:

o the management regularly reviewed development of business,
optimised legal person governance structure and regularly assessed
and reviewed the Group’s organisational structure and each function’s
orientation; and

o set up appropriate monitoring structures and regularly reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
through the internal audit department and external advisor.

RAW MATERIAL PRICE FLUCTUATION RISK

The Group’s home photovoltaic system business uses raw materials including
components, inverters, brackets and grid connected cabinets, etc.
Components make up the largest proportion of procurement costs.
Therefore, photovoltaic component prices have greater impact on the cost of
the home photovoltaic business. Any significant increase in costs of
components and other raw materials in the future will adversely affect the
Group’s procurement of raw materials and control over costs, which will in
turn have direct impact on the financial performance of the Group.

Countermeasures:

o Continued to monitor the demand and supply structure and price
dynamics in the industry, prepared early and reasonable procurement
plan according to the development of the Group’s home photovoltaic
business, locked up the prices and built up adequate inventories;

o developed a list of qualified suppliers, maintained an information
exchange mechanism and a stable, continued and reliable partnership
with them, and ensured timely supply and the competitiveness of
procurement prices; and

o developed a list of back-up suppliers and engaged those suppliers
when supply was tight to avoid stock shortage.
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INTENSIFYING MARKET COMPETITION RISK

The Group operates the smart energy business, especially the home
photovoltaic business, mainly in Hebei market, that makes it have stronger
brand and resource advantages in Hebei province. In view of the growing
clean energy sector and the coming of an era of solar grid parity, there is an
increasing number of state-owned and private capital entering into the solar
power industry, including the home photovoltaic industry. Market competition
is thus intensifying. In the future, if the Company cannot compete successfully
with its own advantages, further solidify and enhance its market position and
effectively respond to the challenges from competitors, it will face the risks of
losing competitive advantages and decreasing market share.

Countermeasures:

o exercised strict control on product quality, expanded sales channels,
enhanced the service support capability in operation and maintenance,
further increased brand awareness and market share, and effectively
responded to market competition;

o improved management standard, increased operating efficiency,
created a new talent management and incentive system in order to
provide assurance of efficient corporate operation through systems and
mechanisms and ensure the competitiveness of the Group; and

o continued to monitor the industry development momentum and

development dynamics of competitors, and adjusted internal business
development strategy in a timely manner.
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INSIDE INFORMATION MANAGEMENT

The Group’s procedure and internal control measures regarding the handling
and dissemination of inside information are listed below:

The Group is aware of its obligations under the disclosure requirements
under the Listing Rules and the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information issued by the Securities and Futures Commission in June
2012. The overriding principle is for the Group to make an
announcement as soon as any inside information comes to the
attention of the Group or the Group makes any decision based on such
information.

The Company has formulated its own Guidelines on Management and
Disclosure of Inside Information in accordance with the Listing Rules
and the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information, clarifying the
organization for managing inside information within the Company and
the processes for reporting and disclosing inside information, and
ensuring that Board members, the senior management personnel and
specific executive personnel with access to price-sensitive and/or
inside information by reason of their position or employment at the
Company or its subsidiaries are in strict compliance with the relevant
regulations and guidelines.

By way of financial reports, announcements and its website, the Group
discloses information to the public in an extensive and non-exclusive
manner to implement and disclose its fair disclosure policy.

In the course of communicating with any organization or individual
regarding the Company’s operating condition, financial condition and
other operating developments in a variety of formats, including
presentations on results, analyst presentations, roadshows and the
reception of investors for their research purposes, the Company
designates a specific executing entity for information disclosure.

The Company has formulated its Confidentiality Protocol, expressly
prohibiting any unauthorized use of confidential information or inside
information. At the same time, staff members are required to sign a
confidentiality agreement during induction, which means they are
expected to take upon themselves the duty of confidentiality when they
start their job.
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COMPANY SECRETARY AT I E

Ms. Zou Yanhong (“Ms. Zou”) is the company secretary of the Company. Ms.
Zou is the director of securities affairs department of the Company and is also
responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance matters and
ensuring that the Board policy and procedures, and the applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, Ms. Zou has undertaken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training respectively in compliance with
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS
RELATIONS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear, timely and
effective communication with the Shareholders and the investors. The Board
also recognises that effective communication with the investors is the key to
establish investor confidence and to attract new investors. Therefore, the
Group is committed to maintaining a high degree of transparency to ensure
that the investors and the Shareholders receive accurate, clear,
comprehensive and timely information of the Group by the publication of
financial reports, announcements, circulars and other corporate
communications on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The Company’s website (www.longitech.hk) has been set up as a channel to
provide information of the Company to the Shareholders and potential
investors and to communicate with them directly and effectively. Shareholders
are welcomed to make enquiry to the Board or make request for the
Company’s information to the extent such information is publicly available.

The Board shall maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and the
investment community. Shareholders are also encouraged to attend the
annual general meeting and other general meetings that may be convened by
the Company, for which notices will be served for an adequate period in
accordance with the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association of the
Company. The Directors will be available to answer Shareholders’ questions
at the general meetings.
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To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each issue at Shareholder meetings, including the election of
individual directors.

At any general meetings, a resolution put to vote of the meeting shall be
decided by way of a poll except where a show of hands is allowed under the
Listing Rules and the results of voting by poll will be declared at the meeting
and published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
respectively pursuant to the Listing Rules. At the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 22 June 2020, all resolutions, including the approval of
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2019, were passed by poll by the
Shareholders.

Convening of extraordinary general meeting and
putting forward proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a general
meeting according to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of
Hong Kong) and the Articles of Association of the Company. According to
Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company, extraordinary general
meetings shall also be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the company secretary of the Company for the purpose of requiring an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
2 months after the deposit of such requisition.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director, Article 113 of the
Articles of Association of the Company stipulates that no person, other than a
retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Board for election, be
eligible for election to the office of Director at any general meeting, unless
notice in writing of the intention to propose that person for election as a
Director and notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected
shall have been lodged at the Head Office or at the Registration Office. The
period for lodgment of the notices required under the Article will commence
no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than seven days prior to the date
of such general meeting and the minimum length of the period during which
such notices to the Company may be given will be at least seven days. The
procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a director
are available on the website of the Company.
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Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the Company to
the Board could email their enquiries to investor@longitech.hk.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Reporting Period, there is no significant change in constitutional
documents of the Company.
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To the Shareholders of Longitech Smart Energy Holding Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of LongiTech Smart
Energy Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) set out on pages 79 to 203, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flow for the year ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the “Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”)’s “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Recoverability of trade receivables

Key Audit Matter
BEEEEE

B % &5 EE )
g 3PN E R T E

Our response

M EE

Refer to note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.
BT E MM FE26 -

As at 31 December 2020, the gross carrying amount of trade
receivables amounted to RMB395,085,000, with loss allowance
amounting to RMB203,296,000.
RZEBEZZFF+_A=+—H BESFERKRARENEREEDA
B8/ AR¥3950850007T ' EFFROEBEEAARE
203,296,0007T °

The Group assesses expected credit loss allowances (“ECL”) of
trade receivables using credit risk exposure and expected credit
loss rates. The Group assesses the expected credit losses on a
forward looking basis. When measuring expected credit losses,
the Group considers historical loss rates, current market
conditions and available reasonable and supportive forwarding-
looking information, including economic policies,
macroeconomic indicators, industry risks and changes in
debtors’ conditions.
EEECERESRRFRNERRRK D REHERIEXR
EHEEMEABR(EAEHAERX]D - E5ERAE
MEEFEBRMEREX EEEHERALNK Y &8
EEZRELBELEE BERimasMiARAANEGEEAEREX
FUENMEER  BFELCBERR 28L& BEEZR TXR
B KRB AR E L -

Our audit procedures included:

BB R 81

e  Ascertaining our understanding on the policy and operating
effectiveness on internal controls which oversee credit
control, debt collection and estimate of expected credit
loss;

e WMERMUEECEZE EBKRRMEHEMBER
1825 B9 P B B 4 B ISR R 3B /R A R Y 3 AR

e Assessing on a sample basis, whether items in the trade
receivables aging report were classified within the
appropriate aging bracket by comparing individual items in
the report with relevant sales invoices;

s KEZBRWFBERKBESANEILHE RABMHEER
EE - MEFAEEERREESAREREDEEE

B R RE AR

e Assessing the appropriateness of the key input data, on a
sample basis, used by management to develop the
historical loss rates and assessing the sufficiency, reliability
and relevance of that data;

e MEAEEBERAUGNGTELBRENEZEH AR
BoaBElt UARFEZEBENT DL AIEERE
B
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Recoverability of trade receivables

Key Audit Matter
BEEEEE

B % &5 EE )
g 3PN E R T E

Our response

189 = e

Assessment on the recoverability of trade receivables and the
sufficiency of the related loss allowances for ECL are performed
by the management.

$8 5 e R IE A e R st TR ER M IR kAT IR AR & 18
BEZSENTEIBHEREED -

In carrying out impairment assessment of trade receivables
under the ECL model, significant management judgement was
used to determine the underlying estimations.
EFERERBARE TETE S RUBKRERERGR &
BEDERERHEAEERB MG -
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e Involving an auditor’s expert to assist us in evaluating and
assessing the appropriateness of the assessment
methodologies and the reasonableness of the key
assumptions and estimations used in the assessment;

o IBFEREANE R 1B IR B R AT E R A TR A
el AN G EERFERE LGNS EN

e Discussing with management about the recoverability status
of material overdue balances and assess whether provision
is required; and

e HEEEMmUWEERNEAERNKEARTERES
HEEE N



Recoverability of financial assets measured at

amortised cost

Key Audit Matter
ERETSEE

BRBENATENEREENT
W =1 14

Our response

EM o e

Refer to note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
ELRRA M HRERME23

As at 31 December 2020, the gross carrying amount of financial
assets at amortised cost amounted to RMB151,931,000, with
loss allowance amounting to RMB79,070,000.
RZEZEF+_A=+—H REBHEHAAFENEHME
FEREAE A ARA151,931,0007T - BrHENEBEEE B
AR ¥79,070,000 7T °

The Group took into account reasonable and substantiated
historical data such as principal and interest payment schedule,
ageing, repayment history, subsequent repayment, financial
information of the counterparties, and available forward-looking
information to determine whether the credit risk has significantly
increased since initial recognition and to calculate expected
credit losses.

EEBEEZRABALEENELEN AL MAE X
K R B HREREBRL RHANHK
BRARATAMAEEER - AEEERRR B 915 #ER
IARERBEEEIN Wt EFREHREAEL -

Assessment on the recoverability of financial assets at amortised
cost and the sufficiency of the related loss allowances for ECL
are performed by the management.
HiEHK A ENEeREEN AT RE M KB HEHE
Kt REAEERER MO EDHEEREEDL -

In carrying out impairment assessment of financial assets at
amortised cost under the ECL model, significant management
judgement was used to determine the underlying estimations.
EEMERABRRE TETREBHENASEN SR EER
B BREECIERERABAEEH@ME -

Our audit procedures included:

BHMEARFEE:

e  Ascertaining our understanding on relevant controls in place
on granting loans to third parties and on management’s
assessment on the recoverability of financial assets at
amortised cost;

e BERMEME=ABRTERMEHEBMAEZERHE
B E SR B E P R E B & B R E R W E M AR T S
IR R

e (Checking the aging analysis, on a sample basis, against
repayment terms set out on loan agreements and
settlement of the loan receivables, on a sample basis, to the
source documents, including bank statements;

s MEBARTAEFRAXGIMERERESTEE
B ERPUARERERNEE BN

e Assessing the appropriateness of the key input data, on a
sample basis, used by management to develop the
historical loss rates and assessing the sufficiency, reliability
and relevance of that data;

e MEAGEBRERAUGGTIELBRENEEZG AR
BoaBElt ARFEZEENTR DT AJEERE
Bt

® Involving an auditor’s expert to assist us in evaluating and
assessing the appropriateness of the assessment
methodologies and the reasonableness of the key
assumptions and estimations used in the assessment; and

o IBFEREANE RGBT E R E R A T AT
el AN G EEREFERZRMEFTHEEE &
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Recoverability of financial assets measured at

amortised cost (continued)

Key Audit Matter
ERETSEE

B ETEIE @

REBERATENEREENT
W B M o)

Our response

EM o e

OTHER MATTER

Evaluating the historical accuracy of the management’s
assessment of impairment for loan receivables, on a sample
basis, by examining the actual write-offs, the reversal of
previous recorded allowance and new allowances recorded
in the current year in respect of loan receivables at the end
of the previous financial year.

TR T B B 32 2 48 1 P 1E I W E FOR (B AT (4 B EHE AR
B 7IAERBE L —MRFEARKEWE TN ER
HH - 18 0 8 1E P RC SR B BN AN B RO B T A -

HtE=H

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 &B&£EBHZE_ZT—hFE+_A=+—"HIEF
December 2019 were audited by another auditor who expressed an EHWEGEASHBHRERBE S M ZEEDFZ %

unmodified opinion on those statements on 30 March 2020.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging
their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

ol

%‘ REMBEHRR
Z3

¥ 2B R
AEW

\
Mqﬁ

)WHW

e HEZHARBLESTERMNBENS
fER & o IRIBFTER M T /RFE
E%ETE@%ET|E§%WEK$
WEM RMAEERYE E5ENF
ﬁE”“%ﬁ?ﬂEiiﬁ B tnRE IR
REFESERTHEN HELEERH
B ¥R & 1R 5 ﬁﬁﬁ%&ﬁlm/\ﬁﬁﬁ‘%ﬁﬁi\%
FHEERE BREBHENEETTE -
AR MEREERIFERBER - HMH
EREENZEMEE B EMIRENE
IR AM o RKREBEHABRAAES
H BEEBETRBELE -

s HELKAMBHERMEEIIFSA -
BMAR BREEE- J«/{&%maﬂﬁ%%
EEFERMRSMEE -

e B EKEWE‘@i%ﬁ%%@JE’JHﬂ%E
BEDRTR EEHNE C LA(E B
,ﬁﬁ:éﬁﬁﬂ_‘%iﬁﬁ%?éﬁiﬁ ?ﬂsz’ﬁ%a "
SEEBEFNTM EEMAT - HMA
BB RAERREE

BREMEEN RMERREZEBEBR T
FmESEE KETHE EXFAERS
BEIMERFTEHINLEADENNERNE
KRG

BMERBZZESRIBH HBAKRMS
NeRBBYIMENABEERERER Y M
BB EAREEERRETERME
VENAEREMEMER AREERD
BRAT  HEEMEEE -

BEFMNEZERERERAT  FIR 2020

87



88

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B % B R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Chan Wing Fai

Practising Certificate no. P05443

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

PROFIT OR LOSS
mEE@mK

|Forthe year ended 31 December2020 HZ —Z -ZEF+ - A=+—HLFE

2020 2019
—E-2E TR
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B = AR¥ET T AREF T
Revenue Wz 5(a) 396,413 147,460
Cost of sales $HE KA 6 (309,105) (68,786)
Gross profit EF 87,308 78,674
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX 6 (11,150) (1,740)
Administrative expenses TR X 6 (40,688) (72,212)
Impairment losses on financial and contract assets £ @I R AN EER
B R 8 (3,316) (316,169)
Other income H A A 9 445 585
Other gains — net H W28 858 10 1,139 2,100
Operating profit/(loss) LR, (BE) 33,738 (308,762)
Finance income RN 11 5,740 13,461
Finance expenses RE R 11 (21,247) (35,989)
Finance expenses — net mEMY R (15,507) (22,528)
Share of net (loss)/profit of associates accounted for — ££ F3 # z% 7& A Bk A9 B &
using the equity method AW (4 E) fmFlmhE 20 (17,248) 5,422
Profit/(loss) before income tax MRAET BB AR (&E) 983 (325,868)
Income tax (expense)/credit 5 (FX), Mzt 12 (2,240) 64,454
Loss for the year FABRE (1,257) (261,414)

BEFMNEZERERERAT  FIR 2020

89



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mEBRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

2020 2019
—EBE-FHF —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

iik=3 ARBTR ARETTT

Profit/(loss) is attributable to: LR EAERFL(BR) :
Owners of the Company RATBHEE A 1,064 (264,522
Non-controlling interests FE 125 AR HE (2,321) 3,108

(1,257) (261,414)
Earnings/(loss) per share for profit/(loss) EATEEANEERR

attributable to owners of the Company (RMB): (BE)NERERN
(BFR)(ARY) :

Basic earnings/(loss) per share BRERBF(EE) 13 0.0007 (0.1782)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share BlRESREAN(EB) 13 0.0007 (0.1782)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e EHEWER

|As at 31 December 2020 R—ZE - E+-A=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EFE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREF T
Loss for the year FREBE (1,257) (261,414
Other comprehensive income HibZ2EWBA
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to FE# AIBEEF n B i EH
profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of financial MEBINETE I WK PTE £
statements of overseas operations HYBE 57 = &8 (9,041) 3,450
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year, FREM2E(EBR) WA
net of tax A BR B IE (9,041) 3,450
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRE2HEBEAE (10,298) (257,964)
Total comprehensive loss for the year is DTEMFAZEEEELE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NEEIE7F TN (7,977) (261,072)
Non-controlling interests IR R (2,321) 3,108
(10,298) (257,964)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION
R MBI R

As at 31 December 2020 R —ZE-FE+-A=+—H

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B = ARE TR ARET T
Assets BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BENLKE 14 442,794 477,990
Right-of-use assets FERAEEE 15 16,143 19,861
Intangible assets EREE 16 6,789 9,551
Deferred tax assets BELERIBBEE 17 71,692 70,007
Contract assets EREE 18 - 43,738
Investments accounted for using the equity method A &5 A ABRHKRE 20 263,397 280,645
Financial assets at amortised cost BB K ARG E W
TREE 23 - 13,750
Other non-current assets HMIERBEE 24 9,605 10,969
Total non-current assets kREBEELTE 810,420 926,511
Current assets RENEE
Inventories FE 25 28,991 8,755
Contract assets EHEE 18 181,263 361,728
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E b E W SRIA 26 258,199 175,969
Financial assets at amortised cost REHEK AT EN B
BE 23 72,861 123,272
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss RATEFEAEEZS
STABERNSREE 22 47,061 157,003
Restricted cash SR # 3R & 27 139 66,388
Cash and cash equivalents HEeRESZEY 28 155,446 32,228
Total current assets REBEEALE 743,960 925,343
Total assets EEHEE 1,554,380 1,851,854
Equity and liabilities EnRkAE
Share capital % 7% 29(a) 12,255 12,255
Reserves &G 29(b) 1,143,917 1,162,613
Retained earnings IREB B 8% 38,758 40,918
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AATREE AEGEES 1,194,930 1,215,786
Non-controlling interests FERER 6,986 9,307
Total equity REmE 1,201,916 1,225,093
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMBERRR
JAS at 31 December 2020 R —ZE—T&+—HA=+—Q

2020 2019
—E_EHF —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

iik=3 ARBTR ARETTT

Liabilities =K

Non-current liabilities FERBEAR

Borrowings (==t 30 211,000 235,400
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 9,213 12,016
Deferred government grants i SE AT 47 B 2,173 2,279
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBAEG 17 11,490 11,891
Total non-current liabilities kRBEERAE 233,876 261,586
Current liabilities REBEE

Trade and other payables B 5 R H b N FRIB 31 68,919 50,184
Contract liabilities EHBE 11,939 1,009
Current tax liabilities BNEARiTE & & 10,604 11,854
Borrowings I=ay 30 24,400 299,000
Lease liabilities HERE 15 2,726 3,128
Total current liabilities BB EAE 118,588 365,175
Total liabilities EEAE 352,464 626,761
Total equity and liabilities EEREEHE 1,554,380 1,851,854

The financial statements on pages 79 to 203 were approved by the Board of £79B £ £203B & BRER T = —F

Directors on 31 March 2021 and were signed on its behalf A=+t BREZSHE LHTINES
REES
Wei Qiang Wei Shaojun
e BROE
Director Director
EF EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

IIV_\/EI\*EE&%EJJ%

J
For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
ARAHEEAER

Share-based Non-

Share Share  Statutory compensation Exchange Other  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  eamnings Total interests Total equity

MR % 11 8

Bx  RGEE EEEE BMGERE EXRE EtEEF RERK A FEREE  ARs
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'00D  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT ARBTR ARETI ARBTR ARBTI ARBTRL ARMTE ARBTT ARETTE

At 1 January 2019 RZZ-NEF
—-A-H 12,255 1,090,355 35,645 11,739 12,461 4,187 307,248 1,473,790 6,159 1,479,949

Comprehensive income ~ 2HEWA

Loss for the year FERER - - - - - - (64522 (26452 3108 (261414)
Other comprehensive Hit2EKA
income - — - - 3,450 - - 3,450 - 3,450
Total comprehensive loss 2 [ /& 8 4 5 - = = = 3,450 - (264,622) (261,072 3,108 (257,964)
Contrioutions of equity BELE - - - - - - - - 40 40
Appropriation to statutory ~ BEZ % E H A
reserve - - 1,808 - - - (1,808) - - -
Equity-settled share-based 1% 1 5 45 & LA 7
transactions YRR S = = = 3,068 = = = 3,068 - 3,068
- - 1,808 3,068 - — (1,808) 3,068 40 3,108
Balance at 31 December A= - F
2019 and 1 January +=A=+-1H
2020 )i dmt i 33
—-A—-B&&H 12,255 1,090,355 37,353 14,807 15,911 4,187 40,918 1,215,786 9,307 1,225,093
Comprehensive income  2EKA
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - 1,064 1,064 (2,321) (1,257)
Other comprehensive loss - fth 2 B 18 - - - - (9,041) - - (9,041) - (9,041)
Total comprehensive loss 2 5 B4 5 - - - - (9,041) - 1,064 797 (2321)  (10,298)

en

Appropriation to statutory ~ #E & E H &

reserve - - 3,224 - - - (3,224) - - -
Equity-settled share-based 118 25 £ B LA (7
transactions IRNR S - - - (12,879) - - - (12,879) - (12,879)
- - 3,224 (12,879) - - (3,224) (12,879) - (12,879)
Balance at 31 December R=-ZB=ZfF
2020 +=A=+-H
b33 12,255 1,090,355 40,577 1,928 6,870 4,187 38,758 1,194,930 6,986 1,201,916
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GFERITRER

|For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ - Z -—TF+-A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—B-BF —
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B = ARMT T AR T T
Cash flows from operating activities RETBHAERERE
Cash generated from operations KEFTSIE 4 33 194,240 188,506
Interest received WER F B 1,099 284
Income tax paid AT S R (5,575) (1,274)
Net cash generated from operating activities RETHMERLFE 189,764 187,516
Cash flows from investing activities REZBHMEREESRE
Payments for property, plant and equipment BYE BEERREZMS
FKIE (964) (17,081)
Payments for intangible assets MEREENHRIE - (121)
Payments for investments in associates RN WG/ - (245,000)
Loans to related parties BT 35(a) - (98,045)
Loans to third parties BERTE=H - (127,568)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries B EK B AR S RE - 2,000
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME  MEMZEHN
equipment S HIE 702 4,311
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at HEZATFEFEEEE
fair value through profit or loss I AERHNEREE
1§ 30 IR 107,548 4,072
Repayment of loans by related parties BT EE B R 30,113 165,946
Repayment of loans by third parties E=ZHEEER 47,868 102,850
Repayment of advance to related parties EEEH 5 HER 5,241 =
Interest received on financial assets at amortised cost iz BY & #& 5% Bk 78 5+ 2 1Y
T REE E RS 4,641 12,487
Distributions received from associate W ER B & A R 9 R AR B, - 8,597
Cash received on exercise of put option WER SR 4 B IR & - 7,403
Government grants received W ER IR A 48 Bk - -
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash PR H1 2R & R (38 ) 66,249 (65,169)
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing REZTEFRE (A BES
activities HEE 261,398 (245,268)

BEERMES

RERIZRABMIRAR  F3 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

REREMER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

2020 2019
—B-BF TR
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5= ARBT R ARBT T
Cash flows from financing activities RMEITBRMEREERE
Proceeds from equity contribution of IR R EMS
non-controlling shareholders RIA - 40
Repayment of borrowings BEMEE (299,000) (33,200)
Interest paid XA AR (21,247) (35,879)
Principal elements of lease payments HMENFAEHD (8,117) (2,855)
Funds received from related parties BB W E 2 35(a) 2,037 4
Repayment of funds to related parties BEEHRINES 35(a) (172) (752)
Net cash used in financing activities REIBMARESFE (321,499) (72,572)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRESZEEWEM
cash equivalents Om2) 28 129,663 (130,324)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year R FEFHR & KIR &
ZEY 32,228 162,917
Exchange losses on cash and cash equivalents ReRReEBYER
& 18 (6,445) (365)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year RERNEESRERS
£EY 28 155,446 32,228
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BwRME

GENERAL INFORMATION

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 January 2011 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO
Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, the Cayman Islands. The
Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 12 January 2012.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in smart energy business and public infrastructure
construction business. The two major shareholders of the Company
are Longevity Investment Holding Limited and Lightway Power Holdings
Limited. The ultimate beneficial owner of the Company is Mr. Wei
Shaojun (the “controlling shareholder”).

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”), which include all applicable individual International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards
(“IASs”) and Interpretations issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain
financial assets measured at fair value.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

|Forthe year ended 31 December2020 HZ —Z -ZEF+ - A=+—HLFE

—REHR

BEEFMBEZERERERAA(TAR
ADR=ZZE——F - AmNAREHSH
SRAE(FE228) (AN —FEIRE
Bl - &imE R1ER]) EH S H S T MK
N AEERRER AR o oM EE it
& Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box
13850, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands e XA RIRHO R =T —=F — A
TZAERABERSMBR AT ER
e

ARRRAEKMBLRAR(EBIAEE]D
FTERFEEZEREBTRABRER

e R RAaEMHAEZEMR R ALongevity
Investment Holding Limited X Lightway
Power Holdings Limited ° ZX A 7] #) £z &8 &

BEBEARRIERE(THERBKRE]D -

EXEFHERBE

21 IAEE

AEBOEGREMBRERTVIREHAEEM
f) B B B 7% R 5 2 R ([ B R B 75 o o5 2
AN (EEaEReEREES ((H
REdEREEE)BROENMABER
BRI BB B 5 3R 5 R - BB @5t &R
(TEFR e A MEBAS) RBER
AGRINBEERERE HAMBHRE
TTABESERASERRFR  EETRA
FEAENEREERIN

MR BT A BIBR B 75 S AW B F 3Rk
FERRAETERG G TREE
EEAERAASEN S BRREEDL
HIH o F MBS AR E A B SE I
B AIBRILGEAEGEEHBHRREK
) S0 B O BT RE A 4R BB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE -—FF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has adopted all the new and amended IFRSs which are

effective for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1

January 2020 and throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

° IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting
Palicies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors (Amendment
— Definition of Material)

° IFRS 3 Business Combinations (Amendment — Definition of a
Business)
° Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

None of these new or amended IFRSs has a material impact on the
Group’s results and financial position for the current or prior period. The
Group has not early applied any new or amended IFRSs that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited  Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

|Forthe year ended 31 December2020 HZ —Z -ZEF+ - A=+—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.2New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

The following published new accounting standards and interpretations

are not mandatory for 31 December 2020 reporting periods and have

not been early adopted by the Group:

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Amendments to IFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between

IAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture®

IFRS 17 Insurance Contract*

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-Current?

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:

Proceeds before Intended Use?

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts Cost of Fulfiling a
Contract?
Annual Improvements to Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9,
IFRSs 2018-2020 lllustrative Examples accompanying

IFRS 16 and IAS 412

Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and ~ Phase 2'
IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 4 Extension of the Temporary Exemption

from Applying IFRS 9*

Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contract*

BERAETHERHBE @

21 B EE @)
212 ARV HER & T2

nE
LTREBBEGHSEIRBEAERE
E_E_EFE+_F=+—HIENRE
HAR R Rl ARk B REARE EIR
ATER A

BBXEF sk 5 22 R BERAEZRA) S| A2
EIRAIEF]

BBREf s a5 22 R A HHEHBE D
F10R RBEEE FeEhEL
STERFE28KA  MEEML Sk
5 A8

B B B 75 R 25 RS 4
AEBIZE17 557

B & 5T 2R BEMRBKIFR
F1RANIERT #En*
B & 5T 2R ME - BE MR
F16ANEFT o EREER
i B H 2E U2
B & 5T 2R BRESHNETA

EITHMEET #9 /Y B A2

2018-2020 [ & B PR B 75 3R 45 ZE Al

ISR ELERNR F15  BERHH

FE HAERIZFE ISR -
BB B 7 R
B EA65R A
T~ R B
R FE 415 E
HE

BRSO s R 5 2R FREERE —

Fo5 EREEr H2RE!

AR 3957 © BB

B ISR ELERIET

5% BB SRS

7RI 25 4 5% &2 B B

B ISR 5 E RIS

1655 K& 7]
B HRE LR EREBEKRYE
FAFHER] EEAIF TR

R e
BB BEREER RERAHQ!
FATHRHERT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE -—FF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.2New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
s No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

These standards are not expected to have a material impact on the
Group in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

2.2.1Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity where the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to
direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business
combinations by the Group (Note 2.3).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are
shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity
and balance sheet, respectively.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited  Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

2.2.2 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence
but not control or joint control. This is generally the case where the
Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments
in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting
(Note 2.2.3), after initially being recognised at cost.

2.2.3 Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit or
loss, and the Group’s share of movements in other comprehensive
income of the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates are recognised as a reduction in
the carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment
equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf
of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested for
impairment in accordance with the policy described in Note 2.9.

JFor the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ - Z -—TF+-A=+—HIFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all
business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments or
other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

o fair values of the assets transferred,

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business,

° equity interests issued by the Group,

° fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity and acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity over the fair value
of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the
business acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Business combinations (continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the
amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present value as
at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing
could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified as either
equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date
carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains
or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

2.4 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend
is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.

JFor the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —Z T HF+ - A=+—HIFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # = —

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The Board of Directors of the Company has identified the senior
executive management as the chief operating decision-maker, who
assesses the financial performance and position of the Group, makes
strategic decisions and allocates resources.

2.6 Foreign currency translation

2.6.1 Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Chinese
renminbi (‘RMB”), which is the Group’s presentation currency.

2.6.2 Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year-end exchange rates are
generally recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they
relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges or are attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign
operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are
presented in the statement of profit or loss, within finance costs. All
other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement
of profit or loss on a net basis within other gains/(losses).

Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

2.6.2 Transactions and balances (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. For example, translation differences on non-monetary assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equities
classified as fair value through other comprehensive income are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.6.3Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet,

° income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss and
statement of comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions), and

° all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or revalued amounts, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives or, in the case of leasehold improvements and
certain leased plant and equipment, the shorter lease term, as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 5-25 years
Motor vehicles 5-10 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its

estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount and included in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Intangible assets
2.8.1 Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2.3. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is
not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying
amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (“CGUSs”) for impairment
testing. The allocation is made to those CGUs or groups of CGUs that
are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose. The CGUs or groups of CGUs are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes, being the operating segments.

2.8.2Patent

Patent acquired in a business combination is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. It has a finite useful life and is subsequently carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any.

2.8.3Software

Acquired computer software is stated at historical cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. Costs associated with maintaining software programmes are
recognised as an expense as incurred.

2.8.4 Amortisation methods and periods
The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited useful life using
the straight-line method over the following periods:

Software
Patent

5 years
10 years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # = —

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets or CGUs. Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

2.10Investments and other financial assets

2.10.1Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through
profit or loss or through other comprehensive income (“OCI”)),
and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will be recorded in
either profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity instruments that
are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.10Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

2.102Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

2.103Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVPL”) are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment
of principal and interest.

(@) Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with foreign exchange
gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate
line item in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10Investments and other financial

assets
(Continued)

2.10.3Measurement (Continued)

(@)

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited

Debt instruments (Continued)
FVOCI

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and
for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through
OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised
in other gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
other gains/(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

FVPL

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI
are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that
is subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss
and presented net within other gains/(losses) in the period in
which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

|For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ - Z -—TF+-A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

2.10.3Measurement (Continued)

(b) Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value.
Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised in
other gains/(losses) in the statement of profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

2104Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost
and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

The Group has three types of financial assets that are subject to the
expected credit loss model:
° trade and other receivables,

o contract assets relating to public infrastructure construction
business, and

° debt investments carried at amortised cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.10Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

2.1041mpairment (Continued)
While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment
requirements of IFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was immaterial.

Impairment losses on financial assets are presented as net impairment
losses within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the same line item. Financial
assets are written off where there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery
include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group.

()  Trade and other receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for trade receivables and contract assets. The contract assets relate to
unbilled work in progress. To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables and contract assets have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and ageing, assessed collectively or
individually for likelihood of recovery.

Impairment on other receivables is measured as either 12 months’
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit loss, depending on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk of a receivable has
occurred since initial recognition, then impairment is measured as
lifetime expected credit losses.

Quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s loss allowance for

contract assets and trade and other receivables as at 31 December
2020 are disclosed in Note 18 and 26.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.10Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

2.1041mpairment (Continued)

(i) Debt investments carried at amortised cost

Impairment on the Group’s debt investments carried at amortised cost
is measured as either 12 months’ expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit losses, depending on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Debt
instruments are considered to be low credit risk where they have a low
risk of default and the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term. If a significant
increase in credit risk of a debt investment has occurred since initial
recognition, then impairment is measured as lifetime expected credit
losses. Quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s loss
allowance for debt investments carried at amortised cost as at 31
December 2020 are disclosed in Note 23.

2.11Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates
and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

2.12Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration
that is unconditional unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

The Group’s impairment policies of trade receivables are disclosed in
Note 3.1.2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and deposits held at call
with banks.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.15Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to
the Group prior to the end of the financial year which are unpaid. Trade
and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment
is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the
establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of
the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has
been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

2.17 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on
the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

2.18.1Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18Current and deferred income tax (continued)

2.182Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that future
taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and where
the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current
tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19Employee benefits

2.19.1Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and
accumulating sick leave that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’
services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the
balance sheet.

2.192Post-employment obligations
The Group’s post-employment scheme are defined contribution
pension plan.

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entiting them to the
contributions. The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid.

2.20Share-based payments

The fair value of options granted is recognised as an employee benefit
expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options
granted:

° including any market performance conditions (for example, the
Company’s share price),

o excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time
period), and

° including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example,
the requirement for employees to save or hold shares for a
specific period of time).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20Share-based payments (continued)

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, over which all
of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of
each period, the Group revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates,
if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

2.21 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the asset is transferred
to the customer. Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the asset may be transferred over
time or at a point in time. Control of the asset is transferred over time if
the Group’s performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer,

° creates and enhances an asset (for example, working progress)
that the customer controls as the Group performs, or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to the payments for the
performance completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is recognised over
the period of the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the asset. The progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation is measured based on one of the following
methods that best depict the Group’s performance in satisfying the
performance obligation:

° direct measurements of the value to the customer of the goods
or services transferred to date relative to the remaining goods or
services promised under the contract, or

° the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the

performance obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the
satisfaction of that performance obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

|For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ - Z -—TF+-A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.22Earnings per share

2.22.1Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable
to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year.

2222Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination
of basic earnings per share to take into account:

° the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

° the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that
would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.23Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the
Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-
lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any
lease incentives receivable,

° variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date,

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Leases (Continued)

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise that option, and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the
case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes
in financing conditions since third party financing was received,

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate
adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which does
not have recent third party financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, for example, term,
country, currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease
payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in the
lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments
based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed
and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23Leases (Continued)

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received,

o any initial direct costs, and
U restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-
use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or
loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less.

2.24Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being
appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the Group,
on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the
end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.25Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred government
grants and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.

2.26Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
is included in the net fair value gains/(losses) on these assets (Note 10).

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned from
debt investments carried at amortised cost (Note 11).

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets
that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

|For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ - Z -—TF+-A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Related parties

a. A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to
the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

b. An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

0} The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member);

@iy  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vij  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

2. EXEHHEBREmw

227RAEE T

—BALTHZALTRENAR
BCE TR BAEEE MRZ

a.

AL

M

(i)

(i)

HAEEERZEHKAR
2

HAEBEREATE &

bz

EAEEXRAEEE QA
MREEABMNKE -

3

MRATERMBERER B —HE
RS T HE 7K £5 (5] A B -

(i)

(i)

(v)

(vi)

ZEBIASERFA-—%E
MKB(EEREE —8AQ
A -MERRRRZRKE R
Az IR E R

(]2
e

—Fﬁﬁﬁ-\‘%ﬂzjﬂ—?‘%ﬁ'\]
REHEEEHE (S —F
BRKEMEBRHKES /&

RAEKABDLE):

ﬂﬁ

ol
foiz

/U]]l]
il

ﬁUd?
[1]
d-l,
=

™ [ B 58 & = [
BEDE:

%

—HEEES
TCEVTHZE—F

EROBEAT

==
B =
L}
=3

[ 1

N F
# o>

Pl

EREASAKEREARE
BOEEBNEERA
BER R AR A&

S BN
%5 o b

E’r%mﬁ

ZE B X (B MM AL AT
il 2 E =

BERNESSERIEREMRAT &1k 2020 123



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE -—FF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Related parties (continued)

b. (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is @ member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

(viii) -~ The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i)~ dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic
partner.

2.28 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported
in the consolidated financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics in respect of the nature of products and services, the
nature of production processes, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

|For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ - Z -—TF+-A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3.

This note explains the Group’s exposure to financial risks and how
these risks could affect the Group’s future financial performance.

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk), credit risk, concentration risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

3.1.1 Market risk

(@) Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s foreign exchange risk is primarily with respect to the US
dollar (“US$”). Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a
currency that is not the functional currency of the relevant entity. The
risk is measured through a forecast of highly probable US$
transactions.

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk as at 31 December 2020
and 2019, expressed in RMB, is as follows:
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4 5
46,099 152,090
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea) 3. Bf 5 B b2 & 2 ()

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MBEEEE®
3.1.1Market risk (Continued) 3.1.1 ™ 5 & K ()
(@) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (@) SMNE R Bz (&)
The following foreign-exchange related amounts were recognised in REBEE-_E_EFR_FE—NFE+=H
profit or loss for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019: ET+—BIEFEERERNIINEER S
BT :
2020 2019
—ERCRF —E-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARBTT

Net foreign exchange losses included in other BEREMKZFENELEIER

gains — net FER (819) (325)
As most of the Group’s US$ denominated financial instruments are HRAEBRKIT D AETAENS R T
held by the Group’s entity whose functional currency is Hong Kong ERAERHeEEEABT(BT])
dollar (“HK$”), the Group is primarily exposed to changes in US$/HK$ EREBEE AFEFZEBRETILAET
exchange rates. The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the HWERES B EBERBEUNETE
exchange rates arising mainly from US$ denominated financial BENSRITEERSEHHNHREN T
instruments is as follows: BT~ :

2020 2019
et g —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARETT

US$/HK$ exchange rate — increase 5% 2T 5 T Y PE R — 18 15% 2,305 7,605
US$/HKS exchange rate — decrease 5% ETLHABTHEER — B 5% (2,305) (7,605)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.1 Market risk (Continued)

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings.
Borrowings with variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk which is offset by cash held at variable rates. Borrowings with
fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. During the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s borrowings
were all denominated in RMB. The interest rates and the terms of
repayments of the Group’s borrowings are disclosed in Note 30.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s borrowings amounting to
RMB235,400,000 (2019: RMB259,400,000) were at variable interest
rates. As at 31 December 2020, if the interest rates on the Group’s
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, profit before income tax would have been
RMB2,354,000 lower/higher (2019: loss before income tax would have
been RMB2,594,000 higher/lower), as a result of higher/lower interest
expense.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s borrowing amounting to RMBnil
(2019: RMB275,000,000) was at fixed interest rates. The fair value of
this fixed interest rate borrowing estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate for similar
financial instruments available to the Group is RMBnil (2019:
RMB276,884,000).

3.1.2Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, contractual cash
flows of debt instruments carried at amortised cost and at fair value
through profit or loss, as well as credit exposures to customers,
including outstanding receivables.

In respect of deposit with banks, the Group mitigates its exposure to
credit risk by placing deposits with banks with established credit rating.
Given the high credit ratings of the banks, management does not
expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

JFor the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ - Z -—TF+-A=+—HIFE

3.

TR REEE

31 BEREZEm
&Hﬁ%HA

b) BHzigEk 73 18 71 K 7
AEBOFZRABREERBERABE -
FEEESAESEAZTR S RENEKE
B BERBREIZZEFENERS K
H- EEBESAERAR A TERX

BB -B#E_Z_ZTFER-_T—NF+
_H:+*H¢¢E’$%§W%E%
HBUAARKEGE AEEEENF XK
2 EA IR A B 30 FR B FE o

T _TE+-_A=+—H K&
S 2 E A A R #235,400,0007T (=

: A R #259400,0007T ) ° A
T_ZTF+-_A=+—H A&
EEERNEEATHRIC0EES - B
FTEEMERERTE  MBEHAIZE
R EER ATS R AR AT
B/ 7 AR 82354000 (=ZF—Hh
FBRABHAEBE LA/ TRARE
2,594,0007T) °

IIMHH@%

A
|| :rfm} 0

—

RZZE_ZEF+=_A=1+—H £5H
EEBEAARBZL(ZE—NF:
A R #275,000,00070) ° % E B & & &
NFEEEZEAKREHNRESRENLRERTA
FEUSERT BAE TSN EITIE G
AAARBZET(ZE—NLF: ARK
276,884,0007T) °

J12EER MR
CERRAREBSRESEEY  UE
WRARKRATFEG SRS AB
HMEBRTANANBRLREUREF
HIEEER - B RS B RIE

RBOTERME  AREBEREFRR
B Eﬁi‘ﬁ’]@mﬁ%%uﬁﬂfﬁﬁﬁ%x
MEERR - ERZERITHEETR
B EEERHAEHARSHE FRE
BITEEENER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.2Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of trade receivables, credit evaluations are performed on all
customers. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to pay, taking into
account the information specific to the customer as well as relating to
the economic environment in which the customer operates. Normally,
the Group does not obtain any security from its customers. Further
quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in Note 26.

The Group’s investment in debt instruments are regularly monitored for
credit deterioration by management. Quantitative disclosures in respect
of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from debt investments are
disclosed in Note 23.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December 2020
is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated balance sheet after deducting any impairment allowances.

The Group does not provide any financial guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

3.1.3Concentration risk

For the year ended 31 December 2020, 37% (2019: 59%) of the
Group’s revenue was derived from 1 customer (2019: four customers)
(Note 5(a)).

3.1.4Liquidity risk

Local managements in the operating entities of the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including short-term
investments of cash surpluses and raising loans to cover expected
cash demands, in accordance with practice and limits set by the
Group. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and compliance with the loan covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient cash and adequate committed credit facilities to
meet obligations in the short and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRERNE
|Forthe year ended 31 December2020 HZ —Z -ZEF+ - A=+—HLFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. BT E b2 E 2 @)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BBEBREE @
3.1.4Liquidity risk (Continued) 3.4/ E M B B (@)
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant TREAEER-_Z_ZEFR_ZT—Hh
maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities as at 31 F+Z A=+ —HBHERENIBERLS
December 2020 and 2019, disclosed in undiscounted cash flows HEHNLRAE T AEAERERT
(including interest payments calculated using contractual rates or, if HIEehes(BREAEGONMERFINE
variable, based on current rates at the end of the respective reporting HEHRNIBETHR(ERRZLE) Tt
period): 8RB AT ) B R
Within
1 yearoron Between Between 5 years Carrying
demand 1and2years 2and 5 years above Total amount
—FR
EEX -FEmME WMEERF BENRE st IREE

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000O ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'O0O  RMB'000
ARBTL ARBTL AR®TT AR®TT ARBTE ARETT

As at 31 December2020 R=-ZB=-ZT&

+t=A=+t-8
Borrowings EE 35,976 34,960 103,357 114,645 288,938 235,400
Trade and other payables % 5 [ H i g 1+t
B 68,919 - - - 68,919 68,919
Lease liabilities HEBRE 2,802 408 3,175 17,339 23,724 11,939
107,697 35,368 106,532 131,984 381,581 316,258
As at 31 December 2019 R-Z—h &
+=A=+-8
Borrowings HE 319,409 36,950 106,660 152,003 615,022 534,400
Trade and other payables & 5 & H i & 1
A 50,184 = = — 50,184 50,184
Lease liabilities HEAE 3,225 2,857 3,186 17,737 27,005 15,144
372,818 39,807 109,846 169,740 692,211 599,728
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its
ability to continue as a going concern to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group monitors its capital on the basis of gearing ratio, calculated
as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash. Total
capital is calculated as total equity plus net debt.

The Group’s strategy is to maintain its gearing ratio at a healthy level to
support its business activities. The main strategies adopted by the
Group include but not limited to reviewing future cash flow requirements
and monitoring the ability to meet debt repayment schedules,
maintaining an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and
adjusting investment and financing plans, if necessary, to ensure that
the Group has a reasonable level of capital. The gearing ratios as at 31
December 2020 and 31 December 2019 are as follows:

3.

B % B e B B )

32 EXEH

AEEEREANBNAREAZEE
MEBURBRLETN ARREHRE
BURSHMBBESFEATKMNE - I
BRFREEREBARSEEHA -

AEBUABLREZEA - LXTIR
BEBFERUNEEAHE -EHKEFR
ERBEEERARRASEBYRER
HRE BEAENEZAEMEER
R o

AEBNEBERFAGBLEEERED
KFE - U HFEHEE - ASEFIA
FTERBBEBEETRREBMRKES R
EERRERTNEBRESNE N #
REASENA#CERERARKE
MEpEsE(NFE) UERASEHE
EABKENEARA RZBE_ZTF+=
A=+—HBEZZE—NAF+ZA=1+—
ARBELRNT :

2020 2019

—EZEF —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARET T

Total borrowings BEERE 235,400 534,400
Lease liabilities HEAE 11,939 15,144
Less: cash and cash equivalents WIRERIREEEY (155,446) (32,228)
restricted cash SR IR 4 (139) (66,388)

Net debt B F58 91,754 450,928
Total equity T = 1B R 1,201,916 1,225,093
Total capital PRI 1,293,670 1,676,021
Gearing ratio BEL X 7.1% 26.9%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

3.3.1Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in
determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are
recognised and measured at fair value in the financial statements. To
provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments
into the three levels prescribed in the accounting standards as follows:

° Level 1
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based
on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period.

o Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the
use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

o Level 3
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in Level 3.

|Forthe year ended 31 December2020 HZ —Z -ZEF+ - A=+—HLFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3.

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

3.3.1 Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets measured at
fair value as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 on a recurring basis:

B 7 B B B 1 ()

33 AR EMEFT @

331 DT EE & #
TREIWAREBR -_ZE_ZEFERHL-_F—
NE+=—A=+ - AEREEEEENA
FEHBEHOREE

Fair value Significant unobservable inputs
AVE BEREBERAHE
Financial assets at As at Asat As at Asat Relationship of

fair value through profit or loss 31 December 31 December Fair value
(Note 22) 2020 2019 hierarchy Valuation techniques
BAVEGBEAASBHA R-B-RF R-T-NF
BHENERMEE (W2 TZHA=t-B TZA=t-H AVEER HERF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T R AR%TT

31 December 31December - unobservable
2020 2019 inputs to fair value
RZBZBF R-Z-NEF EBERERARBEAT
tZA=Z+-B TZA=+-H EBNBf
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETFT

Unlisted investment funds 46,099 152,090 Level3 Net asset value (Note) N/A N/A N/A  N/A

FETREES F=R FEEEMT) TER TER TER TER

Unlisted exchangeable bond 962 4913 Level 3 Market valuation method by~ Enterprise 1.20 2.20  The higher the enterprise
reference to enterprise value-to-sales value multiplier, the
value-to-sales multiple multiple higher the fair value.
and binomial model

FEMARBES F=R SECRBELHERY CXREELHE PEEEGHMES AT
mmBhEER B B Bl
B

Bond yield 35.09% 19.84%  The higher the bond yield,the
lower the fair value

EHREE BHhaZER ATE
A -

One year default rate 10.20% N/A  The higher the one-year
default rate, the lower the
fair value

—FHENE TER —FRENEER AT
B -

47,061 157,003

Note: The Group determines that the reported net asset value of the unlisted
investment funds represents the fair value of its investments in the unlisted
investment funds at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

3.3.1 Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and out of fair value
hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period. There were no
transfers between levels for recurring fair value measurements during
the year end 31 December 2020. The Group did not measure any
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value on a non-recurring
basis as at 31 December 2020.

3.3.2Valuation processes

Changes in fair value of investments in the unlisted investment fund,
Yue Xiu Stable Income Segregated Portfolio (“YueXiu SP”), is analysed
at the end of each half-yearly reporting period by the Group’s
management. Fair value of investments in the YueXiu SP is, at its most
basic level, equivalent to the summation of the estimated value of
underlying investments as if realised on the measurement date. The
proceeds from such hypothetical realisations would flow through to the
Group in an amount equal to the net asset value (“NAV”). Therefore, the
Group used the NAV as reported by the administrators of the YueXiu
SP as the basis for estimating fair value of investments in the YueXiu
SP. The Group’s management also reviews the financial information of
the YueXiu SP on an on-going basis.

For the unlisted exchangeable bond, the fair value is arrived at on the
basis of valuations carried out by an independent valuer on a half-yearly
basis. Determination of fair value is based on the best information
available in the circumstances and includes appropriate risk
adjustments for lack of marketability. Factors considered in determining
the fair value of this investment include multiples of comparable
companies listed on stock exchanges and discount rates based on
market information. The valuation report prepared by the independent
valuer is reported to and reviewed by the management on a half-yearly
basis.

JFor the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —Z T HF+ - A=+—HIFE
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AEEEEERSYEFERSHRY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3.

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

3.3.3Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs

The valuation techniques and inputs applied in determining the fair

values of the underlying investment portfolio of the YueXiu SP is as

B 7 B B B 1 ()

3.3 A EMFT @

&wﬁ%i%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁk%
BETAFRESTE

7 5 YueXiu SPAE I 18 & 41 & A T (& B %

P B R R A BRI T -

follows:
Relationship of
unobservable

Underlying investment Fair value Valuation Significant unobservable inputs

portfolio of Yue Xiu SP  hierarchy techniques inputs to fair value
FABEEABE

YueXiuSPHEBEREMLEE AFERER “HEHKM EEREBERNAYE EAFENER

Unlisted debt securities Level 3 Discounted cash flow Liquidity premium The higher the

analysis liquidity premium,

the lower the fair
value.

IEETERE? E=R REeERmEMBEHN B M (B mEERERS
NFEBIE -

Risk-adjusted discount rate ~ The higher the

discount rate, the
lower the fair value.

R Bz o BE AT 3R FHREMS  AF
BEBIE -
3.3.4Fair values of financial assets and liabilities 334FE B NATEEIEREN SR E
carried at other than fair value ENEENAYEE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried at
cost or amortised cost are not materially different from their fair values
as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 since either the instruments are
short-term in nature or the interest receivable/payable is close to the
current market rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting

estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results.
Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Group’s
accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that may have a financial impact on the Group and that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(@

(b)

Recoverability of trade receivables and
debt investments at amortised cost

The loss allowances for trade receivables and debt investments
at amortised cost are based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
assessment, based on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking information at the end of
each reporting period. In assessing forward-looking information,
the Group considers factors including macroeconomic factors,
industry risks and changes in debtors’ conditions. The changes
in the basis of estimation or economic conditions could lead to a
change in the level of credit loss allowance recorded and
consequently on the charge or credit to profit or loss.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined using valuation techniques. The
Group uses its judgment to select a variety of methods and make
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing
at each end of the reporting period. Details of the key
assumptions used are disclosed in Note 3.3.1.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(c)

(d)

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited

Useful life of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets

Management determines the estimated useful life and related
depreciation and amortisation charges for property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets with reference to the estimated
periods during which future economic benefits are derived from
the use of these assets. Management revises the depreciation
and amortisation charges if the useful life is different from
previous estimates, or writes off or writes down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold.

Income taxes

There are certain transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will be reflected in the income tax expense in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences are recognised as management considers it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. In case where the
actual future taxable profit generated are less than expected, or
changes in facts and circumstances which result in revision of
future taxable profit estimation, a material reversal or further
recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which will be
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which such a reversal
or further recognition takes place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

JFor the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ - Z -—TF+-A=+—HIFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5,

(a) Revenue

W & K 7 &R & #

(a

i 72
2020 2019
T_¥F —TAF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR®TT

Sales of electricity HEE N 63,022 64,814
Sales of home photovoltaic systems and HEPAXREZRRREHEE
rendering smart energy services B8R AR 75 185,242 51,992
Public infrastructure construction UNESE 148,149 30,654
396,413 147,460
Timing of revenue recognition W 75 TEER B [
At a point in time R — B 242,579 80,899
Over time F—EBEEA 153,834 66,561
396,413 147,460

For the year ended 31 December 2020, there was one customer
(2019: four customers) with which the Group’s transactions
exceeded 10% of total revenue. One customer (2019: one
customer) was from public infrastructure construction business
and nil customer (2019: three customers) was from smart energy
business. For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue
derived from this customer amounted to RMB147,428,000 (2019:
RMB87,616,000).

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by business lines (products and services). In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported internally
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment,
the Group presents the following two reportable segments:

o Smart energy business, and
. Public infrastructure construction business.

No geographical information is presented as substantially all of
the Group’s business activities were in the PRC.

(b)

HE-_FT-_FTF+=-HA=+—H
EFE AEEH-—FEF(ZE
—NF - ENEREF)ETHRZE
REBRZBEEIONNANE — BT
F(ZZE—NF: —&EF)RA
RERZEY THEEFP(ZE—
NFE: ZZBFP)REEERRE
H-BEZT_TFF+_A=1+—
BIEFE RALBREFHKES
A N R#147,428,000 0 (=& —
HF - AR#87,616,0007T) °

DEEHRE
REBRDHERER - o LA
%ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬂ(%uu&ﬁﬁ*)lﬁ o BT
& [N & B & THEERENA
%B%iﬁﬁ*ﬂruﬁ Eﬂéxﬁ&nﬂéﬁ
XERBARN AKEZ5 T35
RET2HD

° BERREL K

e DEEREDR-
REBERBKI DKL EBKYLRN
B RO 25138 5 EE K -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE -—FF+-_A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. W R % 3 & ¥ @

(Continued)

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited

accounted for using the equity method and deferred tax assets.

Annual Report 2020

(c) Reportable segment profit or loss, assets c) IEHoHER BEE
and liabilities ragmT:
Public
Smart infrastructure
energy construction Intersegment
business business  Unallocated eliminations Total
HEHR NEER
£% £% AOB S HEEKH @5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AR®TR ARETT ARETT
Year ended 31 December 2020 BZE-_E_8%
+-A=t-HLEE
Revenue from external customers R B 248,264 148,149 - - 396,413
Impairment losses on financial and SRRENEENRESR
contract assets (2,434) (882) - - (3,316)
Finance income wEUWA 4,664 1,002 74 - 5,740
Finance expenses MEMY (15,355) (5,828) (64) - (21,247)
Share of net loss of associates FREGEAROBE A
accounted for using the equity RAEENE
method (17,248) - - - (17,248)
Income tax expense R (630) (1,610) - (2,240)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER)/ BN (3,592) (3,582) 5,917 - (1,257)
Other information HE R
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH (35,849) (36) (49) - (35,934)
Additions to non-current assets (Note) 7R & JEik 8 & & (B %) 964 - - — 964
As at 31 December 2020 R-B-ZF
+=ZR=+-H
Reportable segment assets ERNDEE 1,354,378 240,042 443,416 (483,456) 1,554,380
Reportable segment liabilities B G- 644,908 189,247 1,765 (483,456) 352,464
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-E-hE
TZR=t-BLEE
Revenue from external customers 50 % P s 116,806 30,654 - - 147,460
Impairment losses on financial and SRRAENEENREESSR
contract assets (268,354) (47,815) - — (316,169)
Finance income E-TON 13,041 188 232 — 13,461
Finance expenses AR S'Z (16,019) (19,927) 43) - (35,989)
Share of net profit of associates RREREARNES DA
accounted for using the equity #4817 28
method 5,422 - - - 5,422
Income tax credit ik 59,667 4,787 = = 64,454
Loss for the year FRER (193,267) (48,915) (19,232) — (261,414)
Other information Hi & #
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH (34,581) (80) (685) - (35,346)
Additions to non-current assets (Note) 7R & 3F i 8 & & (Fi5E) 19,420 = 3218 = 22,638
As at 31 December 2019 R-B-h#F
+=A=+—H
Reportable segment assets AERDBEE 1,390,258 481,723 505,708 (525,835) 1,851,854
Reportable segment liabilties AERAHEE 721,015 427,373 4,208 (625,835) 626,761
Note: Additions to non-current assets exclude financial assets, investments M FEFRBDEETEESREE KRR

BAARNKRERELERAEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

EXPENSES BY NATURE

|Forthe year ended 31 December2020 HZ —Z -ZEF+ - A=+—HLFE

Cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses and administrative 4R
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss are listed by

nature as follows:

=\

HE D ENREX

BRRPHERS HEED KA

TR REESHSIMAT

2020 2019
—B-EF —T—N%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBF T
Changes in inventories of finished goods ZUpK mm ) 17 & B 8 (fif 51 25)

(Note 25) 139,896 16,196
Subcontract costs B 134,584 10,261
Employee benefit expense (Note 7) 12 B @ F 5= (Mt E7) 20,016 37,445
Depreciation and amortisation & K 35,934 35,346
Consulting and legal fees BRAKEERR 4,913 8,759
Repair and maintenance expenses HIERRERASL 5,382 3,516
Transportation and travelling expenses Fiag M E KRR X 1,171 3,236
Promotion and advertising expenses HENESRZ 392 2,976
Rental expense e 2,650 2,527
Impairment of property, plant and equipment Y BB M &R E

(Note 14) (Pt 5E14) 5,723 —
Impairment of goodwill (Note 16) 7B A (M sE16) 138 2,209
Impairment of other intangible assets (Note 16)  E & 72 & 2= 5l & (Mf 37 16) - 4,288
Impairment of inventories (Note 25) FERE (M&E25) - 1,899
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 25 Bl % B

— Audit services — B R 2,000 2,200

— Non-audit services — BB - —
Others Hih 8,144 11,880
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution HERAN - HERDHEMAY X

expenses and administrative expenses TERAZBE 360,943 142,738
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

7. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

7. BREBAMRX

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARETT

Wages, salaries and allowances I& - #& NMERE 29,909 31,321
Post-employment benefit and other welfare B B3 12 18 1) & E b 18 B ) % ()

expenses (a) 2,986 3,056

Equity-settled share-based payment (reversal)/ 324 25 45 & AR D S 5 &
expense (b) (A #E) B X (o) (12,879) 3,068
20,016 37,445

(@) Post-employment benefit

()

Pursuant to the relevant labor rules and regulations in the PRC,
the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC participate in the defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”)
organised by the PRC municipal government authorities whereby
the Group is required to make contributions to the Schemes at
certain proportions of eligible employees’ salaries, ranging from
16% to 20%. The local government authorities are responsible
for the entire pension obligations payable to the retired
employees. The Group has no other material obligations for the
payment of pension benefits in connection with the Schemes
beyond the annual contributions described above.

The Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong participate in the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) Scheme for its employees.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held in the funds controlled
by an independent trustee. The contributions arising from the
MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss represent contributions payable to the funds at the rates
specified in the rules of the MPF Scheme.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited  Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

JFor the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —Z T HF+ - A=+—HIFE

7. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued) 7. EERFABEZw

(b) Equity settled share-based payment

On 26 January, 11 May and 14 September 2018, the Company
announced to grant 36,441,291, 10,140,000 and 66,645,000
share options (the “Options”), respectively, under its share option
scheme adopted on 22 November 2011. The Options entitled
the eligible participants to subscribe for up to a total of
113,226,291 new shares with par value of HK$0.01 each in the
share capital of the Company. The vesting of share options is
based on the servicing period of the employee up to 3 years from
the date of grant and the fulfilment of certain performance targets
of the Group, including but not limited to the financial
performance of the Group as well as the grantee’s individual
performance. The maximum term of the options granted is 10
years from the date of the offer. The weighted average exercise
price is set as HK$1.8 per share. The Options are deemed as
equity settled share-based payment. As at 1 January 2020 and
31 December 2020, the number of share options outstanding
was 78,000,960 and 26,824,770 (2019: 124,785,691 and
78,000,960) respectively. No share option is granted, exercised
or forfeited during the year (2019: Nil). During the year ended 31
December 2020, the number of share options lapsed was
51,176,190 (2019: 46,784,731). As at 31 December 2020, the
weighted average exercise price of options outstanding is
HK$1.8 (2019: HK$1.8) and the weighted average remaining
contractual life was 5.7 years (2019: 6.0 years).

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the reversal of expense
arising from share-based payment transactions previously
recognised as part of employee benefit expense was
RMB12,879,000 (2019: the expense arising from share-based
payment transactions recognised was RMB3,068,000).

b) ZRESZEEURMD XM

HY B 32

R=ZFE—NF—A=+~<B &
A+t—BEALA+HEHB: A2F
ESHBRER-_E——E+— A=
TZHEMNERES S DRI
136,441,291 13 ~ 10,140,00015 &
66,645,00017 & fx R ([ FE AR R ) ©
BRERN TEER2EEENRE
RNRQE AR &% A 118,226,291
[ 5 I T fE0.01 58 TR #T AR 1) - B8
BEMNEBENEEHAR T A
METRZ3FMREE - DA RERK
REEWNETRBERZ  2FEET
PR A 7 & B Ay B 75 5= 3R A RO R
ARBEARR - ERLERENS
FHIRAZH B HRFI10F - N
BEHITEEBESRISE L B
[RERSEREEREEUNRSD

NHEY R-TE_TF—F—H
E—E-_ZTE+-_A=+—H" K
TR E B H Al &78,000,960
n }26,824,770% (= FT — N F :
124,785,691 1% &% 78,000,96017 ) ° 4F
R R IR R - TR
W ZZE2—hhF: 8 - BHE_T=
TFE+_A=+—HLEFER B
KB I #E 2B A51,176,19017
(ZZF— hF:4678473113) - B
ZEZTF+ZA=+—H" KT
FRERENNEFSTEERS
BI(ZZT—NF 1.8%7T) i
EFEHFBRENFRARTIF(ZF
— L% 1 6.0%F) °

BE-Z-_TF+=A=1+—8H
IEFE  HEREAEERAMAX
W — o ETERN UKD
WRGELEATEHBERDARE
12,879,000 T (ZE— N : EH®R
HUBRO IR SELERIT A
R #3,068,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

7. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued) 7. EETABAXZ @

(c) Five highest paid individuals ) ENESHF AL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 include one
Director (2019: three Directors) whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis in Note 37. The emoluments payable to the
remaining four (2019: two) individuals during the year are as
follows:

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

HE-_FT-_FTF+=-HA=+—H
HEFEE AEENANRSHFAL
PFEE-—UNEE(ZE—NF: =
NEE) EHEERMEITH D
Mo B (—T— & W)
ATERFHERAT :

REHFATHEHEMN R T A :

2020 2019
—E-EF —E—NF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = % 1,000,000 7T 4 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /& 7T & 1,500,0007% 7T - 1
8. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL 8. EMEEHNEENRE
AND CONTRACT ASSETS B8
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AR®T T
Loss allowance for contract assets (Note 18) BHNEEEBERE (FiE18) 882 47,815
(Reversal of)/loss allowance for financial assets R # #k At BN S FEE
at amortised cost (Note 23) (B ), B8 B (T aE23) (13,952) 94,889
Loss allowance for trade and other receivables 8 5 & E b i Ui 318 &5 48 18 18
(Note 26) (P 5E26) 16,386 173,465
3,316 316,169

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited  Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

|Forthe year ended 31 December2020 HZ —Z -ZEF+ - A=+—HLFE

9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hfttlg A
2020 2019
g g 35 —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETT
Government grants I 78 BY 445 585
10. OTHER GAINS — NET 10. H b Y £ 7 ¥
2020 2019
—E-EE —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE TR ARET T
Net fair value gains on financial assets at fair value #Z A F{Eit & B &8s+ A B
through profit or loss HemEELFEKZDFE 2,071 1,704
Net foreign exchange losses & 5 & 18)F 58 (819) (325)
Net (losses)/gains on disposal of property, plant  HE ¥ 3 « B L& &5
and equipment (E518), W F5E (59) 387
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries 0SB A A /S — 143
Others H A (58) 191
1,139 2,100
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

11. FINANCE EXPENSES — NET 1. ERXFHE
2020 2019
—E-EF —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBFIT
Finance income FE KA
Interest income from loans to related parties and [ME T R E = F EHH
third parties FE M A 4,641 13,177
Interest income from bank deposits RITF A B A 1,099 284
Total finance income R E U A R EE 5,740 13,461
Finance expenses A HZ
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEABEMNBRAX (732) (783)
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITEENEFAX (20,515) (35,146)
Net interest expense FERZ F5E (21,247) (35,879)
Others HAb - (110)
Total finance expenses BER S % (21,247) (35,989)
Finance expenses — net BER TR (15,507) (22,528)

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited  Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

|For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ - Z -—TF+-A=+—HIFE

12. INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT 12. FRBH (X)) k&
2020 2019
—E-%F ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE TR AR T T
Current income tax ﬂ BB (4,326) (2,932)
Deferred income tax EIEFTE 2,086 67,386
(2,240) 64,454
(@) The reconciliation of income tax expense to the theoretical (@) BHRAYSERAEARGEE
amount that would arise using the statutory tax rates applicable ﬁ‘— E’] FEEMRAFESENERK
to the consolidated entities are as follows: HHHRAT ¢
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hnF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥E TR ARET T
Profit/(loss) before income tax B RDEFL (EE) 983 (325,868)
Tax calculated at applicable statutory tax rates % F3 % & % 5 5t & 1 5 18 371 77,955
Tax effect of: AT SERRGEE
Preferential tax rates BER = 1,637 1,970
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose ARl MF A X (5,646) (7,687)
Research and development tax credit ﬁﬂ EHEER 162 425
Income not taxable HBEZEF I A 2,019 3,834
Tax losses for which no deferred tax assets KR IELER EHEEN
has been recognised HIEEE (3,441) (6,512)
Temporary differences for which no deferred Kk & 32 1 3E T 18 & & Y
tax assets has been recognised = (554) (8,607)
Utilisation of temporary differences for which ~ Eh A R FERELEHIBEEN
no deferred tax assets has been recognised s = %8 652 —
Previously unrecognised tax losses recouped 38 % LA 1E R HE R B B 5 18
to reduce current tax expense (DU A BV EAFR B ) 2,560 2,076
Income tax (expense)/credit B8R (F ), Wz (2,240) 64,454
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE -—FF+-_A=+—HILFE

12. INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT (continued)

(b)  As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not recognise deferred
tax assets amounting to RMB9,113,000 (2019: RMB10,109,000)
in respect of accumulated tax losses arising from the Group’s
entities in the PRC amounting to RMB36,453,000 (2019:
RMB40,434,000), as management believed it is more likely that
such tax losses would not be utilised before their expiry.

(b)

12. Fr B8 (B ), W& @)

RZE-ZZTF+=-_A=+—8"

REBTERLAEER B EEE
Ky R 5F 718 B B A R 386,453,000
TL(ZZT— AT AR% 40,434,000
T RRAEEFEHEEARE
9113000 (=ZE—NF : AR¥
10,109,0007) * RAEEE[ER A

% T8 B 18 1 B HA AT N K ] BE A
=5 -

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the expiry dates of tax N-_E-_EFR_FTE—NLE+=
losses arising from the Group’s entities in the PRC with no A=+—H A& H l Neh B & 2
deferred tax assets recognised are as follows: (AR ELEHRBBEE)NTHIBER
FHAMT

2020 2019
T-8F T AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREF T

Year of expiry B E (7
2020 —E-FHF - 1,268
2021 T —4F 3,092 3,092
2022 —_E_— 10,979 10,979
2023 :;E:E 10,227 12,520
2024 —E U4 4,549 12,575
2025 S 7,606 —
36,453 40,434

(c)  Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands (“the BVI”), the Group is not subject to
any income taxes in these jurisdictions.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited  Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

12. INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT (continued)

(@

The Group did not make any provisions for Hong Kong profit tax
as there were no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil). As at 31
December 2020, the Group did not recognise deferred tax assets
amounting to RMB7,014,000 (2019: RMB5,492,000) in respect
of accumulated tax losses arising from the Group’s entities in
Hong Kong amounting to RMB42,510,000 (2019:
RMB33,285,000).

For the year end 31 December 2020, the statutory income tax
rate of entities within the Group registered in the PRC is 25% (2019:
25%), except for certain entities entitled to tax exemption or
preferential rates:

Since the respective first revenue-generating year, subsidiaries of
the Company operating solar power plants are exempted from
enterprise income tax for the first three years and are entitled to a
50% tax reduction for the subsequent three years.

Hebei LongiTech Cloud Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (“Hebei
Cloud Energy”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, was certified as High-Tech Enterprise of Hebei
Province, effective from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019,
during which Hebei Cloud Energy enjoys a preferential tax rate of
15%.

Tianjin Haitian Fangyuan Energy Saving Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Haitian Fangyuan”), an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, was certified as High-Tech Enterprise of Tianjin
City, effective from 23 November 2018 to 23 November 2021,
during which Haitian Fangyuan enjoys a preferential tax rate of
15%.

|For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ - Z -—TF+-A=+—HIFE

12. FR8 8 (B %), W 2 )

(@

HRAEEREBEEZE-_Z_F+
AT HALEFEIEREE
EEXERERB A WL EREB
EES mwﬁEﬁ%%L? 1
FoE) R_TE_ZTEF+=-_A=
+—E'$%lmﬁﬁ¢%lm
ERAEBERBNZATEBBEARE
42,510,000 (ZZE—NF : AR
33,285,0007T ) T 3R ik IE % 18 & B
AR #7014,0007T (=& — N4 :
AR #5,492,0007T) °

IEFE AEBRPEZMROERE
HEER R B2BS%(ZF—NF -
26%) ETEBELBHER
BEHE:

BEEEWERERGSFEL AR
BARERNRNBUHNMBRAAE=

FERRCBMEEMENR  HR=
F FE50% T TR % ©
RN EE 2 E M B AR E

ERMEERBFRBER A G (DA
TR ERM RIS S
it ARBPE T —tF— A
—BEZFT-—NALF+=ZA=+—
Bit-ZHEA - ALtEERER
15% BB X -

RARRBEEZEMBRAARZE
BRAESERMAERAT(DEXR
7Bl ERA ARET & R
¥ 5P =T N\F+—A=
+=BE=ZZT=—F+—HA=+
—Hit-ZHBEA BRXFEEE
15% B BB X o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

12. INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT (continued)

(@

(Continued)

From 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2022, Hoboksar Mongol
Autonomous County Sifang Dianjin Energy Co., Ltd. (“Sifang
Dianjin”), an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, is exempted from enterprise income tax for the first
two years and are entitled to a 50% tax reduction for the
subsequent three years.

13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

(a

(b)

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited

(@

12. FT B8 (B %), W= )

(&)

B NF—HA—HB&_%F_
—Ft+-A=t—HL XRAEM
EITEMNBRARIMA R ERS
HEREETELERARA A
((mHEL]) BEMFER RN
REMISH - B1& =FEB0%H IR
R

13. BREF (FHE])

Basic earnings/(loss) per share (@ BREXEF(EE)
Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the profit/ BRERAEF(FEE)RAD T %
(loss) attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted BAEEGN(BR)BRARNEE
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year: BETEBERMNMEFLSHEAE
2020 2019
—B-2F TR
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of RAREA AEIEET
the Company (RMB’000) (B8 (AREBT T 1,064 (264,522
Weighted average number of ordinary shares = %17 & 3% R% A #E 7 5 £
in issue (thousands) (FR&) 1,484,604 1,484,604
Basic earnings/(loss) per share (RMB) RERZER(EE)
(AR TT) 0.0007 (0.1782)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share b) ERBEER (&FE)

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
assuming conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. For
the year ended 31 December 2020, no diluted earnings per
share has been presented because the exercise price of the
Company’s options was higher than the average market price
per share. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
made a loss therefore the effect of share options was anti-dilutive
and is ignored from the calculation of diluted loss per share.

Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

|Forthe year ended 31 December2020 HZ —Z -ZEF+ - A=+—HLFE

14. ¥ BERRE

Furniture,
Plant and Motor fixtures and Construction
Buildings machinery vehicles equipment in progress Total
BE-£B
BT BEREMR RE ET ] HEIR 5t
RMB'0000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETT ARETE ARETR AR%ETn ARETT ARETT
Cost 5%
At 1 January 2019 R_ZE—hF—HA—H 16,986 513,537 3,051 20,338 587 554,499
Additions NE — 6,175 — 340 6,123 12,638
Transfers # — 1,541 - 107 (1,648) —
Disposals of assets HEEE - (3,869) (252) (478) (334) (4,933)
At 31 December 2019and W-Z—hAE+-_HA=1+—H
1 January 2020 N—ZE-FT&—F—H 16,986 517,384 2,799 20,307 4,728 562,204
Additions NE = 834 — 130 — 964
Transfers g — 368 — — (368) —
Disposals of assets HERE — (378) (1,439 (50) — (1,867)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZEBE-_EFE+_F=+—H 16,986 518,208 1,360 20,387 4,360 561,301
Accumulated depreciation 2 :t17 & &R E
and impairment
At 1 January 2019 R-ZE—HhFE—H—H 1,086 47,122 1,294 6,538 = 56,040
Charge for the year FRNF| X 814 25,259 334 2,776 — 29,183
Disposals of assets HEEE - 818) (151) (40) — (1,009)
At 31 December2019and R=—ZT—hFE+-A=+—H
1 January 2020 k—ZT-_ZF—HA—H 1,900 71,563 1,477 9,274 — 84,214
Charge for the year FERHF 942 27,456 286 996 - 29,680
Disposals of assets HEEBE - - (1,089) @1 - (1,110)
Impairment HE - 5,723 - - - 5,723
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-_ZF+-A=+—H 2,842 104,742 674 10,249 - 118,507
Net book amount BREEE
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-_TF+-A=+—H 14,144 413,466 686 10,138 4,360 442,794
At 31 December 2019 R_ZE-—hF+-_A=+—8H 15,086 445,821 1,322 11,033 4,728 477,990
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # = —

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

(@)

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited

For the year ended 31 December 2020, depreciation amounting
to RMB20,145,000 (2019: RMB22,118,000) was charged to cost
of sales and RMB9,535,000 (2019: RMB7,065,000) to
administrative expenses.

As at 31 December 2020, certain machineries of solar power
plants of the Group with carrying amount of RMB285,107,000
(2019: RMB302,146,000) were pledged as security for the
Group’s borrowings (Note 30).

Based on an outlook of the development progress of Hoboksar
Mongol Autonomous County Hefeng Industrial Park (“Hefeng
Industrial Park”), management carried out an impairment test on
the Group’s property, plant and equipment in the transformer
station at Hefeng Industrial Park as at 31 December 2020, with
carrying amount of RMB75,307,000 (2019: RMB79,542,000).
Xinjiang Saier Power Distribution Co., Ltd. (“Xinjlang Saier”), an
indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, is under
the process of entering into a franchise operation agreement with
the local government of Hoboksar Mongol Autonomous County
to invest and operate the incremental electricity distribution
network at Hefeng Industrial Park for a period of 30 years.

The recoverable amount of the assets has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. The calculation uses cash
flow projection based on the approved business plan of Xinjiang
Saier, which reflects cash flow from rendering electricity
distribution service less estimated costs, discounted at a pre-tax
discount rate of 13%. One of the key assumptions of the cash
flow projection is the annual growth rate in revenue which is
based on the annual electricity consumption volume of the users
at Hefeng Industrial Park specified in the business plan and a nil
growth rate for the extrapolation period. The discount rate used
reflects specific risks relating to the electricity distribution
business.

Annual Report 2020

E_TFE+_A=1+—BLFE

14. 1% - BE R &KRE @

HEz—_Z-_ZTF+=-_A=+—8H
IEFE - AR #20,145,0007T ( =
T —NF: AR #22,118,0007T )
MIMTEFAEERDS MARE
9,535,000 L (ZE— L& ARK
7,065,0007T) 5t ATT B X ©

R=ZZ=ZTF+=_A=+—8"'k
& A AR 285,107,000 (==
—NF : AR #302,146,0007T ) &
REBXREWE THEME G HE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

(©)]

(Continued)

As a result of the above assessment, no impairment loss was
recognised for the Group’s property, plant and equipment
located in Hefeng Industrial Park for the year ended 31 December
2020 (2019: nil).

Based on an outlook of the operating condition of a solar power
plant owned by the Group, management carried out an
impairment test on the property, plant and equipment in the solar
power plant as at 31 December 2020, with carrying amount of
RMB5,230,000. The recoverable amount of the assets has been
determined based on the higher of their fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. The value in use calculation uses cash
flow projection based on approved financial budget and a pre-tax
discount rate of 14%. The key assumption of the cash flow
projection is a nil annual growth rate in revenue for the budget
period and the extrapolation period.

As a result of the above assessment, impairment of
RMB1,356,000 was recognised for the property, plant and
equipment in the solar power plant for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: nil).

Due to termination of the Group’s several heat supply projects,
management carried out impairment tests on the property, plant
and equipment of these heat supply projects as at 31 December
2020, with total carrying amount of RMB4,367,000. The
recoverable amounts of the assets have been determined based
on the higher of their fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. The value in use calculations use cash flow projections
based on approved financial budgets and pre-tax discount rate
of 11%. The key assumption of the cash flow projections is a nil
annual growth rate in revenue.

As a result of the above assessment, total impairment of
RMB4,367,000 was recognised for the property, plant and
equipment of the Group’s heat supply projects for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

JFor the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ - Z -—TF+-A=+—HIFE

14. 1% - BE R &KRE @

(%)

ER A BE_FT_FTF+
“A=tT—RHLEFE AKERM
CTXERMNME BEIRREBL
BERABMEER(CT-NF 8-

BIEH —HEANEEERFHERK
*HéL#RWEE’%@Em:

“EFE+ZA=+t—HB8H%Hk
ﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%AE%wwwo
TR E - RS K 5% 1 1T R R
Ao BEMNAKESHEREELAF
BEREEXNAzZHFEREEF
NEeSEET FREBERENE
HERFREENRSRERA R
AR E14%stE - RERETE
AHEEBRRATEE B KB
MRS FREREERAT -

AR LA BE_T _TF+=
A=1+—HIEFE A KREHHY
¥ HEEREEABREBBARE
1,356,000 T (ZZF —NF : &) -

HRASEERE THABBERLILE &
BER-_ZT-_ZFF+-_A=+8H
—HZEHARBEAREEES A
AR 4,367,000 E - BE M
FEETRERR - & ER A IR E
CHEBREBEEQATFERHEERAEAZ
ZRFHEETNESEET - &
FEEREREMLEREEED
HeRETER KBTI E11%5T
B-HEREBIANETEBREZAK
HONFEERAT -

ER LI HEZTE_TF 1
ZA=+—"HLFEE FAEEHR
HEMWYE  BELXEERBRE
BB 425 5 A R¥4,367,0007T (=
T—NF |-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

15. LEASES 15. &
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee: TR ERAEREARXREANTEE
EH
(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (@ REEMBERARER
statement of financial position W&

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

R-Z2-BF RZT-NF
t=A=+—-RA +TZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETT

Right-of-use assets EHERE

Leasehold land and land use rights FEE L & L fF A 9,474 9,741

Properties LY/ 6,630 10,058

Equipment B 39 62
16,143 19,861

Lease liabilities HEEE

Current & 2,726 3,128

Non-current JEF & 9,213 12,016
11,939 15,144

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year ended 31 HE-Z_ZTF+ A =+—

December 2020 were RMBnil (2019: RMB6,422,000). HEFE FREEZEEMA

REZT(ZE—HhE: ARK
6,422,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

|Forthe year ended 31 December2020 HZ —Z -ZEF+ - A=+—HLFE

15. LEASES (Continued)

15. & @)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated b) REEBEERERN
statement of profit or loss k|
2020 2019
—B-BF —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET T
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets EHELEERNITEEFH
Leasehold land and land use rights THE + b [+ {3 A #E 267 267
Properties % 3,342 2,105
Equipment B! 21 20
3,630 2,392
Interest expense (included in finance expenses) #| 28 Gt ARER ) 732 733
Expense relating to short-term leases EEHERAR X
(included in administrative expenses) Gt AfTERAX) 2,650 2,477
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets 171 7x &5 217 & K (K B &
that are not shown above as short-term EEMEMRERX
leases (included in administrative expenses) Gt ATTE A ) - 50

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the total cash outflow
for leases was RMB6,499,000 (2019: RMB6,115,000).

HEzE-_Z-_TF+=-_A=+—8H
IHEE HERSRHABAAR

#6,499,000 7T ( —
#6,115,0007T) °

TN AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B E &

Goodwill Software Patent Total
EmE B4 = st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFTT ARETTT ARETTT
At 31 December 2018 R-B-NE+=A=+—H
Cost XA 3,261 17,240 4,038 24,539
Accumulated amortisation and REBENAE
impairment - (4,673) (168) (4,841)
Net book amount REFE 3,261 12,567 3,870 19,698
Year ended 31 December 2019 EHEZE=-Z— N fF
TZB=+—-HLEFE
Opening net book amount HYRmFE 3,261 12,567 3,870 19,698
Additions NE — 121 - 121
Amortisation charge B - (3,367) (404) (3,771)
Impairment A (2,209) (4,288) - (6,497)
Closing net book amount H K BR R B 1,052 5,033 3,466 9,551
At 31 December 2019 R-E-AE+=-HB=+—H
Cost DN 3,261 17,630 4,038 24,929
Accumulated amortisation and BT EHE LA
impairment (2,209 (12,597) (672 (15,378)
Net book amount BRERE 1,052 5,033 3,466 9,551
Year ended 31 December 2020 HZE=-ZT=-ZF
+ZB=1+—-HLEFE
Opening net book amount HREFE 1,062 5,033 3,466 9,551
Amortisation charge BT - (2,220) (404) (2,624)
Impairment HE (138) - - (138)
Closing net book amount BREEFE 914 2,813 3,062 6,789
At 31 December 2020 R-E8-s&#4+-A=+-H
Cost B 7R 3,261 17,630 4,038 24,929
Accumulated amortisation and ZHEHIRE
impairment (2,347) (14,817) 976) (18,140
Net book amount REFE 914 2,813 3,062 6,789
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(@)

|Forthe year ended 31 December2020 HZ —Z -ZEF+ - A=+—HLFE

16. B & E @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, amortisation amounting @ #H=zEZ—ZEZ_ZTF+-_A=+-—H
to RMB1,953,000 (2019: RMB3,384,000) was charged to IE & E - AR #1,9530007T( =
administrative expenses and RMB671,000 (2019: RMB587,000) T — fi, £ : A R #3,384,0007T )
to cost of sales. MEBHEATATERAS MARE
671,000 (ZFE— L F: AR
587,0007C) 7 A SH&E A A o
The following table presents the changes in goodwill for the years by TERHINHE-_ZFT_ZFTFR_F
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. —NWE+_A=+—RHILEEH
BB
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 Additions 2019 Additions 2020
R-ZE-N\E RZB-1% R-B-ZF
+ZA=t-H #m +=A=t-H #m +=-A=t+-H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETRL ARETT ARETR ARBTT
Gooawil L
Gao Bei Dian City Guangshuo New Energy S & Yt IE#H a2 B & B
Group Co., Ltd. (“Guangshuo’) BRAR (KB 686 - 686 - 686
Haitian Fangyuan BRFE 366 - 366 = 366
Hebei Fakai Energy Development Co., Ltd. 57 3t4 %5l 42 R B &
(‘Fakal") BEREEAA (%)) 2,209 - 2,209 - 2,209
3,261 — 3,261 - 3,261
Impairment AE
Guangshuo (Note) F 58 (B 3E) = = = (138) (138)
Haitian Fangyuan BRAE = = = = =
Fakai i) - (2,209 (2,209 - (2,209
— (2,209 (2,209) (138) (2,347)
3,261 (2,209 1,062 (138) 914

Note: Guangshuo and its subsidiaries (together the Guangshuo Group),
engaged in the electricity sales business, owns eight solar power
plants. The assets of each solar power plant represent a cash-
generating unit (“CGU”). The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have
been determined based on the higher of their fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. The calculations use cash flow projections
based on approved financial budgets and pre-tax discount rate of 14%.
The key assumption of the cash flow projections is a nil annual growth
rate in revenue.

As a result of the above assessment, impairment of goodwill amounting
to RMB138,000 was recognised for one of the solar power plants for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

M AEREMEAR (RELBEEE)
WEBENHEXBLEAR N\ERK
Bl - BAREHREEHEER — @
ReELBEN(REELEM]) -
REELSMAOAKE S EREE
RAFERHERAZZREREE
TR EEE % EEAER
B EMBRENRSTERRR
BATHT R R14% - B2 R E AR K
ITERRABENFREERET -

EREMFE BE_T_FF
+—A=+—BLFEE Hf—
EXREUBEREEREARE
138,000 C(=ZF— NF : &) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 16. BTV & &E @)

(©)  In2017, the Group developed the Smart Energy Cloud Platform (the © RZE—tF AXEERATETE
“Cloud Platform”), an online cloud platform software collecting, ZRBREFS(ZEE4E]) — Bl
monitoring and analysing electricity consumption data, £ EREASNENERERERS
supporting the Group’s home photovoltaic system business and BRAEBPFPRBXREGEL AR
electricity sales business. BNHEXEBNELEFES -
During the year ended 31 December 2019, based on an outlook HE-_FT-—NEF+=-A=+—8H
of decreasing subsidy and implementation of subsidy quota IFFEE BEBFEALYREGELER
controls in home photovoltaic system business and electricity BHHEHEXEREN@M B LD REE
sales business, management carried out impairment tests on the MR ETEH N EEEBR
Cloud Platform as at 31 December 2019. The recoverable E-NWF+_A=+—HHEF
amount of the asset has been determined based on value in use BETRHENS - BES T UG
calculations. The calculations use cash flow projections based on SHEEBERAEBESEELIET - %
the approved financial budgets and a pre-tax discount rate of SFTEFRAEAKCHENTEEE
14%. One of the key assumptions of the cash flow projections is IR & m = 8 08 LA & B AT 3T IR X
a nil annual growth rate in revenue for the budget period and the 14% - HEamEEAINEZRR
extrapolation period. The discount rate used reflects specific risks — RTEE H R BT A A M e g
relating to the home photovoltaic system business and electricity EXYET - FIEAITE X &t
sales business. HEBXREREBRENHEE

XBEBENEERR -

As a result of the above assessment, impairment of ERN Pz 22— LE+
RMB4,288,000 was recognised for the Cloud Platform during the A=+ HLEFE ZEFLER

year ended 31 December 2019. BB AR #4,288,0007T °

17. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 17. ELEFR 5B

2020 2019
—B-BF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE TR ARET T
Deferred tax assets BRI IE A = 71,692 70,007
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEAE (11,490) (11,891)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRERNE
JFor the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —Z T HF+ - A=+—HIFE

17. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 17. IEEFr 5 )
Movements in deferred tax assets are as follows: BEFMBEENSES T :
Loss
Loss allowance
allowance for financial Loss Impairment
fortrade  assetsat allowance Provisions of property, Impairment
and other amortised for contract for  plantand of intangible
receivables cost assets inventories equipment assets Total
REBHBE
EREM FENER
ERXEN EENER ANEE n¥ BE EBFEE

BR2HE BE BERE FERE RREHE HE A5t
RMB'000  RVMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

AREFTT ARBTT ARKTT ARBTT ARKTT ARBTT AREKTR

As at 1 January 2019 Rn=2-nE-5-8 2,798 185 = 38 = = 3,021
Credit o profit or loss RERAR 42,525 18,237 4,787 365 = 1,072 66,986

As at 31 December 2019 R-E-hE+=-A=+—-H

and 1 January 2020 K=—ZB-ZEf—-H—H 45,323 18,422 4,787 403 — 1,072 70,007
Credit/(charge) to profit or loss 71825 A BE /(51 %) 3922 (2,394) = (216) 339 34 1,685
As at 31 December 2020 R-Z-EF+-HA=+—H 49,245 16,028 4,787 187 339 1,106 71,692
Movements in deferred tax liabilities are as follows: BELERBEABEHNES LT -

Fair value

adjustments in

business

combinations

EBEHN

AFERAE

RMB’000

ARET T

As at 1 January 2019 R=—T—-—hhE—HA—H 12,291
Credit to profit or loss RE=AR (400)
As at 31 December 2019 R=-ZE—h&E+=-BA=+—8H 11,891
Credit to profit or loss Rz AR (4071)
As at 31 December 2020 REZBZBF+=-H=+—H 11,490
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

18. CONTRACT ASSETS 18. EHNEE
2020 2019
—EBCRF —E-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE TR ARETT
Contract costs incurred plus recognised profit FEE A LKA EEER
less recognised losses i F R B R B 1B 1,532,573 1,384,546
Less: progress billings o B RA (1,351,310) (979,080)
Net balance sheet position for ongoing contracts £ & XK FEE B E R AR 181,263 405,466
Of which are: H
Current contract assets REANEE 181,263 361,728
Non-current contract assets ERBENEE - 43,738
181,263 405,466
According to the amendment to the original agreement of Baoding BERETARBRNEAERN T —
Donghu Cultural Center Project entered into between Baoding NEFRARRER AR OIEREL
Municipal People’s Government and the Group in the end of 2019, R ENEBE  EEEFELNNAE
contract assets in respect of income tax and certain expenses incurred LB RBEERINENEES
in previous years as well as related profits with total amount of HAREESS200TC(ZFE—NLF: AR
RMB882,000 (2019: RMB47,815,000) would not be compensated. #47,815,0007) T2 B S /M E - Bt -
Therefore a provision of RMB882,000 (2019: RMB47,815,000) was 7N & B 5t 4R 4 JE B B A R # 882,000 7T
made by the Group accordingly. Movement in the loss allowance of (ZZE—Nn%F: AR¥47,8150007T) ° &
contract assets is as follows: NEEMBERBEEZSOT
2020 2019
—B-BF TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBT T
Opening balance HA ) 45 5 - =
Increase in loss allowance &5 48 B A 12 0 882 47,815
Written off as uncollectible 48 55 I [o] T 4 88 (882) (47,815)
Closing balance Hy R 45 o4 - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

|Forthe year ended 31 December2020 HZ —Z -ZEF+ - A=+—HLFE

19. SUBSIDIARIES

The Group’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 and 2019
are set out below. The place of incorporation is also their principal place

19. [ff B 2 7]

TRIRAEBR-E_TEFR T —
hE+ - A=1+t—BNTITEHMBAA -

of business.

MR B TR A T B A

Place of Incorporation Ownership
and kind interest held
Name of entity of legal entity Registered capital by the Group  Principal activities
S AR L it B R ETE AEBEFEN
BEREE =2RER TEMELRA FIEERER IEXH
Hebei Longitech Cloud Energy the PRC RMB300,000,000 100%  Smart energy service
Technology Co., Ltd. limited liability company
AILEEFNERBRHRERAA H A R #300,000,0007T BERERRG
BREFERA
Gao Bei Dian City Guangshuo the PRC RMB125,708,800 100%  Operation of solar
New Energy Group Co., Ltd. limited liability company power plant
B E TR LR E B AR QA Rl A R #125,708,800 7T EENRAREUL
ABREFERA
Zhongneng Hexin Longhua County Solar the PRC RMB10,000,000 100%  Operation of solar
Power Generation Co., Ltd. limited liability company power plant
MEMGERCEAGREEAREERAR FTH A # 10,000,000 7C BB N A B
BREMERA
Tianjin Haitian Fangyuan Energy Saving the PRC RMB111,111,100 55%  Smart energy service
Technology Co., Ltd. limited liability company
REBERT BEREMAERRA A Y AR#111,111,1007T BERRRY
BREFERATA
Hebei Yuedu City Construction the PRC RMB120,000,000 100%  Public infrastructure
Investment Co., Ltd. limited liability company construction
AL B EIM TR IREFR QA FE A R #120,000,0007T NiERER
BREFERA
Baoding Qiantai Investment Co., Ltd. the PRC RMB120,000,000 100%  Public infrastructure
limited liability company construction
RELZFREBRRA Rl A K #120,000,0007T NERER
ABREFERA
Notes: AT -

[0] The principal place of operation of each subsidiary is the same as its place of [0)

incorporation.

(i) The English names of certain subsidiaries represent the best effort by the (ii)
Group’s management to translate their Chinese names, as these subsidiaries

do not have official English names.

<t

EMBAREBEE MR EE MK
Ho B AR o

HRETHEARLEET FEXERE K
RXEBDAEBEEERERNB N
MR EHEBEMT

pus

\
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

20. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING 20. I X EAENRE
THE EQUITY METHOD

The table below provides the reconciliation of the Group’s aggregate TREFINAREBRHEATINEREHETE
carrying amounts of investments in associates from opening to closing HA 97) B BA oK 45 6RO 1 BR -
balances:
2020 2019
—B-BF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTR AR¥TT

Opening balance HA ¥ 4 4 280,645 101,587
Additions bl - 245,000
Share of net (loss)/profit of associates R A ABRAES 2R A

accounted for using the equity method /Y (4 &),/ K6 R 58 (17,248) 5,422
Dividends received W ER f% B - (8,597)
Transfer to financial assets at amortised cost ~ EBR TIREBEK AT SN S M ERE - (62,767)
Closing balance HA oK 4 o4 263,397 280,645
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRERNE
|Forthe year ended 31 December2020 HZ —Z -ZEF+ - A=+—HLFE

20. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FORUSING 20. I HAREZZEAEMNRE @
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31 December NTIHIWANREBR -_E_SEFR T —
2020 and 2019. The entities listed below have share capital consisting NE+-—B=+—H®WELZ2 AT 7
solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the Group. The BEEMNKEANER T EBIKRARK AARE
place of incorporation is also their principal place of business, and the BHEFA Anlxfak B or A EH E
proportion of ownership interest is the same as the proportion of voting EDEEMWE . A BRSO EES
rights held. R ERELLFIAE R -
% of ownership interest Carrying amount
As at 31 December As at 31 December
Fr & R L IR &
W+=B=+-H R+=A=+-H
Place of Measurement

Name of entity incorporation 2020 2019 method 2020 2019
EREH AMRILBHE =T-TF —T-NF FEFE —EZ2E —TNF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR®TT

Longyao (Beijing) Clean Energy the PRC 45% 45% Equity method - 19,085
Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Longyao Beijing”) (a)

BROER)BZEREZRERAA H B R
(M8t =) (@)
Gao Bei Dian City Longchuang the PRC 40% 40% Equity method 263,397 261,560

Central Heating Co., Ltd.
(“Longchuang Heating”) (b)

BRETRAEHAERAR th 1355
(TR ) (0)

263,397 280,645
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE -—FF+-_A=+—HILFE

20. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FORUSING 20. I HAREZZEAEMNRE @

THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(a) On 4 June 2018, Baoding Yize New Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (‘Baoding
Yize”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
Beijing Yaohui Hengchang Technology Partnership Enterprise (Limited
Partnership), an independent third party, agreed to make capital
contribution to Longyao Beijing, which is principally engaged in heat
supply business. As a result, Baoding Yize obtained 45% equity
interest of Longyao Beijing and shall contribute RMB135,000,000 to
Longyao Beijing before 31 December 2021. RMB33,400,000 has
been paid by Baoding Yize as of 31 December 2020 and 2019.

(b) On 21 May 2019, Beijing Longguang Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (“Beijing
Longguang”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a capital increase agreement with Hebei Julin Chuanghe
Cultural Communication Co., Ltd. (“Hebei Julin”), a company owned
by the controlling shareholder, pursuant to which Beijing Longquang
agreed to make capital contribution to Longchuang Heating, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Hebei Julin. As a result, Beijing
Longguang obtained 40% equity interest of Longchuang Heating by
making capital contribution of RMB245,000,000. According to the
valuation report issued by an independent third-party valuer, the
Group’s share of the fair value of Longchuang Heating’s identifiable
assets and liabilities on the acquisition date was RMB263,000,000.
The excess of the Group’s share of the fair value of Longchuang
Heating’s identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of investment
amounting to RMB18,000,000 was included as share of net profit of
associates accounted for using the equity method for the year ended
31 December 2019.

According to the capital increase agreement, Hebei Julin has a
profit guarantee for Longchuang Heating, which will be assessed
by Beijing Longguang and Hebei Julin every three years from 1
January 2020. The profit compensation will be calculated at the
end of each three-year term and settled by Hebei Julin on or
before 31 March of the year immediately following the relevant
three-year term. The first three-year term ending 31 December
2022 will be assessed and settled on or before 31 March 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

|Forthe year ended 31 December2020 HZ —Z -ZEF+ - A=+—HLFE

20. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING  20.
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(C) The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses of
Longyao Beijing. The amount of unrecognised share of the associate,
extracted from the relevant management account of Longyao Beijing

FRRAEZEARNKRE @

() remerL®RL

R Bt R

BEENRE M ERILRAF
EEBEEKBNZES AR

for the year is as follows: RERMDBSRTEAT :
2020
—g-=%
RMB’000
AR T
Unrecognised share of losses of associates 74 E Bt & A AI W) R HERE B D 58
for the year 491
(d) Commitments in respect of associates (d) Bt&E ATRMHEBEAE
2020 2019
—E-2E —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETFIT
Investment in associate REtERRIRE 101,600 101,600
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

20. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FORUSING 20. I HAREZZEAEMNRE @

THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

() Summarised financial information for (e)
associates

The table below provides summarised financial information for
the Group’s associates. The information disclosed reflects the
amounts presented in the financial statements of the relevant
associates, which have been amended to reflect adjustments
made by the Group when using the equity method, including fair
value adjustments and modifications for differences in accounting

BEQTHBEEHREL

AEEBZARMEEEH AN
TRAR - WEMNE B R R RE B
ERAIVHEBRERRPERNSHE - Z%
ELWOETER  URRAKE
ERBEDESFAEIE  BEQ
FEAELSTRREZEZEAHEN

policy. B4 -
2020 2019
—EZEF —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARBT T
Longchuang Heating fERIZ D
Summarised statement of financial position Bt 7 ik 3% 3 4 #tt
Current assets & E 1,062,059 1,091,910
Non-current assets EmEEE 536,525 434,639
Current liabilities mEAE (545,984) (661,659)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (565,773) (489,859)
Net assets FEE 486,827 475,031
Reconciliation to carrying amounts BRAREE ¥ AR
Opening net assets M FEE 475,031 475,061
Profit/(loss) for the year FWim A (E8) 11,796 (30)
Closing net assets HRFEE 486,827 475,031
Fair value adjustments A FEBE
Revaluation surplus on acquisition U i {32 (B 182,440 182,440
Amortisation of share of revaluation surplus E(H G E D R (10,774) (3,671)
Closing net assets adjusted using the equity A EZ A A BN RFEE
method 658,493 653,900
Group’s shares in % ZINCHETR = n ek 40% 40%
Group’s shares in RMB REB KD AA RS R 263,397 261,560
Carrying amounts of investment in associates 7 B & /A & % & R M & 263,397 261,560
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

|Forthe year ended 31 December2020 HZ —Z -ZEF+ - A=+—HLFE

20. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(e) Summarised financial information for

20. RAEREARMNKRE @

) BMERTAMBREEHML

associates (Continued) (%)
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
Year ended 31 December BE+-A=+—HLFE
Revenue I 25 195,458 167,105
Expenses 53 (183,662) (167,135)
Profits/(loss) from continuing operations FECE TSR (EE) 11,796 (30)
Other comprehensive income HEa2mEBA - =
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2EKA(EE) B8 11,796 (30)

Dividend record from associate

Bk 8 1 B Ak B 4D 8%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

20. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FORUSING 20. X AR ZABRNRE w
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)
() Summarised financial information for () BHE AR HMBREEBIL
associates (Continued) (%)
2020 2019
—E-ZF —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARET T
Longyao Beijing f2 R4t =
Summarised statement of financial position &1 #§ Ak i 3% #f #it
Current assets MBNE E 2,487 45,485
Non-current assets EMBE E 124 189
Current liabilities mEEE (3,702) (3,262)
Net assets FEE (1,091) 42,412
Reconciliation to carrying amounts HEmEYHR
Opening net assets M FEE 42,412 73,312
Loss for the year FANEE (43,503) (30,900)
Closing net (liabilities)/assets HARZF (AR EE (1,091) 42,412
Group’s shares in % 7N &= B R AR B 45% 45%
Group’s shares in RMB AN B %D AA RE 3 R - 19,085
Carrying amounts of investment in associates ~ FA Bl & 1 714% & BR I (& - 19,085
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

|Forthe year ended 31 December2020 HZ —Z -ZEF+ - A=+—HLFE

21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 21. e@ T AEEA
CATEGORY
The Group holds the following financial instruments: REEFETIHEMIA :
(a) Financial assets (@ sMEE

As at 31 December 2020

R-ZE-_ZEF+-_HA=+—H

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value
at amortised through profit
cost or loss Total
RAFETE
REBHERKA BHEZHEFA
STEH BEH
SREE TREE #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®BTRT AR®TrR
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H ftb fE WK IE
(excluding non-financial assets) (TEEFEcHEE) 212,639 - 212,639
Financial assets at amortised cost 12 ## $#5AX 51 £ H & 7l
BE 72,861 - 72,861
Financial assets at fair value BATEFTE=EEEZE
through profit or loss FFAEENEREE - 47,061 47,061
Restricted cash PR HI IR & 139 - 139
Cash and cash equivalents RERBACEEY 155,446 - 155,446
441,085 47,061 488,146
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

2. €M T B Al @

CATEGORY (Continued)
(@) Financial assets (Continued) (@ eREE @
As at 31 December 2019
R-_E—h&F+=_A=+—8
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
at amortised  through profit or
cost loss Total
EAFERFE
REERKA  BHEEHHIA
2R B
SREE SREE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T ARETT ARETT
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b FIE
(excluding non-financial assets) (TRiEEemEE) 162,902 — 162,902
Financial assets at amortised cost 1% # $#5 X 251 8 H & Bl
BE 137,022 — 137,022
Financial assets at fair value EATEFEEEESH
through profit or loss AFABERNEREE — 157,003 157,003
Restricted cash R 537 & 66,388 = 66,388
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEED 32,228 — 32,228
398,540 157,003 555,543
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRERNE
|Forthe year ended 31 December2020 HZ —Z -ZEF+ - A=+—HLFE

21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 21. £ T BEE R w
CATEGORY (Continued)
(b) Financial liabilities b) @B E

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

REBHERLTTENERESE
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—~H

2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R AR T

Trade and other payables E 5 R EMESRE
(excluding non-financial liabilities) (TEEFEeHEH) 68,919 50,184
Borrowings e 235,400 534,400
Lease liabilities HEAE 11,939 15,144
316,258 599,728
22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 2. ZAFEGEAHZEH
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS AEEHNEREE
As at 31 December
R+=—HB=+—8
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETF T
Unlisted convertible bond (a) JEEM AR AR E (@) 962 4,913
Unlisted investment funds (b) FELEMEEES(b) 46,099 152,090

47,061 157,003
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

\

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 2. RAFEFFEHEHEHS
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) AEZHNEREE @
The following table presents the changes in financial assets at fair value TREWNEE-_ZE_ZEFR_T—NLF
through profit or loss for the years ended 31 December 2020 and +-—A=+—BIEEEHATEFER
2019: HEEFHT AEBETNeREENE T
Unlisted Unlisted Put option
investment  convertible over shares
funds bond in associate Total
FELEH ¥ET HEQARSG
REES WBRRES ORI @ st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTE ARBTE ARETR

As at 1 January 2019 R=-ZZB-h&E—-—HF—H 148,278 8,762 7,403 164,443
Disposals g = (4,072) - 4,072)
Exercise of put option TR E — — (7,408) (7,403)
Gains recognised in other gains — net 7> H fth Y 25 /5 58 7 #E 22 80 U 25 490 26 — 516
Exchange differences EH =5 3,322 197 — 3,519
As at 31 December 2019 and R-EB-hE+=-B=+-—H

1 January 2020 FE-ZE-Z%—-H8—H 152,090 4,913 — 157,003
Disposals HE (1083,650) (3,898) = (107,548)
Gains recognised in other gains — net 7 H fth Y 25 /% 58 7 7 22 49 U 25 1,340 30 - 1,370
Exchange differences [EHZ% (3,681) (83) - (3,764)
As at 31 December 2020 R=-B-BE+=-HF=+—-8H 46,099 962 — 47,061
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

|For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ - Z -—TF+-A=+—HIFE

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

@)

On 11 September 2018, the Group subscribed for an unlisted
convertible corporate bond issued by Supreme Trillion
Development Limited (“Supreme Trillion”), an independent third
party. The principal amount was HK$10,000,000. The convertible
bond matures on 15 May 2021 and bears coupon of 13.5%
annually. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
had applied for redemption of the convertible bond in eleven
equal installments and held the right to convert the remaining
amount of the bond into ordinary shares of Asia Interactive
Content Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of Supreme Trillion,
before its maturity.

As at 31 December 2020, the remaining principle amount was
HK$715,000 (equivalent to RMB602,000) (2019: HK$5,455,000,
equivalent to RMBA4,887,000),
convertible bond amounting to HK$1,142,000 (equivalent to
RMB962,000) (2019: HK$5,485,000, equivalent to
RMB4,913,000). A fair value gain of HK$36,000 (equivalent to
RMB30,000) was recognised for the year ended 31 December
2020 (2019: fair value gain of HK$30,000, equivalent to
RMB26,000). Interest income amounting to HK$788,000
(equivalent to RMB701,000) was included in fair value gains as
other gains for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
HK$1,350,000, equivalent to RMB1,188,000).

while the fair value of the

22, 1%

(

a)

A ¥ {EEE
ARENEHMEE

i
il

HEZH5

R

it

)

i

RZZFE-—NFhLA+—H X%
EREREkERARAGB(E
KND(—ZBILE=7H)BTHIE
FWABREBERRESF - ASEA
10,000,000 7t ° A #2 % (& 5 &9 2
HHA-_ZE_—FHAT+HHE =
HENKAE1B5% - HE-_T— N
FE+-_A=+—HBLEE KX&EH
ERES T —HEHEED AR
E5 REEREBHAESR TES
HERASKEEERAAMNBEA
AEMNESEEERER A AH
LB IR R

R=—ZFE=-_ZFTF+=-_A=+—8"
# T AN € 58 57150008 Jo( 48
E R AR ®602000L) (=& —
J1 % 15,455,000 7T ' M E R A
R #4,887,0007T )+ 1M A # iR &
% N F{E 51,142,000 T (H &
» A R #962,0007T ) T — N
F : 5,485,000/ JT ° *a mnAR
#4,913000L ) B E =T = F
F+-_A=Z+-—"BLEEFEEER
A T {E U 36,0008 T (1 & »
A R #30,000m)(=ZF — &
A F & Uk 230,000 7T # B R
AR #2600 ) BEZZT =
TF+_A=+—HLEFEEAE
H A Ug 35 5 A A FE Y e A
B U A A&788,000/8 T (HE R A
E%ﬁ%mooo%)(—%—hi'
1,850,000 7T - HHE N AR
1,188,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

L

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # = —

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

()

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group held
shares in Giga Opportunities Fund Ltd. (“Giga”), an unlisted third-
party investment company incorporated in the BVI, with
investment cost of HK$90,000,000. As at 31 December 2019,
Giga invested in unlisted debt securities and various ordinary
shares traded on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. As
at 31 December 2019, the investment in Giga was stated at fair
value amounting to HK$80,333,000 (equivalent to
RMB71,960,000). A fair value gain of HK$1,755,000 (equivalent
to RMB1,562,000) was recognised for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: a fair value gain of HK$1,747,000,
equivalent to RMB1,537,000). As at 31 December 2020, the
shares of Giga held by the Group had been fully redeemed.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group held
shares in Yue Xiu Stable Income Segregated Portfolio (“Yue Xiu”),
an unlisted third-party investment fund registered with Cayman
Islands Monetary Authority, with investment cost of
HK$88,800,000. As at 31 December 2020, Yue Xiu invested in
unlisted debt security. As at 31 December 2020, the investment
in Yue Xiu was stated at fair value amounting to HK$54,773,000
(equivalent to RMB46,099,000) (2019: HK$89,452,000,
equivalent to RMB80,130,000). A fair value loss of HK$250,000
(equivalent to RMB222,000) was recognised for the year ended
31 December 2020 (2019: a fair value loss of HK$1,190,000,
equivalent to RMB1,047,000).
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EERELESEMAYZMIELED
E=FEERAR)MRY  KEK
7K /90,000,000 JT o BN = T —
L&+ =-_A=+—H' Gigatx &
THEEMEFRETRBEEES
REMEBRRARARZIHNEBRR
B-R=ZF—NF+=ZA=+—
BH ' RGigat & & & A FE 5 R
7‘%80333000;‘%%(*5%‘?/\}\@&5
71,960,0007T) c BE T T F
“—A=+—HLFE WZ“ATHE
I 51,755,000 7t (A8 & A AR
1,562,0007C) (ZE—NF : RFE
I #51,747,0008 70 HHERARE
1,5637,000T) - RZZE T F + =
A=+—H '  "&EHM#EKNGiga
WA E 2SR -

HE-_FT=-_FTF+=-A=+—H
1IEFE - AN A 5 #F A Yue Xiu Stable
Income Segregated Portfolio ([ Yue
Xu)(RHAEHESREERG
MERIWIFELTE=FEEES)
K R% 19 - & & X A 488,800,000
BT -RZTEZEF+ZA =
+—H YueXiulk & 7T I ETHE
HF RZEZZTEF+A=+—
H - RYueXul 1z & & ~ F & 7
B8R /54,773,000 T (HE R AR
# 46,099,000 ) (= & — N1 F -
89,452,000/ 7T+ 18 & M /\ R ¥
80,130,000 ) c HEZE =T =T &F
+:ﬂ£+—5¢¢rx‘ﬁ§:{%ﬁﬂ?
15%%52500005%7‘1($H%‘73A/\E?§5
222,000)(=ZZE—NF: A FE
E5181,190,000 7T ' HHE R AR
1,047,0007T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

|Forthe year ended 31 December2020 HZ —Z -ZEF+ - A=+—HLFE

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 22.

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(c)  The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
were denominated in the following currencies:

© AEBEAFE#ARERZBH
NS BEEN T KE

aT1E :
2020 2019
—E-ZF ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBF T
us$ E™ 46,099 152,090
HKS AT 962 4,913
47,061 157,003
23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED REBEALTENES R
COST gE
2020 2019
—RC-FF —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBFIT
Non-current debt investments FEEIRE 18 &
Loans to third parties REERTE=H - 13,750
Current debt investments FIEE 1R &
Loans to related parties RIEERT AL 15,778 46,023
Loans to third parties REERTE=H 76,153 110,271
Receivable relating to investment in Shandong L RO 2FREIRRMD AR
Hailifeng Clean Energy Joint Stock Co., Ltd* ARI(EFEDKREBBEAE
(“Hailifeng”) (Note 20(c)) Wk I8 (M 7%20(c)) 60,000 62,767
151,931 219,061
151,931 232,811
Less: loss allowance R SR (79,070) (95,789)
72,861 128,272

For identification purpose only.

EXEE R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED W RBEARATENS

174

COST (Continued)

Interests from loans to related parties and third parties charged at
commercial rates are included in finance income. The non-current loans
to third parties are due within two years from 31 December 2019.

For debt investments at amortised cost considered to have low credit
risk, applying the expected credit risk model result in loss allowance
recognised of RMB587,000 during the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: nil).

For debt investments at amortised cost showing a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, a total allowance of lifetime
expected credit losses amounting to RMB78,483,000 was recognised
as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: RMB95,789,000).

Movement in the loss allowance of financial assets at amortised cost is
as follows:

EE @

REERTHB O RE=Z7TONEEE
EMEXYE - FARBEAR AE=
TRENFNPERE T -NF+ =
H=+—HEmFEREH -

SRS EGREERRAREHK
AHAENEBRE ERABEEAR
BRABSHBEE T _TF+_A=+—
B 14 2 A R R8BS 18 B 1 A R %6587,000
T(ZF—hE 8-

¥ A 9 s R RS S R R EE SN
MZBEHEKNATENBEHERE R
E_EE+-_A=+-BHANTE
HEBMCEBENRBERERARE
78,483,000t (ZE—NF+=ZRA=+—
H: AR#¥095,789,0007T) °

REBHKAFENSRAENBRARE
2HmT

Receivable
relating to
Loans Loansto investment
to related third parties  in Hailifeng
parties (a) (b) (c) Total
EHigR e
REER REER REBEAWN
TR S (@ TFHE=F(b) EWFRIE() mEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETRT AR®TRT AR®TT
As at 1 January 2019 R-—ZE—h&—H—H — 900 — 900
Increase in loss allowance [E5 1R s 3 N 2,156 77,571 15,162 94,889
As at 31 December 2019 R-—ZEB—NE+=—BA=+—8H
and 1 January 2020 E=—ZE-_Z2F—-—HF—H 2,156 78,471 15,162 95,789
Increase/(decrease) in loss &5 18 # #53% 10, O 2>)
allowance 587 (14,539) — (13,952)
Written-off i 5 = = (2,767) (2,767)
As at 31 December 2020 R=-B=-ZBHE+=-A=+—H 2,743 63,932 12,395 79,070
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

|Forthe year ended 31 December2020 HZ —Z -ZEF+ - A=+—HLFE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED
COST (Continued)

@)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the loss allowance of
RMB587,000 was charged to loans to related parties based on
the management’s impairment assessment. On 6 December
2018 and 15 January 2019, Baoding Yize provided a loan of
RMB2,000,000 and RMB50,000 to Longyao Beijing, an
associate of the Group, with an interest rate of 9% per annum,
for the period from 6 December 2018 to 5 March 2019 and from
15 January 2019 to 14 April 2019, respectively. As Longyao
Beijing failed to repay the principal and interests in 2019, based
on management’s impairment assessment, a total loss allowance
of RMB2,156,000 was provided for the year ended 31 December
2019.

The Group’s loans to third parties mainly include various loans
provided to target companies in accordance with the payment
arrangement of potential acquisition transactions. The Group
recovered part of the loans during the second half of the year
ended 31 December 2020, a total allowance for expected credit
losses amounting to RMB63,932,000 was recognised as at 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB78,471,000).

VB ZBEAXRTENTH

BE m

(@)

Hz—_ZTZ-_TF+=-_A=+—8H
WEEFE - RIEEEEAENRET
& - ¥R BB 5 1R M B B0 BR R
B E ARKS87,000L R ==
—NE+_ANBE-_ZT—L&F
— ATEB - RERE R A K B
ERrEBIERSBREERA
R #2,000,0007T & A K #50,000
TC R FE R K% B HARR 5 Al
AR T NE+-_AXNBE=
T-hAE=ZARBRK T — A
F—HA+HBE-_ZT—-—NAEMA
THE - ARERIERRERZT
—NFEEAERAE  REEE
BA{ERRER G RBEE=2—
NE+—_A=+—BLLtFEFIR
E B R B 2% A R #2,156,0007T °

AEBERBE=ZFRENERETE
PRZERBERER SO AR
ZHMEZERARENE R - RE
E-_T_TF+=ZA=+—HL
FETHF AEBKETHHE
HK R ZEZEFF+=A=+—
BREHEEBERERBEFEAE
AR #63,932,00070 (= F — L4 ¢
AR #78,471,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED

COST (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

The security of loans to third parties is as follows:

Principal amount as
at 31 December 2020
R=Z=-BF+=A
S el = : O N -
RMB’000

AR® T

Pledged assets

CEEREE

3. ZBERATENESHE

= @)
L) (&)

AE=TRENERERNAT

Guarantees

BRA

8,000

8,000

24,600

Borrower’s assets

BRAEE

Equity interest in the borrower

R ON T

Borrower’s assets and equity interest in a

third-party company
BRABER—BE =7 R a8 RE

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s financial assets
at amortised cost were all denominated in RMB.

Since most of the financial assets at amortised cost were short-
term in nature and the interest rates were close to the market
rates, the carrying amounts of current and non-current financial
assets at amortised cost were not materially different from their
fair values as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

(c) Based on management’s estimate of the future cash flows of
Hailifeng discounted at a current lending rate, a loss allowance
amounting to RMB12,395,000 (2019: RMB15,162,000) was
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2020.

176 LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited

Annual Report 2020

By the borrower’s controlling shareholder and
an independent third party
ERAERBRRE —2BLE=F

By the borrower’s parent company, controlling
shareholder and his spouse
BRAZEAR - ZERMKE & E RS

By one of the shareholders of the borrower
and independent third parties
ERAN—ERERBIE=7

RZE_ZEFR-_ZFT—NLF+=
B=+—8 XN&EEZRHHKAG
ENEREEESIAAREE-

HRASBHOREHEKATENS
MEEBRHELD R XREDE
MEPE AR —_BE_TFER_-F
—hE+_A=ZF+—BER#EHK
KA EMRDRIETDEHEE
WEEEEEEATFTEEET K

© BEEBEEHESMNEZRRBESRK
EEE B FF E IR A
RBEE2E_ZE_ZTFF+_A=+—
BIEFEREIABBBEBARE
12,395,000 L (ZZF— NF : AR
15,162,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
)

|For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ - Z -—TF+-A=+—HIFE

24. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS HEREEE
2020 2019
—E-%F ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
Recoverable value-added tax to be utilised A —FRFERNFENIGED
after one year IR & 9,605 10,969
25. INVENTORIES 25. 7 &
2020 2019
—2-%H —NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AR T T
Finished goods B2 B 29,990 10,658
Less: write-downs of inventories B FEKE (999) (1,903)
28,991 8,755
Cost of inventories amounting to RMB139,896,000 (2019: HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HLF
RMB16,196,000) were recognised as cost of sales during the year B FEKAK AR K139,896,0007T (=
ended 31 December 2020. T—NF: AR ¥16,196,0007T) &R /
SHEKA °
Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value amounting to RMBnil HE—_ZT_ZTF+-_A=+—HLHF
(2019: RMB1,899,000) were recognised in cost of sales during the year B FTERZAMEEFENREARE
ended 31 December 2020. T (ZZT—NF: ARE®1,899,0007T)
RN IEE KRR -

The Group reversed RMB904,000 (2019: RMB251,000) of previous
write-downs of inventories during the year ended 31 December 2020
since the Group has sold the goods to independent customers. The
amount reversed was included in cost of sales for the year ended 31
December 2020.

HE—_Z -5+ -_A=+—HIHF
E BRASEEHEREHETBILE
P AEEBLBSAERANTEKE
AERBOI4,000TL(ZE—NEFE: ARK
251,0007T) - BEIM S BEFABKE_Z
—EFE+ - A=+—BHLEFEMNHEEK
PN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # = —

E_TFE+_A=1+—BLFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26. EZ R HAMEWRKIE

2020 2019

—E-%F ZE-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE TR AR T T

Trade receivables (a) Z 5 FE I FR A (a) 310,493 274,335
Tariff adjustment receivables (b) S 1 B /R W FRE (b) 84,592 64,789
395,085 339,124
Less: loss allowance B BERE (203,296) (187,467)
Total trade receivables B 5 REI IR 191,789 151,657
Notes receivables e =I5 550 700
Prepayments T8 FE 45,560 3,295
Other receivables H th fE U 31 T 20,857 20,317
Less: loss allowance for other receivables o H A E Llﬁl R I B R (557) -
258,199 175,969

As at 31 December 2020, the collection rights of trade receivables R-_E-_TEF+_A=+—H KBH

derived from certain solar power plants with carrying amount of

RMB94,234,000 (81 December 2019: RMB81,979,000) were pledged

as security for the Group’s borrowings (Note 30).

?%ﬁ*iﬁﬁﬁ@fﬁ)\ﬁﬁ%%zmwoﬁ
—NE+_A=+—H8: ARK
&gmmmwm%%ﬁw

K IR UK KA AR

ERERAEBEEMER(HEI0)

Ageing analysis of trade receivables in gross basis, based on invoice ERNEZEAHNE S RBRIBBABDN R
date is as follows: BT :

2020 2019

—2-%H —T-hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARBTT

Within 1 year —F R 93,182 80,268

1 year to 2 years —FERF 76,065 238,801

2 years to 3 years MEZE=F 206,618 18,155

Over 3 years =F Pk 19,220 1,900

395,085 339,124

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited

Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRERNE
|Forthe year ended 31 December2020 HZ —Z -ZEF+ - A=+—HLFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 26. = 5 & H b FE Uk 2k 18 ()

(@)  Trade receivables from sales of home photovoltaic systems and @ XREHEFPAXKESKIREMHEL
rendering electricity distribution service are due within 180 days BEREHNESEKREERER
from the date of billing. Trade receivables from rendering smart HI#E180 K N E|Hi - R B IR L& =
energy services are due within one year from the date of billing. BERRENESEKRZEARE
Trade receivables from sales of electricity are due within one HEA#RE —FERNRE - KBEESE S
month from the date of biling. To measure the expected credit MESREWBREEMEBBE—
losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared BMARKNEH - BstEBHEZEE
credit risk characteristics and ageing. The allowance for trade B BEREKZERELREE
receivables as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 was determined EREGRER TASE - R
as follows: T EFRZF-NF+ZARA=

+—B BHRKRIBENEGET
R
As at 31 December 2020 R-—EB-_ZEF+-A=+—H
Past due Past due Past due
Sales of home Not yet within 6 months to over
photovoltaic systems HEFRAXRES past due 6 months 18 months 18 months Total
BE6eEA ®E18MEA
HMAEE AHeEAR Z1818 A Bk @t
Individually assessed!: &1 51 FF 1 -
Gross carrying amount AR 425
(RMB’000) (ANR¥FT) - = 18,258 187,812 206,070
Loss allowance (RMB'000) & 18 # &
(ANR®EF ) — — — (187,076) (187,076)
Collectively assessed!: A TS
Expected loss rate TEEER X 0% 0%  NATEA  NATEA
Gross carrying amount AR 4%
(RMB’000) (ANEET ) 47,894 284 — — 48,178
Loss allowance (RMB'000) /& 18 # &
(ANR®ETF ) = = = - -

Total loss allowance BiEREAE
(RMB’000) (AR¥Tx) (187,076)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 26. = 5 & H b FE Uk =k 18 ()

(@)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2019

@ (&)

R=ZB-AFE+=HA=+—H

Past due Past due Past due
Sales of home Not yet within 6 months to over
photovoltaic systems HEFRAXRES past due 6 months 18 months 18 months Total
BH6EAZ BH18MEA
MABE BHEAR 1818 A Uk 5t
Individually assessed!: 1B 5 FF 12 -
Gross carrying amount Rz
(RMB’000) (AR TFT) 14,634 3,624 180,625 11,676 210,559
Loss allowance (RMB’000) 518 B &
(AR TFT) — - (163,863) (11,676) (175,539)
Due to deterioration in the operations of relevant distributors in REBEZE-_ZTE—NAF+_A=1+—

home photovoltaic system business, credit risk of trade
receivables from home photovoltaic system business has
significantly increased during the year ended 31 December 2019.
A total allowance for expected credit losses in trade receivables
amounting to RMB187,812,000 was recognised as at 31

December 2020 (31 December 2019: RMB175,539,000).

As at 31 December 2020

HIEFE HRFAXKREGES
WIS EEneBEREl FRAK
REREBHNESRERKRKEREE
R AREEM R F+ =
A=+—0 & ZEKZEESH
EEFERRBEHEREAARE
187,812,000t (ZZE— N F+ = A
=+—H: AR¥175,539,0007T) °

R=-Z2-2F+=-A=+—H

Past due Past due Past due
Rendering electricity Not yet within 6 months to over
distribution service =B B R past due 6 months 18 months 18 months Total
RHcEAZ BE18MEA
HABE AHEAR 1818 A U E Mt
Individually assessed!: 1B 5 FF 1 -
Gross carrying amount AR 4A%E
(RMB’000) (ANREF ) = = = = =
Loss allowance (RMB’000) & 18 # &
(ANREF ) = = = = =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRERNE
|Forthe year ended 31 December2020 HZ —Z -ZEF+ - A=+—HLFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 26. = 5 & H b FE Uk =k 18 ()

(@  (Continued) @ (&)
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZE-—hAhE+=-A=+—H
Past due Past due Past due
Rendering electricity Not yet within 6 months to over
distribution service RMEMRERH past due 6 months 18 months 18 months Total
mHeEAZE BH18EA
HABE BH6EAR 1818 A nE Fob
Individually assessed!: 1B 5 FF 12 -
Gross carrying amount Rz
(RMB’000) (AREFT) = = 4,045 — 4,045
Loss allowance (RMB'000) [ 18 # &
(AR TFT) - — (4,045) — (4,045)
As at 31 December 2020 R-=E2—_ZEF+=-HA=+—H
Past due Past due Past due Past due
Rendering smart Not yet within 1 year to 2 years to over
energy services REEEgRRE past due 1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
mH1F BE2FE BEESE
HAEE BE1FER 22F 23F Bk Fob
Individually assessed!: 18 B 513
Gross carrying amount BRE 4258
(RMB’000) (ANREFT) 1,909 816 11,169 - — 13,894
Loss allowance (RMB’000) 518 # &
(AR®F ) = (816) (11,169) - - (11,989)
Collectively assessed!: B T
Expected loss rate BHEEX 0% 6% 11% 16% N/ARiEH
Gross carrying amount R4 %R
(RMB’000) (AR F L) 2,135 16,800 671 320 — 19,926
Loss allowance (RMB’000) & 18 # {&
(AR®F ) — (931) (75) (51) — (1,057)
Total loss allowance BREBELSE
(RMB’000) (ANER¥ET L) (13,042)
BERNESSERIEREMRAT &1k 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

@)

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited  Annual Report 2020

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2019

26. E5 R EMEKRRE @

(@ (&)

R=ZB-AFE+=HA=+—H

Past due Past due Past due Past due
Rendering smart Not yet within 1 year to 2 years to over
energy services RMHEEEERRYE pastdue 1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
B F aM2F AMIF
MABE BE1ER o2& ZE3F Bk et
Individually assessed!: 1B 5 51 -
Gross carrying amount BRI 48 %8
(RMB’000) (ANE¥ET L) = 15,530 = = - 15,580
Loss allowance (RMB’000) /& 18 # &
(AR®TT) — (9,000) - — — (9,000)
Collectively assessed: A FHE
Expected loss rate BHEBEE 0% 5% 10%  NATEB NATEA
Gross carrying amount BRI 48 58
(RMB’000) (AR®FT) 27,046 3,690 320 — — 31,056
Loss allowance (RMB’000) J& 18 # &
(ARMF ) - (185) (32) - - @17)
Total loss allowance BEBEELSE
(RMB’000) (ANRET L) (9,217)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

|Forthe year ended 31 December2020 HZ —Z -ZEF+ - A=+—HLFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(@  (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020

R-ZE-_BFE+=-A=+-—H

(@ (&

26. E 5 K H b FE W FNIE @)

Past due Past due Past due Past due  Past due
Not yet within 11 months to 23 months to 35 months to over
Sales of electricity HEED past due 11 months 23 months 35 months 47 months 47 months Total
ol -t k] B
bl 11fEAZ 28fAZ  3B@AAE  47fAR
HABS MEAR 2318 A 3518 A 4718 A RE
Individually assessed!: 181 B 5T 1 -
Gross carrying amount IRmaz
(RMB’000) (ARET T 46 450 582 527 671 641 2,917
Loss allowance (RMB'000)  [E5#8 5 f&
(ARET T - - (581) (527) 671) (641)  (2,420)
Collectively assessed: HE T -
Expected loss rate BHEEE 0% 0% 6% 1% 16% 20%
Gross carrying amount IR A%
(RMB'000) (AR¥TFT) 3,738 6,024 7,711 1,336 499 200 19,508
Loss allowance (RMB'000)  [E518 % f&
(AE®F ) - - (441) (149) (80) (40  (110)
Total loss allowance (RMB'000) /& 18 % f# 42 58
ON: S ) (3,130)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 26. = 5 & H b FE Uk =k 18 ()

(@  (Continued) @ (&)
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZZE-NE+=A=+-—H
Past due Past due Past due Pastdue  Past due
Not yet within 11 months to 23 months to 35 months to over
Sales of electricity HEE D pastdue 11 months  23months  35months 47 months 47 months Total
ol ol -t ol

gt NEAZE
HAAYE 1EARK 2318 B

2BHEAZE BEAZ  47fA

3518 A 4718 A Rk a5t

Individually assessed!: 181 5 5T 12 -
Gross carrying amount REAE
(RMB'000) (ARBFT) 21 590 527 671 248 303 2,450
Loss allowance (RMB'000) 18 # 1
(ARBFL) 1) (590) (527) 671) (248) (393 (2,450)
Collectively assessed: A
Expected loss rate EHEBEE 0% 0% 5% 10% 20% 50%
Gross carrying amount RHARE
(RMB'000) (AR%®T) 2,223 9,612 1,577 1,128 104 9% 14,740
Loss allowance (RMB'000) 518 & &
(AR%®T) - - (79 113 1) 48) (261)
Total loss allowance BEEBEE
(RMB’000) (ARBFT) (2.711)

(b) As at 31 December 2020, RMB53,890,000 (2019:
RMB42,270,000) of trade receivables aged over one year
represent tariff adjustment receivables, derived from the subsidies
in respect of sales of electricity. Applying the expected credit risk
model result in loss allowance amounted to RMB48,000
recognised for tariff adjustment receivables for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: nil).
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R-ZEBE-_ZETF+-_A=+—HB " E
B—FLEHNBESRKFEAR
#53890,000C( =T — AL &F: A
R #42,270,0007T ) A& E B f 85 &
WRIE  EERIEREEEE N
A - ERTBHEERRER S5
EERBEERAERBEE_S =
TE+_A=t+—BLEEEER
B 18 B 5 A R 48,0007t (=& —
NE ) o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRERNE
|Forthe year ended 31 December2020 HZ —Z -ZEF+ - A=+—HLFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 26. = 5 & H b FE Uk =k 18 ()

(¢)  Movement in the loss allowance of trade and other receivables is  EBZREMEWRZEEEEED
as follows: 2EmT

2020 2019

—BRCRHF —E-AF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Opening balance HA ) 45 £R 187,467 18,652
Increase in loss allowance &5 18 B AE 2L N
— Trade receivables — B S EWHIE 15,829 172,860
— Other receivables — HEfb U RIB 557 606
Written off as uncollectible 48 57 W B 7 Tt 5H
— Trade receivables — B S EWKRIE - (4,045)
— Other receivables — H fth fE W R IE - (606)
Closing balance HA R 45 4 203,853 187,467
(d) The Group’s trade and other receivables were denominated in 0 AXEBZZREMEWKRBIT
the following currencies: P EHEHE :
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BT R ARET T

HKS BT 425 567

RMB AR 257,774 175,402

258,199 175,969

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts of RZE_EFER T —NLE+=

trade and other receivables approximated their fair values. A=+—H B KEMEKZE
WEEEEEAAFEES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

27. RESTRICTED CASH 27.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s restricted cash amounted to
RMB139,000 (2019: RMB66,388,000), mainly representing the
deposits made in accordance with the terms of loan agreements
between the Group and the lender, whereby the Group is required to
deposit the entire loan proceeds into restricted bank accounts. The
restricted cash can only be used to finance the development of
designated public infrastructure construction business.

ZREBEE

R-ZB-_ZTF+-_A=+—8 K&E
BHAEZRHIE S ARE139,000T (=
— N : AR #66,388,0007T) ° £ E35
BERNEBHERAMTLERBZED
BRAENER  AEEAIEE2HEXR
FIiSBEAZREIRITRS - 2R
HESENERARBNEREEQAER
BREBTES -

28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 28. REREEEEY
2020 2019
—EEF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR F T
Cash at bank SBITER 155,354 32,185
Cash on hand BFIRE 92 43
155,446 32,228

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the

AEFENRERRESEFEDATINER

following currencies: =HE :
2020 2019
—E-FF —EAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AR®BT T
us$ ETT 4 5
HKS BT 87,087 1,124
RMB AR 68,355 31,099
155,446 32,228
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRERNE
|Forthe year ended 31 December2020 HZ —Z -ZEF+ - A=+—HLFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 29. RAK f#E
(@) Share capital (@) BA&
Authorised and issued share capital: EEREBITRA:
2020 2019
—E-FE ZE-hF
No. of shares Amount  No. of shares Amount
BRHEE S8 B EE o]
’000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR THERT F & FHET
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each R E{E0.0178 T i & B % 2,000,000 20,000 2,000,000 20,000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: TEik BERTHEEHR:
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NF
RMB RMB
No. of shares Amount equivalent  No. of shares Amount equivalent
BB & B 8 ZHEARY BRHEE 8 ZBARE
’000 HK$’000 RMB’000 ’000 HK$'000 RMB’000
TR TET AR%BTx TR FHET ARETL

At1Januaryand 31 A—A—H K&
December +=-R=+—H 1,484,604 14,846 12,255 1,484,604 14,846 12,255
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b) Reserves

(i)

(i)

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited

Share premium

The excess of the issued price net of any issuance
expenses over the par value of the shares issued has been
credited to share premium of the Company.

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in share premium are distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Statutory reserve

The PRC statutory reserve were established in accordance
with the relevant rules and regulations of the PRC and the
articles of association of the companies within the Group.
The companies in the PRC are required to transfer certain
proportion of their net profit (after offsetting prior-year
losses) to general statutory reserve. For the year ended 31
December 2020, RMB3,224,000 was credited to statutory
reserve (2019: RMB1,808,000).

General statutory reserve can be used to reduce prior-year
losses, if any, and may be converted into paid-in/share
capital by issuing new shares to shareholders proportionate
to their existing percentage of equity interests provided
that the balance after such issue is not less than 25% of
the registered capital. General statutory reserve is non-
distributable other than in liquidation.

Annual Report 2020
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(b) &

(i)

B 19 7 (8
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#3,224,0007C & A T JE E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

|Forthe year ended 31 December2020 HZ —Z -ZEF+ - A=+—HLFE

30. BORROWINGS 30. & &
2020 2019
—EBCRF —E-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
Secured bank borrowings FERIRITEER
Pledged and guaranteed borrowings (a) EEREEREEQ) 235,400 259,400
Guaranteed borrowings (b) BEREED) - 275,000
235,400 534,400
Current =0
Pledged and guaranteed borrowings BERKREREE 24,400 24,000
Guaranteed borrowings BEREE - 275,000
24,400 299,000
Non-current FERN A
Pledged and guaranteed borrowings EERREREER 211,000 235,400
211,000 235,400

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s borrowings were
repayable as follows:

RZEBE_EFR_ZFT-—NF+_A=+
—H - AEEEEEZEEDT

2020 2019

—EEF —E—-hnF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARETT

Within 1 year R—FR 24,400 299,000
Between 1 and 2 years —FEMF 24,700 24,400
Between 2 and 5 years MEZERF 86,000 77,400
Over 5 years AELE 108,300 133,600
235,400 534,400
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # = —

30. BORROWINGS (Continued)

(@)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s borrowings amounting to
RMB235,400,000 (2019: RMB259,400,000), with interest rates
ranging from 5.23% to 5.46% (2019: 5.39% to 5.64%) per
annum, were jointly guaranteed by the controlling shareholder,
his spouse and a company controlled by the controlling
shareholder. Property, plant and equipment of solar power plants
of the Group with carrying amount of RMB258,107,000 (2019:
RMB302,146,000) and the collection rights of trade receivables
derived from the solar power plants were pledged as security for
these borrowings (Note 14(b) and 26).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s borrowings amounting to
RMB275,000,000, with interest rate of 7.00% per annum, were
guaranteed by a company controlled by the controlling
shareholder. The balance was fully repaid during the year ended
31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s borrowings
were all denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts of the
Group’s bank borrowings were not materially different from their
fair values as the interest rates were close to the market rates.

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

E_TFE+_A=1+—BLFE

30. B E @)

(@)

3. EF R

RZE-Z_ZTF+=-_A=+—8"
NEEEE AR 235,400,000 7T
(ZZ— A& AR #259,400,000
T0) BN F523%E5.46% (==& —
FLEF : 5.30% E5.64%) H) 4 F & 5F
BoZEBEHERRKRE £
BUARERBRZESN—E2A A
HARHRER - FEEAARE
258,107,000t (Z B — hF: AR
#302,146,0007T ) K 48 & @ ¢ (X &
R R KRR RO R E Ik
HEWRIERREE B IEAZ
ZEERNER (K aE14(0) &2 26) °

—hWFE+=-_A=+—H" &
£ BB E AR #275,000,0007T 1%
700%HFF X B - ZEBEH
PR AR AT B A — 2 R IR B
R-ZEHRERBE_ZT_ZTF 1+
A=t BLEFEANZHEE-

—NE+=
EDBL/’\/\

F_ZTFER-_F-NAFE+Z

+—8" BﬂE@?’F'Jﬁ&ﬁFﬁiﬁ%lJ
CAEERITEENREERER

FEHIEBBERER -

H ft FE {4 5K IE

2020 2019
T-8HF —TAF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARMT ARBT T

Trade payables
Accruals and other payables

B 5 RN RIA

&t B R R Al 3R

32,917
36,002

19,638
30,546

68,919 50,184

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited
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e M RRHE

|For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ - Z -—TF+-A=+—HIFE

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)  31. B 5 & H b FE {4 5 ()
Ageing analysis of trade payables, based on invoice date, is as follows: AN BZAHNE ZEMNRENRE D
AT -
2020 2019
et g —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBFTT
Within 1 year 19,810 6,021
Over 1 year 13,107 13,617
32,917 19,638
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s trade and other RZE_ZETERKR-_T—HNhE+=-_R=
payables were all denominated in RMB and the carrying amounts +—H AEENE S REMENZE
approximated their fair values. HUARKSE BEEmEHEEANFE
& -
32. DIVIDENDS 32. K&
During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company did BHE—_E_ZTEN_F—HhE+_H=

not declare any dividends to the shareholders of the Company.

+— EIJL¢F£ ZANU/N TI?M’VK GIL
REIREMKR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

33. CASH FLOW INFORMATION

33.

(@) Cash generated from operations

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited

BEREER
@ REMBHR=E

2020 2019
—E-2F —T-hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mz AR®BTR ARET T
Profit/(loss) before income tax B FT SR AR A (E18) 983 (325,868)
Adjustments for: RRELTHEE :
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% - &= MR EITE 14 29,680 29,183
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRHEEENE 15 3,630 2,392
Amortisation of intangible assets B = 16 2,624 3,771
Impairment of intangible assets EmEEERE 16 138 6,497
(Reversal of)/impairment of inventories FECRERR), SRE 25 (904) 1,899
Impairment of contract assets BHEERE 18 882 47,815
Impairment of trade and other receivables B 5 K H 8 WK IE R B 26 16,386 178,465
(Reversal of)/impairment of financial assets at ~ Z#EK At EN S @B E
amortised cost CRERE) TBE 23 (13,952) 94,889
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 1% - & E & R &R E 5,723 —
Net fair value gains on financial assets at fair RATEFERHEFH AERE
value through profit or loss MemEENTFERZEFHE 10 (2,071) (1,704)
Net losses/(gains) on disposal of property, HEME BMELREESR
plant and equipment (U i) F8 10 55 (387)
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries o & BT B A B A U 10 - (143)
Deferred income from government grants 2R B BT 1l Bh B0 3R SE Y A (106) (107)
Equity settled share-based payment (reversal)/ 1% # & 45 & AR (9 S 1~ B9
expense (AX#&E) X 7(b) (12,879) 3,068
Finance expenses R E 15,507 22,702
Share of net loss/(profit) of associates A A AR =2 A
accounted for using the equity method B (4B ) /4w A 5 58 17,248 (5,422)
Foreign exchange losses I H &8 819 365
Changes in working capital: EEELBE:
(Increase)/decrease in inventories F& (2 hm), w5 (19,332) 13,826
Decrease in contract assets BHEERD 223,321 6,509
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other B 5 K h e Rk IE (35 0n)
receivables Ve : %, (103,301) 159,149
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables & 5 [z £ {th F& < 5% 18 £ 410
S OR ) 18,859 (42,218)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities AHa’EEm Crd) 10,930 (1,175)
Cash generated from operations KETRIR® 194,240 188,506
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Net debt reconciliation

|Forthe year ended 31 December2020 HZ —Z -ZEF+ - A=+—HLFE

3B.BEREEN @

(b) EHFEHK

2020 2019

—ECEHF —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AR¥T T

Cash and cash equivalents BEMNREEEDY 155,446 32,228
Restricted cash PR 38 & 139 66,388
Borrowings — repayable within one year BEE-R—"FRNEE (24,400) (299,000)
Borrowings — repayable after one year BE-—R—FREE (211,000) (235,400)
Lease liabilities HEAE (11,939) (15,144)
Net debt &% F 5 (91,754) (450,928)
Cash and cash equivalents ReEkREEED 155,446 32,228
Restricted cash PR 38 & 139 66,388
Gross debt — fixed interest rates BEi4a%E — EEF R (11,939) (290,144)
Gross debt — variable interest rates BB — FEA =R (235,400) (259,400)
Net debt (ER -] (91,754) (450,928)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

33. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 3B.BHEREER w
(b) Net debt reconciliation (Continued) (b) EXFEYR@®
Liabilities from financing activities
RERMEEHHEE

Borrowings  Borrowings

due within due after  Amount due to Lease
1 year 1year related parties liabilities Total
— SRS -F£3IH RS S
HEE HEE M= HERE Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR®TR ARBTT AR®Tt ARKTR

Balance as at1 January 2019 R=B—hE—f— A&% (33200)  (534,400) (3,424) (11,577)  (582,601)
Cash flows RenE
Funds paid L& 33,200 - 2,753 2,855 38,808
Funds received W E & - - (74) - (74)
Interest paid FAFE 35,146 - - 733 35,879)
Non-cash changes FBLEH
Interest expense AMEFRX (35,146) - - (733) (35.879)
Additions gl - - - (6,422) (6,422)
Other non-cash movements HEREEE (299,000) 299,000 — — =

Balance as at 31 December R=-ZE—h&E+=A

2019 and 1 January 2020 =+-HRZ-E-EF
—B—B#&& (299,000) (235,400) (745) (15,144) (550,289)

Cash flows Reme

Funds paid LES 299,000 — 172 3,117 302,289

Funds received WEE % - - (2,037 - (2,037)

Interest paid LA E 20,515 - - 732 21,247
Non-cash changes FEEEH

Interest expense MERX (20,515) - - (732) (21,247)
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ [E i, 3§ & - - © 90 88
Other non-cash movements ~ E i 3FH £ & F) (24,400) 24,400 = (@) ()
Balance as at R-B-ZF+=A

31 December 2020 =+-B&% (24,400) (211,000) 2,612) (11,939) (249,951)

34. COMMITMENTS 34. K iE
(@) Investment commitments (a) BEXIE

Commitments in respect of associates are disclosed in Note Ed Bt 2 N B AE BE AY A 1E R MY R
20(d). 20(cl) 4% 57 °

194 LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited  Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

JFor the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ - Z -—TF+-A=+—HIFE

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

35. B B

(@) Transactions with related parties

BER5

() HEBITHNRS

2020 2019
== —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARET T
Funds received from parent company HERRREFES 2,037 2
Funds received from companies controlled fié? A% A% R4 HI &9 2 7]
by the controlling shareholder 1S E & 3,255 22
Funds received from companies controlled ¢ ZIS Nal—ZHRITEFZES
by an executive Director of the Company HNARNGES® 1,986 50
Funds repaid to companies controlled EEEd ?“T F% A% 3R
by the controlling shareholder =0 N - (709)
Funds repaid to companies controlled EBEEE:T $ Al—RBHITES
by an executive Director of the Company B A A (172) (43)
Loans (repaid from)/provided to parent Ex(EER) RHT
companies N (2,339) 3,646
Loans (repaid from)/provided to a company &% (g&8),~ Tm R AR R
controlled by the controlling shareholder 12 %IJ M—EA (28,700) 30,000
Loans (repaid from)/provided to a company & (EEH),/ TI
controlled an executive Director KRAal—BHITE $ 2= 5
of the Company 7 — A 7 (1,551) 60,349
Loans provided to an associate BERREME T Mg A - 4,050
Interest from loans to parent companies m & A R RE RIKE A F S 70 199
Interest from loans to a company controlled  [A] 12 & A% A% B3 322 &I 9 — R A 7]
by the controlling shareholder B HRE R PT HCER B9 A1 B 1,249 3,563
Interest from loans to a company controlled 7] 122 A% A% A% 52 42 &1 89 — [ & &)
by the controlling shareholder L RE T WCE A I B 1,158 823
Interest from loans to an associate m—HEE QAR ERES Ffr W R
A 8 - 383
Sales of goods or rendering services $HE B iR it AR 75 12,445 25,810
Purchases of goods or receiving services i B & 53 % R 7% 80 40

BEERMES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 35. BBt 5 X 5 (@)

(@) Transactions with related parties (continued) (@)

Sales and purchases of goods and services were made on
normal commercial terms, conditions and market rates.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s borrowings amounting to
RMB235,400,000 (2019: RMB259,400,000) were jointly
guaranteed by the controlling shareholder, his spouse and a
company controlled by the controlling shareholder (Note 30(a)).

As at 31 December 2020 the Group’s borrowings amounting to
RMBnil (2019: RMB275,000,000) were guaranteed by a
company controlled by the controlling shareholder (Note 30(b)).

(b) Key management personnel compensation (b)

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to Directors, is as follows:

HEBLTNRS @

HEEmEREERBEXBEES M
REXRBZ —BRBEAREX G
K iGERETT -

R-E-ZTFE+-"F=+—H &
£ B EE AR 235,400,0007T (=
T — N F : AR¥259,400,0007T)
FRIZEARARE - HEBUA R —fHhizE
% % B8 47 ol B0 2 &) R A& AR (BT 5
30()) °

R-ZF-_FTF+-_A=+—8"
AEEEEARBZL(ZZ— 1
&£ AR #275,000,0007T) H 12 K&
f% 3R P2 A — R A R HE R (KT &
30(b)) °

TEEEEAESHMN

AEETEEERAENHFN(E
BXNTEENFBIMOT :

2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BT R ARETT

Wages, salaries and allowances I% HekEM 1,667 5,533

Post-employment benefit and other welfare 3R /R 1@ F1| & E # 18 7 B 2
expenses 294 476
Share-based payments VAR 1 32 15 89 5008 - 2,019
1,961 8,028
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e MBHRMEE

|Forthe year ended 31 December2020 HZ —Z -ZEF+ - A=+—HLFE

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties

35. E B
(c) BEBMANKREELER

R 5 @)

2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBF T
Amounts due from: FBWRFRIERE :
Companies controlled by the controlling 22 A% B B A2 I B9 A A
shareholder 7,801 7,250
Companies controlled by an executive KRR —BWITES
Director of the Company. 2l SE/NGT] 15,300 10,232
An associate — M A A 16,029 16,029
39,130 18511
Amounts due to: BARIERE :
Parent company NG| 2,037 71
Companies controlled by the controlling 2[R A% B 2 ) A9 A &)
shareholder 489 489
Companies controlled by an executive KRB —BHAITES
Director of the Company 22 5 59 A A 86 185
2,612 745
Loans to: RHBERT:
Parent companies (i) 2~ al() — 2,295
A company controlled by the controlling 2% [ A% 3R 42 il
shareholder (i) #) — [ 2 7 () 1,804 29,696
A company controlled by an executive RRAF]—BHAITEEEG
Director of the Company (i) &) — A 2 & () 11,230 11,876
13,034 43,867
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # = —

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties
(Continued)

M

(i)

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited

The Company entered into a revolving loan agreement with
Longjitaihe Group Co., Ltd. (“Longjitaihe Group”, formerly
known as “Longjitaihe Industry Co., Ltd.”), a company
controlled by the controlling shareholder, on 13 June 2018,
pursuant to which the Company and its subsidiary had
provided revolving loans in a maximum principal amount of
up to RMB110,000,000 to Longjitaihe Group, the
Company’s parent companies, and a company controlled
by an executive Director of the Company for the period
from 13 June 2018 to 12 June 2019, with an interest rate
of 9% per annum.

On 18 June 2019, the Company and Longjitaine Group
renewed the revolving loan agreement for the period from
13 June 2019 to 12 June 2020, with the maximum
principal amount adjusted to RMB45,000,000.

On 13 June 2020, the Company and Longitaihe Group
renewed the revolving loan agreement for the period from
13 June 2020 to 12 June 2021, with the maximum
principal amount adjusted to RMB18,000,000.

Other amounts due from and due to related parties were
interest-free, unsecured and with no fixed terms of
repayments.

Annual Report 2020
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35. BB I RZ @
(c) ERMBANABEEL

(&)
U

(i)

R=ZE—N\F~NA+=8"
NN A — PR AR IR R
FINAREERNEEEGR
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TR B
ZK &EWE“TEF\:
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EZXMNEE ARG ZEA
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BER - AeBEma TEAA
R #110,000,0007T @ 4F F| =
#39% °

R-ZF-hFEXNA+=8"
ARAREREFNEEE
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45,000,000 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRERNE
|For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ - Z -—TF+-A=+—HIFE

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 6. XN A2HMBEMRRRRE R

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE H2 g
COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the (@ XARZHMBEMRRE
Company
2020 2019
—E-EHF —T—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
Assets EE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Mz BE K& 105 576
Right-of-use assets FREEE 1,207 2,797
Intangible assets B B 3 5
Investments in subsidiaries AL NG OE & 342 342
Loans to subsidiaries REERTHE A 967,153 990,167
968,810 993,887
Current assets RENEE
Trade and other receivables 2 5 I H A e R IE 467 968
Financial assets at fair value Z AT EEBEZBHA
through profit or loss BEalesmEE 46,099 152,090
Cash and cash equivalents HENRESZEEY 53,167 706
99,733 153,764
Total assets EEHEEHE 1,068,543 1,147,651
Equity and Liabilities EanRkaE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company < /A &) £ %5 If 31 FE 5 # %
Share capital A& ZX 12,255 12,255
Reserves (b) & & (b) 1,094,823 1,177,593
Accumulated losses (b) 25T E1E () (40,418) (46,550)
Total equity A 1,066,660 1,143,298
Liabilities 8E
Non-current liabilities knRBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 21 1,308
Total non-current liabilities ERBEELE 21 1,308
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & H M & 508 654 1,548
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,208 1,497
Total current liabilities REBAEAE 1,862 3,045
Total liabilities EEEARE 1,883 4,353
Total equity and liabilities EEREBEHEE 1,068,543 1,147,651
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board AKAmZzEBEEBBERRNR_-_Z=-—
of Directors on 31 March 2021 and was signed on its behalf FZA=+—HLKESSHE I
HTIEEREREE
Wei Qiang Wei Shaojun
| BMOE
Director Director
g EF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZE -—FF+-_A=+—HILFE

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 36. AR E 2 BEMRRER KRR

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE HBEE @
COMPANY (Continued)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company b) ADE)RELEH
Accumulated
Reserves losses
& 2B
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBT T
At 1 January 2019 R-_ZE—h&—F—H 1,149,044 (29,678)
Loss for the year FANEE = (16,872)
Other comprehensive income Hib 2 mE A 25,481 —
Equity-settled share-based transactions BESEEUARNDIANRS 3,068 —
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RZZE—hnF+=-A=+—H
—E-TF—H—H 1,177,593 (46,550)
Profit for the year F A 5 A = 6,132
Other comprehensive income Hfh 2 mE KA (69,891) —
Equity-settled share-based transactions RESEEURO IR S (12,879) —
At 31 December 2020 R=—ZE-_ZEF+=-_A=+—H 1,094,823 (40,418)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRERNE
|Forthe year ended 31 December2020 HZ —Z -ZEF+ - A=+—HLFE

37. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS

7. EE 2B R ER

The remuneration of Directors of the Company for the years ended 31 BE—_E_ZER-_FE—HhE+=-A=

December 2020 and 2019 is set out as follows:

T—BUEFEARBEENFHMOT

Year ended 31 December 2020
BE-E-Z25+-A=1+-HLEE

Employer’s

Other emoluments
paid or receivable in
respect of Director’s

other services in
connection with the
management of the

contribution to a  affairs of the Company

retirement or its subsidiary
Name i Fees Salary  benefit scheme undertaking (c) Total
RESRUAHER
AAEREME A
EBHEMBRETE
BEREANGE [RERHEGHS
Be e ZEEHERK (c) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR%¥TR ARBTF T ARBTRT AR¥TxR
Chairman £
Mr. Wei Qiang MR EAE - 267 13 - 280
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping (Note (a)) REF L4 (M) - 1,556 12 - 1,568
Mr. Liu Zhengang (Note (b)) B4R 5 A (P (o) - - - - -
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Wei Shaojun MOBERLE - - - - -
Independent non-executive Directors BAIFHTES
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John BEEREE 220 - - - 220
Dr. Han Qinchun BERABL 220 - - - 220
Mr. Han Xiaoping BEFLEE 220 - - - 220
660 1,823 25 - 2,508
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bl Z =T T F+ A=+ —HIEFE

37. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

7. EE 2GR ER@®

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2019
BE_T-NE+_A=t—HLEE
Other emoluments
paid or receivable in
respect of Director’s
other services in
connection with the
Employer’s management of the
contributiontoa  affairs of the Company
retirement or its subsidiary
Name "4 Fees Salary  benefit scheme undertaking (c) Total
HESRUEFHEEE
ARRHEMBAR
EBMEMRETE
RGBS AREEROEGHE
e & ZEEHK () st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFT AR®ETT ARETTT ARBTT AR®TR
Chairman &
Mr. Wei Qiang e thE - 1,547 15 — 1,662
Executive Directors UTEE
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping (Note (a) RAEFLAE (M) - 2,516 16 686 3218
Mr. Liu Zhengang (Note (0)) 23R A 7% £ (P 3 () - 655 - 242 897
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Wei Shaojun BOBEELE — — = = -
Independent non-executive Directors ~ B Y F#HTES
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John BERAEE 220 - - - 220
Dr. Han Qinchun BRERL 220 - - - 220
Mr. Han Xiaoping BETELE 220 - - - 220
660 4,718 31 928 6,337
Notes: B 5T -

(@) Mr. Yuen Chi Ping has resigned from the Board from 16 September 2020.

(b) Mr. Lin Zhengang has resigned from the Board from 29 January 2021.

() These represent the fair value of share options granted to the directors under
the Company’s share option scheme and recognised as equity-settled share-
based payment expense for the respective years. The value of these share
options was measured according to the Group’s accounting policies for share-
based payment transactions as set out in Note 2.20, including adjustments to
reverse accrued in previous periods where grants of equity instruments are
forfeited prior to the vesting date. The principal terms and the number of
options granted are disclosed in Note 7(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

|Forthe year ended 31 December2020 HZ —Z -ZEF+ - A=+—HLFE

37. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 37.
DlRECTORS (Continued)

No directors of the Company waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the current and previous financial years. During the
current and previous financial years, there were also no amounts paid
or payable by the Group to the directors or any of the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

38. APPROVAL FOR CONSOLIDATED 38.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of Directors on 31 March 2021.

EECEANERER@®

RAFBREFEER E—HMERFE ARF
EEHEREXRAEREEFAFH - N
AHBRERERE-MBRFEAR  KAEH
NEEFAAREESIKAUZSHFAL
Efa] — A s A R ] 5R8 - & 00
AREEBHIMAREERNFE - iF
RREBLIOFE -

HESSHBRE

GLAMBREARN-_ZE-_—F=A=1+—
ARES I fE R -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B % B =

A summary of consolidated results and assets, liabilities and equity of the ANEEBEARENHEENGALEURE

Group for the last five financial years is set out below: E BEkEBEHIINAT
CONSOLIDATED RESULTS REXE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

—E—RF —ZET—+tF —T-N\F —ZT-NF ZT-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®TR

(Restated)

(Fe&E5)
Revenue Wz 563,913 897,902 708,493 147,460 396,413
Income tax (expense)/credit P15 %: (B ), Yzt (12,321) (22,328) (10,386) 64,454 (2,240)
Profit/(loss) for the year F R (EE) 51,946 135,488 108,501 (261,414) (1,257)
Attributable to: VAT FEAh -
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ PN 51,456 135,197 107,720 (264,522) 1,064
Non-controlling interests JEHE PG AE R 490 291 781 3,108 (2,321)

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND HhEeEE BERER

EQUITY
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
—E—RF ZE—+tF ZT-)N\F ZE-NF ZEB-EE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFTT AR®TT ARBTT AR®TR
ASSETS 5E
Non-current assets ERBEE 317,375 547,537 799,002 926,511 810,420
Current assets mEEE 955,121 1,404,387 1,370,646 925,343 743,960
Total assets BEBTE 1,272,496 1,951,924 2,169,648 1,851,854 1,554,380
LIABILITIES &&
Non-current liabilities ERBAEE 681,320 662,352 549,077 261,586 233,876
Current liabilities MEAE 284,294 514,771 140,622 365,175 118,588
Total liabilities BERE 965,614 1,177,123 689,699 626,761 352,464
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners 2N A &) % A A FE 15
of the Company - Fa 306,882 773,587 1,478,790 1,215,786 1,194,930
Non-controlling interests FE 25 iR 7 = — 1,214 6,159 9,307 6,986
Total equity R 306,882 774,801 1,479,949 1,225,093 1,201,916

204 LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited  Annual Report 2020



LONGITECH SMART ENERGY

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited
EERNMEZERIZERERAF
Suite 805, 8th Floor, Harcourt House, No. 39 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
HEBFETITEIREBRAESEB05E

www.longitech.hk

.[:]. PEEL =0 =8 R
¢

ACH Design And Produced By: EDICO Financial Press Services Limited

ARAT RBUE - SEREHEENRIRTS E R AR



	封面

	目錄
	公司資料
	主席報告
	管理層討論與分析
	董事會報告
	董事及高級管理層
	企業管治報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益表
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	財務概要
	封底


